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RENFREWSHIRE—PAISLEY.

Saturday, 1st July, 1820.

SEDERUNT.
Lozp PrESIDENT,
Lorp Justick CLERK,
Lorp Cuier CoMMISSIONER.

GraND Jury.

1. Sir Wux. MiLLikEN NaPIgr, Bart.
2. WiLLiax Muzk, Esq.
8. JamEes StuarT, Esq.
4. WiLL1am WiLsoN, younger, Esq.
~ 5. MarTHEW Brown, Esq.
6. RoskrT WaLLACE, Esq.
7. CuarLEs CUNNINGHAME, Esq.
8. Axprew Moobpy, Esq.
9. Jornn HamirroNn, Esq.
10. Avaux Kk1z, Esq.
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11. Jor~ Craig, Esq.

12, WirLiax Maxwrry, Esq.
18. Hexry Dunvor, Esq.

14. WiLL1ax StEWART, Esq.
14. WiLL1iam CazLiLE, Esq.
15. Quinton LErrcH, Esq.

16. RoBERT STEWART, Esq.

17. James Warr, Esq.

18. ArcuinaLp FaLcoxnkg, Esq.
19. RosERT BaRCLAY, jun. Esq.
20. Wiritam King, Esq.

21. Joun LownbEs, Esq.

22. RoserT CocHRANE, Esq.

The Grand Jury being sworn, the Officers of Court ap-
pointed, and the same forms observed as in Stirling, the Lord
President delivered his charge to the Grand Jury.

The witnesses whose names were indorsed on the back of
the respective Bills of Indictment, were then sworn in Court
to give evidence before the Grand Jury.

The Court then adjourned for an hour and a half.

The Grand Jury returned into Court with a true Bill
against

James Speirs, )
John Lang,

James Walker,
Robert Parker, ¢ for High Treason.
John Young,
John Smellie,
James Nixon,

The two first indicted. The five last not in custody.

At the request of the two indicted, Messrs Jeffrey and
Grant were assigned to them as Counsel, and Peter and
James Jacks of Paisley, as Agents.

The prisoners being served with copies of their indict-
ment, and of lists of witnesses and Jury, the Court adjourn-
ed till the 22d day of July.



Saturdoy, 22d July, 1820.

'SEDRRUNT.
Lorp JustickE CLEREK,
Lozp PiTuiLLy,
And all the Grand Jury except two.

At the request of James Speirs and John Lang, the ac-

. cused, the Court assigned Mr Erskine Douglas Sandford

a8 their Counsel, in the room of Mr Jeffrey ; and in the event

of Mr Grant not being able to attend the trial, Mr John Ar-
chibald Murray was assigned in his room.

The two defendants were then severally arraigned, by read-
ing the indictment, which was precisely the same with that .
in Lanarkshire, except that the names of the accused were
James Spiers and John Lang, and the five other persons
above named not in custody, and the locus delicti, the Abbey
parish of Paisley, in the county of Renfrew.

The prisoners pleaded No¢ Guilty ; and the Court in-
formed them, that they must be prepared to take their trial
on Tuesday, the 1st of August, te which day the Court ad-
Journed after issuing a Precept to the Sheriff for lummon-
ing the Petit Jury.

PAISLEY.

Tuesday, 1st August, 1820.

SEDEKUNT.
Loxrp Justice CLERK,
Lorp Caier Baroy,
Lorp PiTMILLY.

PRESENT.
James Speirs—John Lang.

The Counsel for the Crown stated, that it was intended te
proceed first with the trial of James Speirs.
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Mr Grani.—My Lord, I must bear testimony to the pro-
priety of witnesses being generally excluded.

Lord Justice Clerk.—He will be taken out in custody, and
be kept near at hand, so as to be ready when called for.

John Lang was removed from the bar.

TRIAL
OF

JAMES SPEIRS.

THE Jurors returned by the Sheriff were called over,
when it was ascertained that the following were not free-
holders of the county of Lanark, to the amount of forty shil-
lings a-year.

Greorge Robertson, merchant.
William Montgomery, farmer.
James Orr, farmer.

The following Jurors were excused.

John Wilson, Esq., on account of illness.

John Aviston, Esq., on account of illness.

Alexander Macalister, manufacturer, on account of illness.

John Connel, candlemaker, being improperly described in
the panel.

Joseph Twigg, cotton-spinner, being in England.

Robert Thompson, Eeq., on account of illness.

William Warden, farmer, being improperly described im

the panel.
10






Dunnan Bervice, sanpes-~challenged liy the prisones.

James Coats, manufsctyrer—eworn.

Matthew Rodger, the elder, farmer—swom,

William Caldwell, farmer—challenged by the Crowm.

William 8tirling, cloth-merchant~~challenged by the pri-
soney.

William Lyal, grocer—~challenged by the prisoner.

John Neilson, grocer—challenged by the Crown,

Alexander Leiper, merchant—sworn.

Robert Stevenson, distiller and farmes—ghallenged by the
prisoner.

James King, farmer—challenged by the prisoner.

Andrew Clark, farmer—challenged by the prisoner.

James Kerr, brickmaker—challenged by the Crown,

Peter Kerr, thread-manufacturer—challenged by the
Crown.

Robert Muir, baker—challenged by the prisoner.

Archibald Livingston, merchant—challenged by the pri-
soner.

John Adam, bleacher—challenged by the prisoner.

Andrew Brown, cottop-spinngr—challenged by the pri-
soner.

William Glen, farmer—challenged by the prisoner.

Gavin Browning, druggist—sworn.

William Waterson, painter—challenged by the Crowa.

John Bell, sasp-boiler—challenged by the Crown.

Malcolm Lang, dyer-—challenged by the prisoner.

David Trail, dyer—sworn.

James Miller, manufacturer—challenged by the Crown,

Henry Wilson, writer—challenged by the prisoner.

Francis Martin, writer—challenged by the Crown,

Robert Dunlop, cotton-spinner-——challenged by the pri-
soner,

Thomas Carlisle, bleacher—challenged by the prisoner,

Jobn Montreth, cotton-spinner-~challenged by the pri-
soner.

John Houve, Esq.~mmchallenged by the prisoner.

William Mather, farmerenchallenged by the prisoner.
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The Jury were charged with the prisoner in the usual
form.
The Indictment was opened by Mr Maconochie.

My Solicitor-General—May it please your Lordship—
Gentlemen of the Jury—The Grand Jury of this county
having returned a true bill against the prisoner at the bar,
he is now put upon his trial, upon the indictment before you,
on a charge of High Treason ; and it is the duty, which you
are now assembled upon your oaths to perform, to determine
with respect to that unfortunate man,—(for unfortunate,
whatever may be the issue of this trial, he certainly must be
deemed,)—it is your duty, assembled upon your oath, to
determine the momentous question of his guilt or innocence
of that charge—a question of infinite moment to him, but
of no less moment to the best interests of the country, between
him and which you are now called upon to do justice.

Gentlemen, in compliance with the forms of judicial pro-
ceeding applicable to questions of this nature, it is my duty
to explain to you, generally and briefly, the principles of
law upon which this indictment is founded, to explain to
you further the charges which the indictment contains, and
to bring under your notice those facts which it is expected
will be disclosed in the evidence before you, and to which it
will be your duty to apply the law.

It is known, Gentlemen, to all of you, that the law of
High Treason, which now forms a part of the law of the
united empire, was introduced into Scotland by a statute
which immediately followed the Scottish Union. That sta-
tute introduced, as the treason law of Scotland, that law
which had been introduced by ancient statutes in England,
and which had been matured and explained by a long series
of judicial determinations. It becomes, therefore, necessary
that I should call your attention to an early statute upom
which really the whole law of treason is founded, and also
to a more recent statute, which was passed in reference to
that early statute, and in further explanation or extension
of the principles that were therein enacted. :
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and regularly equipped. It is quite sufficient to constitute
a levying of war, in the first place, that an assembly of people
do congregate together with purposes of violence, and that
they furnish themselves with such means as may be within
their reach—such means as clearly indicate a purpose of vio.
lence ; and such means as may enable them to proceed even
the shortest length in the accomplishment of that vielence.
So much as to the manner of levying war. But, in order to
render it a levying of war under the statute, and a treason-
able levying of war, another requisite is demanded by the
law. It is required that the object of that violence be one
either directed against the person of the King, or against
the office of the King, or that it be directed for the purpose
of accomplishing some general object ; a forcible alteration
in the constitution, or a forcible alteration of any of those
* general public institutions in the country which concern the
general welfare, and do not concern the peculiar and private
interests of the individuals, by whom that violence is attempt.-
ed or concerted.

I cannot better explain wbat the law understands in this
matter, than by reading a passage from one of the best au-
thorities in the English books; I mean from the work of
Mr Justice Foster, who says, ¢ Every insurrection which,
in judgment of law, is intended against the person of the
King, be it to dethrone or imprison him, or to oblige him to
alter his measures of government, or to remove evil coun-
sellors from about him—these risings all amount to levying
war within the statute, whether attended by the pomp and
circumstances of open war or not ; and every conspiracy”——
Gentlemen, you will please to attend to that— and every
conspiracy to levy war for these purposes, though not Trea.
son within the clause of levying war, is yet am owert act
within the other clause of compassing the King’s death ;e
for these purposes cannot be effected by numbers and open
force without manifest danger to his person.” Then he goes
on in these terms : ¢ Insurrections in order to throw down
allinclosures, to alter the established law or change religion,
to enhance the price of all labour, or to open all prisons ;






there can be no doubt—such is the construction of the law
laid down in all the books, and established by a course of
unquestionable decisions. And accordingly, in a recent trial
—I mean the trial of Watson for High Treason—the law is
laid down in these terms by one of the most eminent judges
of England. I quote from the charge of Mr Justice Bayley
to the Grand Jury upon that occasion. ¢ If there is an in-
surrection—that is, a large rising of people, in order, by force
and violence, to accomplish or avenge, not any private objects
of their own, not any private quarrels of their own, but to
effectuate any general public purpose—that is considered by
the law as a levying of war. There must be an insurrection,
force must accompany that insurrection, and it must be foz
an object of a general nature ; but if all these circumstances
concur, that is quite sufficient to constitute the offence of le
vying war.” And after stating a variety of adjudged case:
in older times, that learned Judge comes down to a case,
which certainly comes within the reach of the memory of
those to whom I now address myself, and may possibly have
come within the actual observation of some of you. ¢ Inou
own times,” says that learned Judge, ¢ in Lord George
Gordon’s case, there was an insurrection for the purpose of
putting down Popery—there was a very large insurrection,
with a view to that object, to support, or at least apparently
to support, our own religious establishment, and to put.down
all those persons who were of the Roman Catholic profes
sion ; and the Judges there had no doubt or difficulty, that ¢
rising for that general purpose, was an act of levying wa
against the Crown.”

Now, Gentlemen, I state to you generally, although I d¢
not think that your attention will ultimately be very muck
directed to that point, that, in considering what is, or is not,
an overt-act of compassing the King's death, which is the
first of the Treasons that is stated for your consideration,
levying of war agrinst the King, provided it be a war or in.
surrection of the description to which I have referred, and
conspiracy to levy war, provided that war contemplates ¢
general object, such as that which I have explained, both the
one and the other of thcse acts, are considered in law to be
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the fourth count charges compassing to levy war against the
King, for the purposes that I have already described to the
prisoner ; aud these two last counts are founded upon the
86th of the late King, that I have quoted at length.

Now, the facts which are to be disclosed to you in evi-
dence—(and my statement of them is to be no farther re-
garded now, and is to have no farther place in your mind at
any time, than as they shall be fully disclosed and supported
by the evidence to be adduced in your presence)—the facts
to which you are to apply the evidence are shortly these :
About the beginning of last April, there appeared in the
village of Johnstone, to which the prisoner at the bar belongs,
or at least in that neighbourhood, a certain treasonable Ad-
dress and Proclamation, upon which I shall have occasion to
offer some observations to you. That most unexampled and
extraordinary production appeared in that district ; it ap-
peared within the town where you are now sitting ; it ap-
peared throughout every large town, and most of the small
manufacturing towns, in the western district of Scotland ; it
appeared to be possessed by various individuals, and it was
posted up in all public places. It is necessary that I should
read that Proclamation or Address to you, before I state to
you the connexion which the prisoner at the bar had with it,
and the proceedings in which he was engaged, which pro-
ceedings had for their object to act in obedience to it ; be-
cause, Gentlemen, if you should be of opinion—a result
which I cannot anticipate—that this Address contains no
Treason at all, then your inquiries may stop there, and you
will have nothing further to do; but if you shall be of opi-
uion that it contains as gross and undisguised Treason as
ever made its appearance in this country, then the next step
in your investigation will be, to ascertain what was the con-
nexion which the prisoner at the bar, along with his associates,
had with that Address.

This production bears to be an * Address to the Inhabi-
tants of Great Britain and Ireland,” and it commences in
these terms : ¢ Roused from that torpid state in which we
have been sunk for so many years, we are at length com-
pelled, from the extremity of our sufferings and the conteropt

B
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circles we are, but a brave and generous people, determined
to be free. Liberty or Death is our motto, and we have
sworn to return home in triumph, or return no more. Sol-
diers | shall you, countrymen, bound by the sacred obliga-
tion of an oath to defend your country and your king fror
enemies, whether foreign or domestic, plunge your bayoncts
into the bosoms of fathers and brothers, and at once sacrifice
at the shrine of military despotism, to the unrelenting orders
of a cruel faction, those feelings which you hold in common
with the rest of mankind ?—Soldiers ! turn your eyes to-
wards Spain, and there behold the happy effects resulting
from the union of soldiers and citizens. Look to that quar-
ter, and there behold the yoke of hated despotism broke by
the unanimous wish of the people and the soldiery, happily
accomplished without bloodshed ; and shall you, who taught
these soldiers to fight the battles of liberty, refuse to fight
those of your own country ? Forbid it, Heaven !—Come for-
ward then at once, and free your country and your king from
the power of those that have held them too long in thraldom.
Friends and countrymen ! the eventful period has now ar-
rived when the services of all will be required for the for-
warding of an object so universally wished and so absolutely
necessary. Come forward then, and assist those who have
begun in the completion of so arduous a task, and support
the laudable efforts we are about to make to replace to Bri-
tons those rights consecrated to them by Magna Charta and
the Bill of Rights, and sweep from our shores that corrup-
tion which has degraded us below the dignity of man. Owing
to the misrepresentations which have gone abroad with re-
gard to our intentions, we think it indispensably necessary to
declare inviolable all public and private property ; and we
hereby call upon all Justices of the Peace, and all others, to
suppress pillage and plunder of every description, and to en-
deavour to secure those guilty of such offences, that they
may receive that punishment which such violation of justice
demands. In the present state of affairs, and during the con-
tinuance of so momentous a struggle,”—namely, that struggle
which they contemplated themselves, as undertaking for the
redress of their common grievances, and during the coati-
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force itself upon your conviction, that if war had actually
been levied for the accomplishment of the purposes here proc
claimed, that war would, beyoud all doubt, have been war
against aud Treason against the King and the Constitution;
and I say further to you, that it is no less clear and no less
indisputable, that if it shall be made out that there was an
intention on the part of the prisoner, in co-operation with
others, his associates—I say, if there was an intention, a
compassing, an invention, a conspiracy, and co-operation, on
the part of the prisoner with others for the purpose of levy-
ing war, or accomplishing those objects by force, that also
is clearly and indisputably Treason under the 86th of the
King, which I have already read. :
Now, Gentlemen, after this Proclamation had appeared in
the district, it will be established to you in evidence, that the
prisoner at the bar, along with others assembled in the village
of Johnstone, or the immediate neighbourhood, in consider-
able numbers, that this Proclamation was read and comment-
ed upon at that meeting ; that this assembled mob proceeded
to the large cotton-mills of Mr Houston of Johnstone, and
of various other respectable individuals, whose names will be
mentioned, and compelled, or attempted to compel, at least
did attempt to compel in some instances, and did absolutely
compel in others, those different manufactories to put a stop
to their work ; and, besides that, it will be established in
evidence, that, subsequently to this, a person with whom the
prisoner will appear to be intimately associated, was also
employed in the preparation and acquisition of pikes. Now,
Gentlemen, I state to you, that if these facts shall be esta~
blished clearly in evidence before you, they do constitute,
and so you will be instructed by their Lordships—that such
acts do constitute overt acts of conspiring to levy war ; nay,
if it were necessary, I think it would require no great stretch
of ingenuity to shew, that the assembling of that multitude,
with the arms and force which they possessed, might, with-
out any violent construction of the law, be held to amount
to a levying of war under the 25th Edward III. ; but we do
Dot mean to insist upon that part of the case; but, at all
events, it still more clearly falls under that conspiracy to
18






EVIDENCE FOR THE CROWN.

Mz WiLLiax HousTouN—sworn.
Examined by Mr Hope.

Q. I understand you are the proprietor of some cotton-
mills in the neighbourhood of Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q- Will you mention the names of those mills, which you
are either proprietor of|, or concerned in ?

4. There is one mill, commonly called the Old Mill,
Hagg Mill, and another, the Cartside Mill.

Q Whereabouts are those mills situated ? are they close
to the vxl!nge of Johnstone ?

A. One is in the village, and the other very near it.

Q. Which is in the village ?

4. The Old Mill

Q. And at what distance are the other two from the vil.
lage of Johnstone ?

A. The village of Johnstone extends very nearly to the
Hagg Mill, perhaps four hundred yards; Cartside Mill is
a little farther on, a quarter of a mile perhaps.

Q In what parish are those mills situated ?

4. In the Abbey parish of Paisley.

Q. In this county of Renfrew ?

4. Yes.

Q. Are you able to state, from your own knowledge, how
many cotton-mills there are in Johnstone and the immediate
vicinity ?

4. 1 could easily recollect.

Q May there be eight, ten, or twenty ; or what number ?

4. I recollect thirteen just now, fourteen in all.
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tance of fifty or sixty feet, I think, upon the hill, looking
to what was going on.

Q. Besides those immediately before you ?

4. Yes; and there were a number of children and people
between the hill and the people who were by me.

Q. State what took place when you went up to that crowd
which was immediately before you ?

4. T went up to the crowd, and asked them what they
wanted, and desired them to go away, they had no business
there. '

Q. State, as nearly as you can recollect, every thing that
took place, if you please.

4. They shouted out from several quarters, ¢ Stop the
work, stop the work ;™ I said, * I will not stop the work.”

Q. Did you observe any persons in particular making use
of those expressions, ¢ Stop the work,” at that time ?

4. Yes; after I had stated that I would not stop the
work, the crowd rose very near to me, and one man stood
about six feet from me, and the crowd came close to his

shoulder, so that the space was quite open between me and
the man that stood there.

Q. What took place then ?

4. They continued occasionally shouting out.

Q. My question was, whether you observed at that time,
any person in particular, using those expressions ?

4. 1 observed a man that stood close before me, using
the expression, ¢ Stop the work, the other works are stop-

Q. Who was that person ?

4. 1 was afterwards told, that that person——

Mr Grant.—That will not do.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did you know him before ?

A. No ; I never saw him before.

Mr Hope.—Look at the prisoner at the bar?

A. T am not certain that is the man ; his countenance is
very much altered. At that time he was very much enra-
ged, and there was a strong flush in his countenance; if I
had met him in the street, I could not have recognised him
as the man that stood before me in that crowd.
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4. Yes.

Mr Hope.—W as this person whom you mentioned having
stood in this position, and using those expressions, taking an
active part in the proceedings of this mob at the time ?

4. He did nothing ; he never moved or spoke, except
saying, “ Stop the works, the other works are stopped ;”
and I refused to stop my work ; and I understood him to
give it as a reason for my works to stop, that the other works
had stopped.

Q. Did you make any reply, and what, to that ?

4. 1 stated that I would not stop the works, and said,
¢« If any body has anything to say to me, let them come
down and state it distinctly.”

Q. How do you mean come down ?

4. Come near me ; most of the shouts to stop the work
came from the crowd round me. _

Q. And you meant, that if any of them had any thing to
say, he should come near to you ?

4. Yes; upon which a man of the name of James Walk-
er said, “ We had better appoint two men to speak to Mr
Houston.”

Q. Was that addressed to the crowd ?

A. That was addressed to the crowd,

Q. What followed that observation ?

4. The crowd immediately cried out, ¢ A ring, a ring {”
and they immediately formed a ring, and there was a show
of hands for James Speirs, and afterwards James Walker ;
I think James Speirs was first appointed.

Q Did you hear his name at the time ?

4. Yes.

Q. There was first a show of hands, or a vote, for James
Speirs ?

4. They held up their hands.

Q. His name being mentioned ¢

4. Yes; and then a show of hands for James Walker.

Q. The same person who proposed that two persons
should be elected 2

4. Yes.
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4. Walker asked me if I would like to see it; I said I
-would like very much to see it.

Q. Did he show it you ; or what was done ?

A. He stooped just across me, and addressed himself to
some person upon my left hand, and ascertained it could not
be got.

Q. Walker must have been upon your right hand ?

A. Yes.

Q. By this time there was another person upon your left
hand ?

A. Another person upon my left hand.

Q. Had he joined you and Walker from that crowd ?

4. 1 could not say when he joined me, for I never looked
at him, even when Walker stooped across me and spoke to
him. I could not say who the man was at this moment, of
my own knowledge.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Of your own knowledge you could
not say who it was, you mean to say ?

4. Of my own knowledge, I could not say who it was on
my left hand.

Myr Hope.—You were then apart from the crowd, along
with these two persons ?

4. No; the crowd followed up behind us.

Q. At what distance ?

4. I did not look behind me ; but I considered that the
whole crowd moved up with us.

Q. What reply was made by this other person upon your
left hand ?

A. That it could not be got at present ; or, that it could
not be got.

Q. What conversation followed ? as they could not show
you the Address, did Walker state what was the object of it ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—W hat passed afterwards?

A. Walker then said, * You would observe by the Ad-
dress that the public works were to be all stopped,”—I said
(3 Ye’-‘

Mr Hope.—Did he describe it as the Address, or recol-
lect whether he described the paper by any particular ap-
pellation >——did he talk of it as any particular order ?

4. He called it the Address that was on the church-gate.






81

A. The man on my left.

My Hope.—During this conversation with Walker, who
was chosen, as you have told us, by the mob, after this show
of hands—was there any other person who came forward and
seemed to take a part in this conversation, and joined him
and you ?

A. There was no person, except the person who was walk-
ing on my left ; and I do not recollect who that was. I am
not conscious of having seen that man ; Walker speaking to
him, and asking him for the Address, is the thing that makes
me know it was a man.

Q. And you never turned round to look at that man ?

4. No, I did not, to the best of my recollection. Immedi-
ately after I parted from the men, I got information that
Speirs——

Mr Grant.—We cannot hear that,—only state what you
know of your own knowledge.

Mr Hope.~After you turned and left Walker, what be-
came of this crowd ?

A. They went up the street.

Q. In what direction ?

4. From the mill.

Q. Do you know the house of Mr William Campbell,
writer in Johnstone ?

A. Yes, perfectly.

Q. Was it in that direction'?

4. In that direction.

Q. On returning to the mill, in what state did you find
the spinners and work-people ?

A. They were very much agitated. I desired the spinning-
master to get them in to their work, and they did return to
their work.

Q. The whole of them ?

A. The greater part of the spinners; the mill was going
at the time, but a number of the spinners were out ; but the
greater part of them returned tothe mill. It was from the in-
formation of the spinning-master, that I say so. I did not go
in myself to see how many were there.
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A. The Cartside Mill went on Tuesday.

Q. Did it stop on the Monday ?

4. Yes.

Q. And the Hagg Mill ?

A. That was stopped till the Thursday.

Q. What might be the amount of the persons employed
in these three mills of yours ; first stating the men ?

A. About thirty-four men and lads in the three mills.

Q. Are there a number of women and children ?

4. A great number of children, and some women.

Q. How many women and children might there be,—two
hundred or three hundred ?

4. I think there might be about three hundred altogether.

Q. What at that time was the average wages of the cot-
ton-spinners,—the men in your mills ?

4. I should think that their wages, upon the average, did
not exceed from 18s. to 20s. a-week.

Q. The men?

A. The men. The mills are very small ; it is old machi-
nery ; and they make smaller wages at our mill than at any
other almost in the country,—much smaller—from 18s. to
20s., I should think, was rather above the average.

Q. In your particular mills, you mean ?

A. Yes.

Lord Pitmilly—Did you observe what was the dress of
that man who called out, ¢ Stop the work {”

4. Yes; he had on a fustian jacket, I think.

Q. What more ?

4. I do not recollect any other part of his dress, except a
fustian jacket.

Mr Hope.—You have been looking very particularly for
some time to the prisoner ?

4. Iam surpnsed at not recognizing him ; but he had
satrong expression ou his countenance, which made a strong
impression on my mind, which I thought I never could have
forgotten ; it was a very marked expression; I thought I
had never seen the man before ; but when I see this man, I

YOL. III. ¢
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think I have seen him before. If I had met the man, I am
sure I should not have known him to be the same.

Mz ANDREW LOGAN~—smwOM.

Ezxamined by My Solicitor-Geneval.

Q. What are you?

4. A cotton-spinner.

Q. Have you the superintendance or management of any
mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. Are you a partner in any mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. Whose mills ?

A. The mills of Watt, Logan, and Company.

Q. Where are their mills situate ?

4. At Johnstone.

Q. You held that situation in April last, at that mill ?

4. Yes,

Q. Do you recollect any thing happening at that mill in
the beginning of April last ?

4. I recollect perfectly well it being stopped on the 8d
of April, by people who came to the place.

Q. At what time did they come to you ?

A. The first party that came to us was at ten o'clock,
but they did not manage their point, and they went away.

Q. They did not remain ?

4. No; they went away.

Q. Of how many might that party consist ?

4. About forty, I think.

Q. What did that party do or say, when they came upon
that occasion ?

A. There was one or more of them told the workers that
they should not go in to their work.

Q: Did you hear that said ?

4 No.
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Q. When I asked you what they said or did, I meaiit you
to tell what you saw or heard them say or do ?
4. 1 did not hear or see what they did.
Q. Did they return again ?
4. 1 did not recognize any of them returning, there was
such a crowd came afterwards.
Q. Did another party come to you ?
A. Another party returned.
Q. At what hour?
A. About half past cleven.
Q. What might be the number of that second party ?
. 1 suppose, three or four hundred.
I understood you to say, that you saw that party ?
Yes.
. What did they say or do ?
I did not hear any of them speak at all, just making a
about the place.
You did not hear them say any thing ?
No. .
But they made a noise?
They made a noise.
Did you recognize any of that party ?
. Not at the time.
. When did you recognize any of them ?
4. One of them was taken from Paisley to Dumbarton,
and 1 knew him again.
Q You knew him again ?
4. Yes.
Q Who was that man ?
4. His npame was ng
Q. Did you recognize any body else ?
4. No ; not at our mill.
Q. How long did that crowd remain at your mill ?
4. Twenty minutes.
Q. Did your people continue at work, after the visit of
that crowd ?
4. They went out before the crowd went away.
Q. Did they return that day, any of your people ?
4. No.

g
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4. Yes.

Mr Grant.—1 know you do not mean any thing wrong,
but the question is leading.

Mr Solicitor-General —1X will correct it presently. How
did Spiers stand in relation to Mr Houstoun and Walker ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Y ou have said that you heard Walk-
er address words to Mr Houstoun,—was any other person
near Walker at the time he was addressing Mr Houstoun?

4. Yes, James Speirs.

Mr Solicitor-General—1I think I was quite regular. I
first proved he was there, and then I asked how he stood.
Were those three persons apart from the crowd ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did Speirs take any share in the conversation ?

4. 1did not hear him speak.

Q. How far might you be from the party at that time ?

A. T joined them ; I was just beside James Speirs.

Q. Then we are to understand that Speirs could equally
well hear; he was in a situation, that is, in which he might
equally well hear, as you heard, what was said by Walker ?

4. Yes, he was nearer; Idid not hear it so distinctly, Idare
say, as he might.

Q. Had you an opportunity of seeing that crowd before
you saw those three persons apart ?

4. Yes.

Q. Have the goodness to state what you saw.

4. 1 saw James Walker and James Speirs come out of
the crowd, and speak to Mr Houstoun by themselves.

Q. Did you observe any thing before they came out of
the crowd in that way, in the manner you have described ?

A. No, I had just arrived then.

Q. You have spoken about the crowd that came to your
mill ; did you recognize, or did you not, Speirs in that crowd
at your mill ?

4. Not at our mill,

Q. Was Walker at your mill ?

4. T did not see him.

Q. On which side of Mr Houstoun did Spelrs stand, do
you recollect ?






Q. Where did you get it ?

4. T got it from James Speirs; I sent a person for it.

Q. Would you know that Address again ?

4. Yes; I would not know the same Address again, pro-

bably.

Q. Did you read it ?

4. Yes.

Q. Look at that, (handing a paper to the witness.)

A. Yes, that is just the same Address.

Q. On what day did you send for it ?

A. It was on Sunday.

Q. The 2d of April ?

A. Yes,

Q. Did you see an Address of that description posted up

any where ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where?

A. At the corner of one of the streets.

Q. Of Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. Can you mention the particular place where you saw
e

4. They call it Rankin Street.

Q. On what day ?

4. On Sunday.

Q. Will you explain where thatis ? Is it near the Chapel
gate; or whereis it?

4. It is just in the middle of the town.

Q. In the course of your observation of the mob, that
you have spoken about, did you hear any conversation about
an Address ?

4. No.

Q. All that you heard was about the Provisional Go-
vernment, that you have mentioned ?

4. Yes.

Q. You observed Walker and Speirs, did not you ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did they conduct themselves in the same way gene-
rally ?
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4. T only saw them at that time.

Q. Did they appear to be equally active ?

4. Certainly they did, only that James Speirs did not
speak, that I heard.

Q. Did you hear any conversation take place between
Walker and Speirs at that time ? ,

4. No.

Q. What did you do after this? did you do any thing
after this?

A. The mills were all stopped, and we did nothing.

Q. Did you shut up your mill ?

A. We shut it up in the course of the afternoon ; there
were a few girls remained, but the men went out.

Lord Advocate.—Where did you go xmmedmtely after
this ? did you return to your own work ?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you any particular reason for returning ?

A. There were still a few girls working, as I mentioned
before, and I went back to attend to them.

Q. Did you take any particular steps upon going back to
your mill ?

4. We shut the gate to kcep them in for a time, those
that remained.

Q. Did the crowd come to your gates then?

A. No, not then.

Lord Justice Clerk.—You mention that you saw those
two men, Walker and Speirs, come out and remain apart
from the crowd, with Mr Houstoun; how far were they from
the crowd ?

A. Not more than two yards.

(Jokn Lang was brought into Court in the custody of an
officer.)

My Solicitor-General.—Look at that magn before you,
(Jokn Lang).

A. That is the man Lang.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did the' crowd follow them up this
Billg

‘A. Yes.
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Q. Did they remain pretty near them ?

4. Yes.

Q. You have told us what you did with regard to the few
girls that remained in the mill, and they remained till the
afternoon ; did you after this make any communications to
the managers of the other mills ?

A. Not after they were actually stopped.

Q. Did you before they were stopped ?

A. Yes, I did, of what was to be done.

Q. Did you take any steps after so consulting with them ?

A. They did not enter into any agreement with the ma-
nagers.

Mr Solicitor-General—~Will you mention to whom you
made any communication in particular ?

A. I called upon Mr Malloch, Mr King's manager, and
asked him what he intended to do, and he said he did not
know.

Q. Did you call upon any other manager at any other
+mill ?

4. T spoke to several of the managers; I met them on
the streets, and spoke to them, but I do not exactly remem-
ber which.

Lord Advocate.—You say there was about two yards dis-
tance between these two men and the crowd 2 :

A. Yes.

Q. Was there a complete separation between them and
the crowd ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are sure that Mr Houstoun was walking along
with Walker and Speirs ?

A. Yes.

Foreman of the Jury.—You stated that you sent to James
Speirs for a eopy of the Address ; what was your reason for
sending to James Speirs for a copy of the Address?

A. My reason for it was, that I understood that the pur-
port of it was to stop the mills, and I wanted a copy of it,
to call upon some of the other managers to see what we
should do. .

Q. Why did you send to James Speirs in particular ?
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A. The person I happened to meet with, and sent for it,
lived in the same house with James Speirs; and I knew
James Speirs was likely to have something to do with it, at
least I thought so.

Lord Justice Clerk.—1I cannot take that down.

Foreman of the Jury.—Can you condescend upon the co-
lour of the jacket ?

A. It was dark.

Q. What colour was it, blue—or green ?

A. Neither; it was dark corduroy or velveteen.

Mr Solicitor-General.—Do you recollect any thing of
Lang’s dress ?

4. I do not recollect every part of it, except a cap that
he wore.

Q. What was it ?

4. It was a rough hairy cap.

Lord Justice Clerk.—You saw Lang the first time at your
mill, did you recognize him in the crowd at the Old Mill af-
terwards ? .

4. No.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—W as he with the party who
came first to your mill ?

A. Yes, .

Mr Tuomas WarT—sworn.
Ezamined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You are a merchant in Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. Are you a partner in the company of Watt, Logan,
and Company ?

4. I am.

Q. They have a cotton mill at Johnstone ?

A. They have.

Q. Do you recollect that mill being stopped at any time
in April last ?

4. I do.

Q. What day was it ?
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4. Monday the 8d of April.

Q. Had you occasion to be at the mill that morning?

A. Immediately after the crowd presented themselves to
the front of the work, I was sent for.

Q. Did you go to the mill ?

4. Idid.

Q. At what hour was this ?

A. Between nine and ten in the forenoon.

Q. Did you get to the mill ?

4. Idid.

Q. Was there a crowd there ?

A. There was.

Q. Did the crowd continue there any time after you were
there ?

4. It was just beginning to move away when I reached
the front of the work.

Q. In what way did it move ?

4. It moved directly towards Mr Houstoun's work.

Q. Which of Mr Houstoun’s works ?

A. What is called the Old Mill.

Q How far off is that mill from yours?

4. A very little distance ; about a gun-shot.

Q. Did you follow the crewd ?

4. Idid.

Q Did they go to Mr Houstoun’s mill ?

A. They went directly.

Q. When you got to Mr Houstoun’s mill, what did you
see ?

4. The crowd had presented themselves in front of Mr
Houstoun’s mill in the same manner.

Q. Did you see Mr Houstoun there ?

4. He was just entering the crowd when I came up to
him ; he was rather before me ; he entered before I came
up.

Q. Wasthere any person along with Mr Houstoun ?

A. None, that I observed.

Q. Did you see any person join him from the crowd ?

4. As soon as ever I got up to him, two came out of the
crowd and spoke to him.






45

A. He said, “ Is that all you want {”

Q. Any thing more ?

A. Walker replied, ¢ It is.™ Mr Houstoun then said,
¢ Very well, I shall not expect any recourse from the Pro-
visional Government, therefore you had better go away.”

Q. Did any further conversation take place ?

4. Nothing further, they moved away directly.

Q. Did you see, either that day, or the day before, an
Address ?

4. .1 saw an Address the day before.

Q. On the Sunday that was?

4. That was stuck up upon the church porch upon Sun-
day.

Q. Did you read it ?

4. 1 did read a part of it; but it was very wet on going
into the church, and it was stuck very high, and I could
hardly make it out.

Q. Do you remember the beginning of it ?

4. Yes.

Q. To whom was it addressed ?

A. Addressed to the people of Great Britain and Ireland.

Q. Did you afterwards see another copy of that Address ?

4. Yes. -

Mr Grant.—He afterwards saw another Address, but
how he can say it was a copy, I do not see.

Mr Maconochie~Did you afterwards see another Address?

4. Yes. ’

Q. Was it the same ?

4. I imagine it to be the same; it began in the same

manner.

Q. Did you afterwards see another ?

4. I did,

Q. Where did you see that ?

4. In Mr Logan’s house, between the church time on

Sunday.

Q. What was that one you saw on the porch about ?

4. 1 took it to be exactly the same.

Q. Tell us what it was, as far as you recollect it ?

4. 1 did not read any considerable part of it; it was ad-
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arder of the Provisional Government, I believe, but I am
not certain.”

Mr Grant—Then, if your Lordship is of opinion that
that is enough to let in evidence of another paper, which is
put into his hands, as to which he is asked, whether it is si-
milar, they may prove any thing in the world.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—No, not unless it is similar
to that on the wall ; he sees a paper on the wall, and recol-
lects the purport of it, then surely you may say, is this like
that, or is it like it in any part ?

Mr Grant.—Any objection of mine on this point is to the
use they are to make of the paper.

Mr Maconochie.—You read the paper at Mr Logan’s en-
tirely ?

A. Entirely, and part of it twice over.

Q. Is that paper you have now in your hand, similar to
the one you saw at Mr Logan’s ?

4. 1 think it is exactly the same..

Q. Was your mill stopped upon that day ?

4. Yes.

Q. How long did it continue so ?

A. For the whole week, I believe.

Q. Why was it stopped ?

4. The spinners did not seem willing to work.

Q. Was that after the crowd had been there ?

4. While the crowd was there ; part of the spinners had
come in after breakfast, and part did nét come back at all.

Q. Did it appear to you that they did not come back ow-
ing to intimidation ?

4. A good many of them seemed to be intimidated by the
ppearance of the crowd.

Q. Do yqu know, from your own knowledge, whether the
other mills, in the neighbourhood of Johnstone, stopped that
day ?

4. 1 believe they were all stopped after this; this was the
first, ¥ believe. '

Q. Did you cbserve the crowd leave Mr Houstoun’s mill ?

4. At the moment that Mr Houstoun made the reply, «“ I






49

Q. And you mean to say that it was at the time that the
people were returning after breakfast, not later than three
quarters of an hour after nine, that the crowd was moving
away from your mill, in order to go to Mr Houstoun’s mill ?

A. They had set themselves there at the time the people
were coming from their breakfast ; but just as I reached it,
they were moving away.

Q. And you reached it some time after nine o’clock ?

A. Between nine and ten.

Re-examined by My Maconoche.

Q. Was Mr Logan there at the time that you went to the
mill ?

A. He was there at the time they presented themselves at
the mill, and he came to me and wished me to go down to
the mill; he was afraid of some mischief; and when we
reached the mill, the crowd were going.away, and we fol-
lowed it, and went to Mr Houstoun’s mill.

ROBERT STEVENSON——SWOrn.
Examined by Mr Hope.

Q. You live in Johnstone, I understand ?

4. Yes.

Q. What is your employment ?

4. T superintend Mr Houstoun’s works.

Q. The Old Mill, the Hagg Mill, and those mills that
belong to him ?

A. Yes,

Q. Were you in Johnstone in the beginning of April?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you observe any particular paper posted up any
where in Johnstone, about that time ?

4. Yes, I saw it on Sunday, when I was going to church.

Q. On what Sunday ?

VOL. III. D
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A. The 2d of April.

Q. You saw a paper where ?

A, On the pillar of the chapel gate of Johtstone.

Q You mean the cliurch in Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. There is rio patish church, I believe ?

4. No.

Q. This was going to cliurch ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you read this paper?

A. Yes, I tead part of it.

Q. Was that the only time that you saw it there ?

A Tt was the only time I saw it there ; it remained there
two or three days; I think it was two or three days before
it was taken down.

Q. Did you see it two or three days afterwards ?

A. I think so.

Lord Justice Clerk.~~At the same plaée P

A. Yes.

My Hope.—Did you read it upon any other occasion but
upon that Sunday morning, or parts of it ?

A. T looked at it a little, but did not read much of it af-
terwards.

Q. Had that paper any title; and what was it ?

A. It was an Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain
and Ireland. '

Q. Had it any date ?

4. It was dated Glasgow, the first of April.

Q. Was the year mentioned P

A. T do not recollett.

Q. Had it any name at the bottom ; or did it bear to be
issued by the order of any person or body ?

4. The Provisional Governmént.

Q. At the bottom of it ?

A. I do not recollect where it was.

Q. Can you repeat the parts of it that you read ?

A. It wished the people to stop work ; and if they did not
do it, they would be considered as traitors to the cause, and
treated as such ; or something of that.
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.~ Q. Look at this paper, and see whether it contains what
you saw in the other Address, and tell me whether you be-
lieve it to be the same, or similar, (Aanding a paper to the
wilness.)

4. 1 think it is the same,

Q. Are you certain that the substance and import is the
same ? .

A. Yes, I think so.

Q. This, you have stated, was upon Sunday the second of
April; now, upon the following day, did any thing take
place within your observation, at Mr Houstoun’s Old Mill ?

A. Yes; there was a number of people came down there.

Q. At what time?

A. About ten o'clock, 1 think.

Q. State what you saw ; a namber of people came down
to the Old Mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. About what number might there be ?

A. Two or three hundred ; I could not say exactly.

Q. Did you see Mr William Houstoun at the time ?

A, Yes, he came down shortly after the crowd came down.

Q. Did Mr Houstoun go in between the end of the mill
and the crowd ?

4. He came round by the end of the mill at first.

Q. Did be advance in front of them ?

4. The crowd made a cry, * Stop the mill,” when he came
forward. '

Q. Tell us all that you heard ?

4. He said, * Any person that he knew was to come for-
ward to tell him to stop his mill.”

Q. Did he ask what their object was?

4. Nobody came forward; and there was a committee
among themselves—and some of them were trying to form
aring,—and at that time I went into the mill, as Mr Hous-
ton desired, to see what was going on. -

Q. Was a ring formed ?

4. Yes, 1 looked out of the window of the mill, and saw
what I thought was a show of hands—a ring as if they were
choosing some person ; I did not see them come from the
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Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—Perhaps not ; but you may
ask, whether he has taken steps to satisfy himself, and then
what is the r esult in his mind.

Mr Grant.—He does not recollect the man.

Mr Hope.—If he says any person told him his name, I
shall call that person now ; I submit if any person seeing the
conduct of a man, asks his name of a person beside him.—

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd—1 doubt whether you can
ask that ; if any body called him by name at the time, that
you might give in evidence.

Mr Hope—Did you hear any body nammg these two
persons with Mr Houstoun ?

A. No; I did not, I was in the mill.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of James Walker P

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—You may ask him whether
he asked any of the crowd there the man’s name.

Mr Hope—~That was my question.

Mr Grant.—You may ask, did any body in the man’s
presence name him ?

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd—1It is net competent to ask
who he asked what the man’s name was ; nor perhaps whe-
ther he asked any of the crowd; but if he asked any body
what was such a person’s name, that is evidence.

My Grant.—In the presence and hearing of the man him-
self, which would amount to an acknowledgment by him-
self.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd—No, I think that is admis-
tible evidence ; a man might give a false answer, and if so—
it would not be evidence that it was the man ; because some-
body said that was his name ; but only it is an admissible
question to ask whether the witness, at the time of that trans-
action, learnt from any one of the crowd what the man’s
name was.

Mr Grant.—I take your Lordship to mean this—if any of
the crowd called out this man’s name.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—No ; I mean this—suppose,
during that transaction, that witness, from curiosity, if you
please, had said to any of that crowd there collected, and ap-
parently acting together with the prisoner,  Pray, what is
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My Hope.—~Did you at that time, ask any of the persons
there, the name of either of the men with Mr Houstoun, or
did you hear any of the persons of the crowd mention the
name of either of those two men at the time ?

A. No; I asked none of them that time ; but I heard Mr
Houstoun ask, who was the little man with a cordaroy
jacket.

Q. Was that at the time ?

A. No.

Q. What dress had the person on?

4. A corduroy jacket.

Q. Did you see any person with a cordnroy Jjacket with
Mr Houstoun ?

. 4. T do not recollect it,

Lord Justice Clerk.—Y ou had not observed that either of
the two men with Mr Houstoun, had such a jacket as that ?

A. No.

Mr Hope.—Had you taken any noticeat all of their dress ?

4. No.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of James Walker?

A. No; I do not know that I ever saw him but once or
twice.

Q. Then you do know a person of the name of James
Walker 7

A. Yes.

Q. Was he present upon that occasion ?

4, 1 do not know—rthey say seo.

Q. You say you have seen James Walker once or twice,
~did you see him there ?

A. T did not see him there ; but I saw him at the Hagg

Mill.

Q. Did yon see that crowd leave Mr Houstoun’s mili ?

A. No; I was in the mill at the time,

Q. You know that they left it soon afterwards ?

4. Yes :

Q. When did you next see any thing of the crowd{ .

A. T went up to the Hagg Mill, between twelve and gne

oclock.

Q. Did you find any crowd about the Hagg Mill ?
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A. Yes; the crowd was there when I went up.

Q. Did that appear to be a larger crowd than had been at
the Old Mill ? .

A. Yes.

Q. Considerably larger ?

A. Yes.

Q. You say you saw James Walker at the Hagg Mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you speak to him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did he appear to be a leader in that mob, at the Hagg
Mill?

4. I considered so.

Q. Was there any person along with hime, who seemed to
be assisting him ?
. One Parker, that was along with him ¢
Robert Parker ?
. Yes.
Was the man at the bar along with Walker?
I could not say he was.
. Do you believe that he was ?
. I was told he was there.

Mr Grant.—Do not tell us what you were told.

Mr Hope—~1t is very odd ; you will not answer my ques-
tion.

A. I could not say that he was there.

Q. Was there any third person that was along with Walker
and Parker, and assisting them ?

A. Yes; there was a third.

Q. Did you speak to those persons when you got to the
Hagg Mill?

A. Yes; I spoke to them—I asked for the committee,
when I went there.

Q. And did those three persons answer ?

A. T went forward to Parker and spoke to him first. I
understood he was chosen.

Q. Was Walker along with Parker at that time ?

A. Yes.

NONOAOK
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Q. Was there a third man along with them at the time
that you spoke to Parker?

A.1Yes.

Q. State what you said to Parker?

A. 1 wished him to clear away the crowd for fear they
should do any damage to the mill ; and one of them said, if
I would stop the mill, they would soon try and get them
away; and I said I could not take that upon me, but I
would go down to Johnstone and see Mr Houstoun.

Q. Was that addressed to those three persons ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they or either of them, and which of them, say
any thing in reply to that ?

A. Walker said that he knew Mr Houstoun’s mind about
that already.

Q. Did he say any thing further ?

4. No ; I do not recollect his saying any thing else.

Q. Did you observe at that time, an old man at a part of -
the Hagg Mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was any thing said about him, by either of those three
persons ?

4. Yes; a man said, ¢ See and get that old fellow down,
and we will get away the crowd.”

Q. Which of the men said that ?

A. 1 was told afterwards, it was Speirs.

Mr Grant.—Do not tell us that.

Mr Hope.—I ask which of those three,~~you have named

two of them ?

4. It was the third man.

Q. Tell us what was said ?

A. Says he, ¢ See and get that old fellow down, and we
will see and get the crowd away from the mill,”—the crowd
would not go away as long as they saw that man there.

Q. Was that third person either of the men who was
along with Mr Houstoun at the Old Mill ?

4. I could not say.

Q. Did you believe him at the time to be one of the men
who was along with Houstoun ?
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Q. You say you had this man in your eye for ten minutes ;
did you observe his dress ?

A» No; I do not recollect it.

Q. Did you go to the Cartside Mill with the crowd ?

4. No.

Q. Was the Hagg Mill stopped ?

A. Yes. :

Q. Do you know that the Cartside Mill was stopped that
day likewise ?

4. Yes.

Q. You stopped the Hagg Mill at the time you said you
would ?

4. Yes.

Myr Sandford.— At what time was the Hagg Mill stopped ?

A. T think it might be about one o'clock.

James MacpouGAL—smorn.
Ezamined by Mr Salicitor-Geuneral.

Q. Are you a cotton-spinner ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where do you live ?

A. At Mr Houstouns Mill.

Q. At what mill ?

A. The Laigh Mill.

Q. Is that what is called the Old Mill ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you work there in April last ?

A. Yes.

Q. You live-in Johnstone, do you ?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect having seen an Address of any kind
posted up in Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. On what day was it ?

A. On a Sunday morning.
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You saw an Address posted up in Johnstone upon

Sunday morning ?

A.
Q.
4.
Q.
4.
Q.

Yes.

Whereabouts ?

Upon the corner of the east end of the square.

Did you read it ?

Yes.

What did it begin with, do you recollect ; was it ad-

dressed to any body ?

A.

Yes.

Q. To whom ¢

A
dress

AnOAOCACAOLCAONOLADOLAORONOLOND

A

I cannot say particularly the words ; but it was an Ad-
to the Inhabitants of Great Britain and Ireland.

. Do you recollect what was at the bottom of it ?

No.

. Did it bear to be given out by order of any body ?

Yes.
By whose order ?
The Provisional Government.

By order of the Provisional Government ¢
Yes.

‘What was the date of it ?

. I could not recollect.

Would you know it again if you saw it ?
Yes.

Look at that paper (kanding a paper to the witness.)

. It appears to be something the same as that.

Read it to yourself ?
Yes; I think it is the same.

. It is the same in substance ?

Yes; I think it is.
You saw that upon the Sunday, I think you say ?
Yes.

. Do you recollect the day of the month ?
. No.

. Was it early in April?

Yes.

. Was it about the beginning of April ?
Yes; the first or second of April.
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Q. Did you go to the mill as usual, the next morning ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did any thing remarkable happen at the mill, in the
course of that day ?

A. Yes; there were a crowd coming about the mill.

Q. At what hour was that ?

A. 1t was after breakfast.

Q. Was it soon after breakfast ?

4. Probably about half an hour, or three quarters.

Q. What did they do?

A. Somebody went to the manager of the mill and told
him.

Q. Who is the manager of the mill ?

A Robert Stevenson.

Q. You saw the crowd, did you ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you hear them say any thing ?

A. Yes.

Q. What did any of the crowd say ?

A. They cried out, < Stop the mill.”

Q. Did the mill stop ?

A. No; it did not stop at that time.

Q. Were the people within the mill alarmed with this ?

A. Yes.

Q. What happened after this at the mill ?

A. Shortly after the crowd came down ; and after all our
workers were out, Mr Houstoun’s came down.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Shortly after this the people went
out of the mill, did they ?

4. Yes.

Mr Solicitor-General.—And then Mr Houstoun came?

A. Yes; and asked them what they wanted.

Q. What was the number of the crowd ; a hundred or a
hundred and fifty, or two hundred ?

4. I did not take particular notice.

Q. But there was a considerable crowd ?

4. Yes.

Q. Mr Houstoun came and asked what ?

4. He asked them what they were doing there.
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A. Yes; the crowd cried then to stop the mill..

Q. What did Mr Houstoun sxy after this ?

A. I do not recollect that.

Q. Did you see the crowd do any thing after this?

A. After that Mr Houstoun was standing beside them,
and shortly after he came, I left the ecrowd and him stand-
* ing speaking.

Q. Did you see the crowd do any thing while you were
there ? :

A. Nothing more then.

Q. You can tell what happened before you went away ?

A. 1 saw Mr Houstoun and them speaking together.

Q. Did he speak to the whole crowd ; or to some people
out of the crowd, or to whom did he speak ?

A. He was speaking to the whole crowd at the time I was
there.

Q. What did the crowd do—Did they send any of their
number out ?

A. Not that I saw.

Q. How long were you there ?

Q. I was only there a few minutes after Mr Houstoun
came down.

Q. Did you see a ring formed in the crowd ?

A. Yes; there was a small ring, when Mr Houstoun was
there.

Q. Did you see any body come out from that ring ?

4. No.

Q. Did you see Mr Houstoun speaking to any particular
persons ?

4. 1 saw him speaking to James Speirs.

Q. You know Speirs?

A. Yes.

Q. You saw him speaking to Speirs ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was that after the ring was formed ?

4. No; it was just as he came forward.

Lord Justice Clerk.~J ust as Mr Houstoun came forward ?

A. Yes.



Mr Solicitor-General.—Was that before the ring was
formed, or after ?

A. Just as Mr Houstoun came forward, they stood round
him, that was all the ring that I saw.

Q. Was there any body else in conversation with Mr
Houstoun but Speirs ?

4. No.

Q. Do you know a man that they call James Walker ?

4. Yes,

Q. Was he there?

A. I do not recollect seeing him there.

Q. Did you see any body else there that you knew ?

4. No; 1 did not notice—no person particularly.

Q. At that particular time ? .

4. No ; because I was standing at the back of Mr Hous-
toun, and in a short time I left them.

Q. Did you hear what Mr Houstoun smd to Speirs, or
what Speirs said to Mr Houstoun ?

4. No; I could not give my oath to what they were say-
ing.

Q. Did any conversation take place between them ?

A. They were speaking together.

Q. And you were close to them ?

4. Not far off.

Q You were within ear-shot of them, I dare say ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did any conversation take place between them ?

4. They were speaking together.

Q. What did they say ?

4. I do not recollect.

Q. You must have heard what was said—what was the
substance of what passed between them ?

4. They were saying something about stopping the mill.

Q. Who said about stopping the mill ?

4. 1 could not say ; that was all that I heard. I left them
at that time, for Mr Houstoun was there to speak to them.

Q. Where did you go?

4, I went round the other side of the mill.

Q. And where did you go lt;: ?
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Q. Was there any other man with him but Speirs, at that
time ?

A. Yes.

Q. You know James Walker ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was he along with him then?

4. T do not recollect—I could not be upon my oath of
that.

Q. How many people were with him ?

4. I could not say whether there were two or three.

Q. You cannot say whether that man was Walker or not ?
4. No.

Q. Were they far off at the time ?

A. Perhaps twenty yards.

Q. Did you see any more of that crowd that day ?

A. I saw them going away up the street.

Q. Did you observe what became of Speirs and those

other men that you saw in company with Mr Houstoun ?

4. No.

Q. Did they go away with the crowd ?

4. Yes; I saw them going up the street together; but I
did not see them after that.

Q. What became of Mr Houstoun after that ?

4. I saw him turning the corner, up at the head of the
street, by Mr Mills’s.

Q. That was away from the crowd ?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect how Speirs was dressed ?

4. I think it was a corduroy jacket.

Q. Dark or light ?

4. It was a greenish colour.

Q. Was it dark ?

4. No; it was not very dark; but it was not a white

<oOrduroy.

Q. Did you see, in the course of that day, any crowd of
People assembled any where ?

4. Yes.

Q. Where was it ?

VOL. 11 E
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4. On the school green.
Q. About what time was that ?
A. Shortly after twelve o’clock, I believe.
Q. Was that after this visit, that your mill had had from
from the crowd ?
A. Yes.
Q. Was it soon after ?
4. Noj; it was some time after.
Q. Were you along with that crowd—were you in it ?
A. Yes; I was up at the time.
Q. Had you occasion to know how that crowd was called
together ?
4. No; I heard a report that there was to be a meeting
Q. You were in the crowd, you say ?
A. Yes; I was close to it.
Q. Was James Speirs there ?
4. Yes.
Q. Who more was there that you knew ?
A. I saw Parker.
Q. What is he?
A. A shoemaker. '
Q. What is his first name ?
A. Robert. '
Q. Did you see Walker there ?
4. I do not recollect seeing him. I was on the back side
of the ring.
Q. Did you see any body else there—a man of the name
of Smillie, did you see there ?
I do not know that man.
. What did you see take place there ?
. I was at the back side of the ring.
. Was there a ring formed ?
Yes.
Did you see who was on the inside of that ring ?
. I saw Jem Speirs.
. Who else did you see ?
I saw Parker.
Q. Any one else?

AONONONDOA
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A. Yes; there was another man that I did not know.
Q. How was that other man dressed ?
A. He had on a glazed hat, a leather hat.
Q. What did you see take place in that ring ?
4. I heard one of those Addresses read.
Q. Such a one as you read now yourself ?
A. Yes.
Q. Who read it ?
A. T could not see the man ; I was on the back side, I
only heard it.
Q. Wasitread by somebody in the centre within the ring ?
A4, Yes.
Q. By some one of the persons within the ring ?
4. Yes.
Q. Did you hear any remarks made upon it ?
A. Yes; I heard some remarks, '
Q. Can you tell us what those were ?
A. Nos I could not make no sense of the words,
Q. What was it?
4. I could not give my oath to it—I did not hear it parti-
cularly. _
Q. Let us hear the substance of it ¢
4. I cannot give it, for I was on the back side of the ring,
and could not hear correctly.
Q. But you are confident it was all read ?
A. I do not recollect whether it was all read or not. I
heard the Address read.
Q. You were quite near enough to hear that ?
A4, Yes; I was on the back side.
Q. Then there were remarks made upon it ?
Yes.
. Upon the substance and meaning of that Address?
Yes, there was something of that.
. What was Speirs doing ?
I did not see him at that time.
. Who presided over this meeting ?
I could not say who presided over it.
Was there nobody chosen ?
Yes; I heard Parker chosen.

OXDOA

AOxOA
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Q. You heard Parker chosen preses of that meeting ?
4. Yes. :
Q. Who proposed him ?
A. 1 did not hear that.
Q. Did nobody propose him ?
4. T could not say.
Q. Did you hear nobody propose him ?
4. No.
Q. He acted as preses of the meeting, however, you have
told us ?
A. Yes; I heard-him chosen preses.
Q. How did this business of choosing go on ?
A. He was chosen by a vote.
Q. Did any body propose him for this vote ?
A. I did not hear that.
Q. Did any body else speak within that ring?
4. T heard James Speirs speaking something.
" Q. Does your recollection serve you to tell us what passed ?
4. No.
Q. What did it refer to?
4. 1 do not recollect.—I could not give my oath to any
thing of that. '
Q. To whom was this speaking addressed ?
4. T did not hear him address no particular person ; it was
just to every body reund.
Q. It was a speech to the meeting ?
A. He was speaking some few words.
Q. To the meeting?
A. Yes.
Lord Justice Clerk.—Did it appear to you to be address-
ed to the whole meeting ?
4. Yes.
Mr Solicitor General.—Was there any thing said about
cotton-mills there ?
A. Yes; I heard it proposed to stop the mills.
Q. To stop the cotton-mills ?
A Yes.
Q. From whom did that proposal come ?
4. I could not say.
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Q. Did it come from somebody within the circle ?

4. Yes; or about the ring. I could not say whether it
came from the ring, or the circle in the middle of the ring.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did you know who said it ?

4. No.

Mr Solicitor-General—Did you hear any thing said by
any body in the crowd, about where they were going to ?

4. 1 heard them say that there were some mills not stop-
ped, and that they would stop them.

Q. Was this agreed to?

4. Yes; I believe it was.

Q. It appeared to be the common sentiment ?

4. Yes.

Q. How was it agreed to?

A. By a show of hands.

Q. Was there any question put about showing hands ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Were they desired to show hands
and agree to it?

4. Yes.

My Solicitor-General—~Who desired them to show hands
in that manner ?

4, 1 cannot exactly say ; I was a little behind at that time. -

Q. Did that desire come from the ring likewise ?

A. Some part about the ring.

Q. This wasagreed to, I think yousay,by a show of hands ?

4. Yes

Q. Did the crowd remain together ?

4. No.

Q. Did any body intimate any opposition to this stoppage ?

A. 1 did not hear any.

Q. How long did the crowd remain together after this ?

4. They went away after that.

Q. Immediately ?

4. Yes; shortly afterwards.

Q. Where did they go to?

A4.3They went away up to the head of Macdougall Street,
and up by the Hagg Mill.

Q. Did you_go with them ?

4, No; I stopped upon the green.
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Q. Did you see any more of the proceedings of that mob ?

4. No.

Q. Who read the Address?

A. 1did not se¢ any man; I only heard the Address read.

Q. You know a man’s voice occasionally ?

4. Yes; but I could not give my oath of it.

Q. You heard the voice that read it ?

4. Yes.

Q. Whose voice do you believe it to be ?

A. I believe it to be Walker’s.

Q. I think you said you heard some one of the crowd say,
they were going to the Hagg Mill ?

4. No. '

Cross-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. Who was this man with the glazed hat that you have
spoken of, that was at the green ?

A. I did not know that man.

Q. Did he seem to take an active part in this business?
I saw him in the ring, alohg with the rest.
Did he mak a speech ?
I did not hear him make any speech.
Can you see the Hagg Mill from the green ?
Only the top of it.
. And you remained on the green, you say ?
. Yes.

Q. So that you could not see the crowd go to the Hagg
Mill ?

AORCHROA

No.

. But you saw them go up Macdougall Street?
Yes, by the head of Macdougall Street.

And that is all you know about that ?

. Yes.

SO RO

Re-examined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. How far is the Hagg Mill from the end of Macdougall
Street ?
A. Not very far—I cannot say how far.
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Q. How far is it—is it many hundred yards, or what?
A. Itis more than that—I cannot say the distance.
Q. Is it just about the top of Macdougall Street ?
A. No; it is eastward from it.
Q. Not a very great distance from it ?
4. No.
Q. Does Macdougall Street lead to the Hagg Mill ?
A. Yes; but not from the green,
Lord Justice Clerk.—Did you see the crowd actually at
the head of Macdougall Street ?
A. Yes.
Q. There is a mill called the Cartside Mill ; is that near
the Hagg Mill ?
4. Yes; it is just a little higher than the Hagg Mill.
My Solicitor-General.—~What induced you to remain off
work ?
Lord Justice Clerk.—What induced you to remain off
work ? '
A. There were none of the men at work then, the mills
were all stopping.
Q. Had you any other reason for stopping, except that
the rest did not go on ?
4. No.
Q. You returned on the Thursday, you say ?
4. Yes. ‘
Lord Pitmilly.~Was silence observed, while the Address
‘was reading ?
A. Yes; they were very attentive, but silence was not or-
dered.
Q. Did they appear to agree about the Address, or dis-
sent from it ?
A. Yes ; some of them did agree to it.

ALEXANDER MACNEIL—sWOTN.
Ezamined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You are a cotton-spinner at Mr Houstoun's mill ?
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4. Yes.
Q. At which mill ?
A. At the Old Mill.
Q. Were you so in the month of April last ?
4. Yes.
Q. Do you remember that mill stopping work in April.
Yes.
. What day in April was it?
. I think it was the third, the first Monday of April.
Was there a crowd came to the mill that day ?
Yes.
At what time of the day ?
About eleven o’clock, I think.
.. That was after breakfast?
Yes.
. What did the crowd do when they came to the mill ?
They just came to the mill.
Did they say any thing ?
I heard them speaking.
. Did you hear any thing that was said ?
No.
Did they say what they came for ?
. I did not hear any words said.
Did you see any body in the crowd that you knew ?
. Yes, I saw several.
Q. Be 80 good as mention their names.
A. 1 saw one of the name of James Walker, I think, and
one of the name of James Speirs.
Q. Is that him, (pointing to the prisoner.)
4. Yes. ~
Q. What were they doing when you saw them ?
4. Just in the crowd the same as the rest.
Q. Did you see Mr Houstoun there ?
A. Yes.
Q. Mr William Houstoun ?
4. Yes.
Q. What was he doing ?
A. He was standing anent them.
Q. Before them ?

PANOAOANONOACADAOANDOAN
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-A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him speaking to any body ?

4. Yes; I saw him speaking to the crowd.

Q. Did you see any of the crowd, whom you knew,
speaking to Mr Houstoun ?

A. No; I did not.

Q. Did you see the prisoner, Speirs, speaking to Mr
Houstoun that day ?

4 No, I did not, at the mill.

Q. Did you see him near him ?

A. No, 1 did not.

Q. Did you see Walker near Mr Honstonn ?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did the crowd leave the Old Mill soon ?

4. 1 left the crowd there.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did you hear Speirs speak to Mr
Houstoun any where ?

A. I saw him, after they scaled the mill, going up the
hill with him, but I could not say that he spoke to him.

Q. You saw him going up the hill ?

4. By Mr Campbell’s.

Q. With James Walker ?

4. Yes. '

Q. After they were going from the mill ?

A. Yes.

Q. How far were you from Mr Houstoun, and Walker,
and Speirs at this time ?

4. 1 was at a little distance.

Q. How far twenty yards?

4. Yes, I dare say I was about that.

Q. How was Speirs dressed ?

4. T cannot tell you.

Q. What sort of a jacket had he on ?

4. I do not know.

Mr Maconochie.—Were you at the School Green that
day ?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Was there a crowd there ?

4. Yes.
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Q. Did you see any body in that crowd, that you knew ?

4. Yes.

Q. Who wasit?

A. 1 saw 8 man of the name of Smillie, I think, and
Walker, and James Speirs, and one of the name of Parker.

Q. Where were they ?

A. They were in the midst of the crowd.

Q. Was there a circle formed ?

A. Yes.

Q. Were they in the middle of the circle ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any other body in the middle of it?

A. No, I do not think there was.

Q. What was done ?

A. They were speaking ; I could not tell what was said.

Q. Were you on the outside ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any thing read ?

A. Yes, there was a Proclamation read.

Q. Who read it?

A. James Walker.

Q. What sort of a Proclamation was it ?

A. 1 saw it up in the corners on the Sunday morning
before that.

Q. In the corners of the streets?

4. Yes.

Q. How many of them did you see upon the Sunday ?

A. 1 saw one upon the chapel gate, as I was going to
<hurch.

Q. Did you see any more ?

A. Why, I cannot say I did, at that time; I saw one
down at the end of the town, in another corner.

Q. To whom was that Proclamation addressed ? do you
remember the beginning of it ?

A. 1 could not tell you.

Q. Did you read it?

4. No, but I heard it read.

Q. Would you know it again if you were to see it?

14
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4. 1 am not certain of that. (4 paper was handed to the
witness.) Yes, that is the paper.

Q. That is the same paper ?

4. It is the same paper; it is the same reading.

Q. Walker read that ?

4. He did.

Q. Was there any observation made by any of the crowd ?
did any body speak

A. No; I cannot recollect any thing being said.

Q. Was there a preses chosen ?

4. 1 could not tell that.

Q. Did you see any hands held up ?

4. Yes, I saw that.

Q. For what purpose was that ?

4. 1 could not tell you, for I was at a little distance.

Q. Was that after or before the Address was read by
Walker ¢

4. 1 think it was before.

Q. Did you see what Speirs did at that time?

4. No, I did not.

Q. You saw him inside the circle, but you did not see
him speak ?

A. T heard the man speak two or three words, but what
they were to, I did not know.

Q. And this was after the Address was read, was it ?

4. I think it was before.

Q. Did you see the crowd go away ?

4. Yes.

Q. Which way did they go?

4. They all went away in a crowd.

Q. In what direction did they go ?

4. 1 could not tell you that, they all went away in a

Q. You know what street they went to ?

4. No, I do not, for I remained on the green.

Q. Did they go in regular order ?

4. I cannot really say they did go in regular order.

Q. You have seen soldiers marching ?

4. Yes.



76

Q. Did they go in that order any of them?

A. No, I cannot say that any of them went in any order.

Q. Were many of them in a breast ?

A. 1 could not say, they were going just all in a body.

Q. Did you hear any thing said about mills at that meet-
ing ?

%4. No, I did not ; I heard nothing but the Proclamation
read, and any other words that passed, I could not tell.

Cross-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. Did you hear any thing said about mills ?

4. No, I did not.

Q. My learned Friend has asked you about the order that
they marched in, had they any weapons of any kind ?

4. No, I did not see any.

Q. Clubs or sticks ?

A. No.

Q. Sticks or staves?

4. No, 1 did not see any thing of the sort.

Q. Any flags?

4. No.

Q. Did you see any body appointed a captain or aleader
to march them ?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Any body falling them in in regular order ?

4. No, I did not see any thing of the kind.

Q. Did you see any body there with a glazed hat ?

4. I could not say I did.

Re-examined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You saw a man of the name of Smillie there,—~what
dress had he?
- 4. 1 cannot say.
Q. Had he a glazed hat ?
A. Yes, I rather think he had.
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JouN HousTouN——sworn.

Ezamined by Mr Hope.

Q. Are you a cotton-spinner with Mr William Hous-
toun?

4. Yes.

Q. At the Old Mill?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know that that mill was stopped in the begin
ning of April last ?

A. Yes.

Q. What day was it, do you know ?

A. It was upon Monday, between ten and eleven o’clock.

Q. Which day of April ?

A. The third.

Q How did that happen ? did any persons come to the
Old Mill?

A. Yes, there was a great crowd came.

Q. You saw Mr William Houstoun there ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see the crowd before Mr Houstoun came
up?

4. Yes.

Q. What had they said when they came up in front of
the mill ?

4. They said nothing to us.

Q. Did they say for what purpose they came ?

4. No, they did not ; we came out of the mill.

Q. After Mr Houstoun came up, what did they say?

4. We turned back down to the mill,

Q. Did you hear what the crowd said ?

4. Mr Houstoun stopped them, and asked what they
wanted, and a good many said they wished the mill stopped.

Q. What followed that ?

4. He asked by what authority they came to stop his
mill; and James Speirs said, by the public at large.

Q. Is that the man at the bar ?
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A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean by the authority of the public at large?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of JamesWalker ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see him in the crowd ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was he along with Speirs at that time ?

4. I could not just see whether they were standing to-
gether at the time or not, but they were both iu the crowd.

Q. Were they standing near each other ?

4. They were not far separate ?

Q. Did Speirs appear to you to be active in that crowd ?

4. Him and Walker were the two activest that I saw in
that crowd.

Q. After that was said, did Mr Houstoun say any thing
else to the crowd ?

4. Yes, he asked James Speirs if he would answer for
the whole.

Q. Did Speirs make any, and what reply, to that ?

4. He said, he would, if they gave him authority.

Q. Was any thing done after Speirs made this reply ?

4. There was a ring, and there was men to be chosen to
speak to Mr Houstoun, but I left them at that time.

Q. Did you hear the people say that they were to choose
somebody for that purpose ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect what they said ?

4. No, I do not.

Q. Did you see any thing further of the proceedings of
the crowd at the Old Mill 7

A. Yes, I went by the back side of the mill, and I saw
James Speirs and Mr Houstoun, coming up in front of the
mill.

Q. Was that man Walker along with them at that time ?

A. 1 really cannot say.

Q. Did Speirs appear to be apart from the crowd at
that time ?

A. Yes, the crowd was behind them at the time.
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Q. Was there a clear space between them, however
small that space might be ?

A. I could not justly say.

Q. As you came round to the back of the mill, did you
meet them ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you get near them ?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you hear what was said by Speirs or Mr Hous-
toun ?

4. No, I did not.

Q. Did you see that crowd leave the Old Mill ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you follow them ¢

A. Yes, in about half an hour.

Q. Were you along with the crowd at Mr Campbell’s
house ?

4. Yes.

Q. Wasthere any sort of halt made there by the crowd ?

4. Yes, there was.

Q. Is Mr William Campbell’s in the way between the
Old Mill and the School Green ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was any thing said or done at the time the crowd
halted ?

4. They made a ring.

Q. Was there any person within the ring ?

A. Yes, James Speirs was in the ring.

Q: Did he say any thing to the meeting ?

4. He spoke, but what he said, I did not hear.

Q. Did you hear the substance of it?

4. No, I did not.

Q. About what numbers do you suppose the crowd con-
sisted of at that time?

4. 1 could not say the numbers.

Q. Was it a great crowd ?

4. Yes, a very great crowd.

Q. At the time that Speirs was speaking, were you be-
hind the crowd ?
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Q. Did any person propose Parker to be preses ?

A. I did not hear who it was.

Q. Did you observe how he was chosen ?

A. No, I did not; I went a pace back from the ring at
the time.

Q. But you saw him act as preses

A. Yes, I saw him in the centre after that.

Q. You knew he was preses ?

4. Yes.

Q. Then this other person was in addition to Speirs,
Walker, and Parker, the preses?

4. Yes.

Q. There were four in all in the ring ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you cbserve the hat of that fourth man?

4 No, I did not.

Q. Did James Walker do any thing ?

4. Yes.

Q Whatdid hedo? ..

A. He read a Proclamation.

Q. To the people ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was this Proclamation about? .

4. About stopping all public works.

Q. Did Walker make any remarks upon this Proclama-
tion ? :

4. He did, but I could not repeat the words he used.

Q. Was it approving of the Proclamation ?

A Yes, it was.

Q. Enforcing the Proclamation ?

Mr Grant.—What was the purport of them ?

Mr Hope.—Was he enforcing the Proclamation on the
people? :

A. Yes, he was.

Q. Read that paper, and see whether that is the Proclama-
tion, which you heard read, and have the goodness, in read-
ing it, if you recollect any of the remarks made upon particu-

VoL. I1I. F






import, or any similar ones, which may have been in his
possession since the 31st of March last. Walker, who is in-
dicted with this man, has absconded : we cannot serve him
with notice as to this Proclamation ; and if this witness states
that that Proclamation had the Address your Lordship has
mentioned, it is regular to say to this witness, was that Ad-
dress the one you heard read ? One of the strongest instances
of this line of examination, was in the case of Gerald, in 1794,
(and the principle is the same, in both Scotch and English
law,) where the counsel for the prisoner insisted on the clerk
of Court reading a paper, in order that the witness might be
_desired to say whether or not the speech that he heard spoken
was the same that he heard read, or whether it was not the
whole in substance. But we can ask some other questions,
in order to arrive at the contents of the Proclamation which
Walker read. :

Mr Grant.—Now, my Lord, I think it may save time if
we state—

Mr Hope.—We have some other questions to ask first.
Did you see any paper posted up any where in Johnstone,
or the neighbourhood ?

A. Yes, I saw two.

Q. When was that ?

4. 1 saw them up; they were posted up.

Q. When was that ?

4. 1 saw one upon the Sunday morning.

Q. Where was it ?

4. It was on the porch of the church.

Q. Do you recollect the title of that Address? what was
it called ?

4. It was an Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain
and Ireland.

Q. How did it begin ? what was the substance of the first
sentence, do you remember ?

4. I do not remember what it was.

Q. Do you recollect any part of the substance of it ?

4. No, I do not.

Q. Tell us what it was about.

4. 1 did not mind what it was about; I only read it once.

-
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4. No, he did not condemn it ; they huzzaed at the end
of every paragraph.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Before the cheers were given, do you
mean to say Walker made some observations, which you do
not recollect ?

A. Yes, he did.

Mr Hope.—Did Speirs say any thing after this ?

4. Not that T seed.’

Q. Did you hear what the object of the meeting was,
from what was said and done?

4. No, T did not.
Q. Did you hear any thing proposed or agreed to ?
A. No, Idid not, for I went away at the time it was agreed
to. .
Q. Did you see them march away from it ?
4. Yes.
Q. Were they in the umesortofordertbltyoutoldus
they were before ?
4. Yes
Q. Did you observe who was in the front?
4. No.
Q. Did you know where they went to ?
4. Yes, they went to the Hagg Mill.
Q. Did you go there ?
4. Yes, but the mill was stopped before I got up.
Q: Did you see any, and which of those fourpenons who
were within the circle at the Hagg Mill ?
4. Yes, I seed James Speirs at the Hagg Mill.
Q. Was Walker there ?
4. T could not really say to Walker.
Q. What was Speirs doing at the Hagg Mill? ~
. He was standing like the rest of them.
. Did you observe him saying any thing at the time ¢
. No.
Did you see Robert Parker there ?
Yes.
Did you see that crowd go away ?
Yes.
Do you know where they went to ?

OhOhONOAN
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. To the Cartside Mill.
. What did they do there ?
They stopped that mill too.
. Were you present ?
. Yes.
Did you see it ?
Yes.
. Did you see any of the persons whom you have named
at Cart,slde Mill?

4. No, I did not see Walker or James Speirs there.

Q. Did you see Parker?

A. No, I do not remember Parker either.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of John Lang ¢

A. No, I do not, I seed a person they called John Lang,
but I do not know him.

Q. How was that person dressed ?

A. He had on a black hairy cap.

Q. Where did you see him ?

A 1 saw him at the Laigh Mill.

Q. At the same time that Speirs was there ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see him at the School Green meeting ?

4. No.

Q. Or at any of the other places ?

4. No, I did not.

Q. Did that man with the hairy cap appear to be active
at the Laigh Mill?

4. I did not see him take any active part.

Q. Was it such a cap as that ? (pomtmg to a cap.)

4. 1 could not say whether that is the cap or not, but it
is like it.

Q. The Old Mill was stopped upon the Monday, you told
us?

OAROANOADON

Yes.

. Did you stop work along with the others ?

Yes.

What Was your motive in stopping work ?

. I was afraid of myself.

In consequence of the proceedings of this mob ?

OChOAOM
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4. Yes

Q. Look at that man, (Lang,) is that the man who had
the hairy cap on ?

4. 1 will not swear to the man.

Q. Do you think that is him ?

A. 1 think it is the man, but I will not swear to it.

- Cross-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. You have said that the Old Mill was stopped between
ten and eleven that morning ?

4. Yes

Q. That you are sure about ?

. 4. Yes, we stopped work ; the mill went to dinner time,
and then stopped, but the spinners stopped before.

Q. You have been asked about the Address or Proclama-
tion that Walker read at the meeting at the School Green,
and a paper has been shewn you, and you have been asked
whether you think that is the same paper, and I think I un.
derstood you to say that you did not recollect what the paper
was that Walker read on the School Green.

A. It began with the words, ¢ An Address to Great Bri-
tain and Ireland.”

Q. But you told us that you did not remember any of the
rest of the contents of it?

4. No, I do not.

Q. And you said that you remembered no more of it
than that it was about stopping public works ?

4. Yes.

Q. Now, if you remember no more of it than that, how
can you take upon you to say that that paper is the same
with what Walker read ?

A. Because when I read over that, there were some words
came into my memory that I heard Walker say.

Q. So that your recollection of *what Walker said is de-
rived from the paper that you have read here ?

4. Yes.

Mr Hope.—You say that when you were «eading that
paper, some of the words which you read came into your
mind as some of those which you heard Walker use ?
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Lord Chicf Baron Shepherd.—Now after saying he had

forgotten all the rest, and seeing his memory was struck,
from looking at that paper,—with what he heard Walker
read, I wished to ask him, What do you now recollect of
that paper ; exercise your recollection as far as you can, and
state what Walker said.
- Mr Grant.—Does your Lordship see any distinction be-
tween the case of this paper, and a paper that the witness
might have written himself at a subsequent period of time
83 a note, because your Lordship knows very well that a
witness is allowed to look, in order to refresh his memory,
at a note which he has made at the time, but a witness is not
allowed to refresh his memory by a note which he has him-
self made at a subsequent time ; now, I cannot, I confess, see
any distinction between his looking at a note which he him-
self has made at a subsequent time, and looking at a paper
which is put into his hands, containing either a note that
somebody else has made, or a record of some other sort up-
on the question, but something or other which the witness
thinks it necessary to see, before he can speak from memory
to what passed.

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—I quite agree with you,
but you do not understand the question I put. If I had
said, * Look at the paper "and refresh your memory by it,
and tell us what you recollect Walker to have said ;” that
‘would be putting into his hands that which he would not
have a right to refresh his memory by ; buit leaving the pa-
per out of the question, I want him, after he has been ex-
amined, and cross-examined, and re-examined, to close his
examination by this question: Now, after all the questions
Yyou have been asked, endeavour to recollect yourself; and
tell us whether you do remember any part of what Walker
stated, and what that is that you do remember.

Myr Grant.—Certainly pointing out to the witness, as I
am sure your Lordship will, that he is not to speak from this
peper, but from the recollection of his own mind.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—Just so, from his recollec-
tion, called up how you please ; you know what an-extraor-
dinary operation the human mind is—that things are called
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to our recollection by some very extraordinary circumstance,
on which the mind flashes back ; now, after this man’s exami-
nation and re-examination, I wish to ask, after all that has
been passing, tell us what you recollect Walker to have said ?

Mr Grant.—From your own memory.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—Now endeavour, as well as
you can, to recollect yourself, and tell us if you do recollect
any part of what Walker said he read from the paper, and
what that is that you do recollect.

4. He appearcd to say, that he would advise all them that
had works, to give them over, for to stop their works.

Q. Do you recollect any other part ?

A. There was another part, where it says, ¢ Soldiers, to
plunge your bayonets into the hearts of your brothers and
fathers.”

Q. Do you recollect any more?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Do you at all remember how he began ?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Nor how the paper ended ¢

A. No, I do not remember.

Q. 1think you said Walker stated that he had taken the
paper from the church gate or door ¢
. Yes.

Did you ever see any paper on the church-door or gate ?
Yes.

. Did you read it when it was stuck up there ?

. Yes, I did.

. Can you recollect what you read upon the church gate,
or any part of it?

A. No, I do not.

Q. How did it begin ¢

4. I cannot tell; I do not remember how it began.

Q. Did you see the paper in Walker’s hand ¢

4. Yes.

Q. Then, though you cannot remember the contents of
the paper on the church gate, do you remember what sors
of appearance it had ?

A. Tt was just about the size of that you let me see.

O hONOR
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Q- You saw a paper on the church gate ?
A. Yes. &

Q. You saw another in Walker’s hand ?
A. Walker said it was the same one.

Q. You saw a paper in Walker’s hand ?
A. Yes.

Q. Did that appear to be the same sort of paper that you
saw on the church gate ?

4. 1 could not say whether it was the same paper or not.

Q. Did it look like the same ?

4. Yes, it did.

Q. Was it like that paper, in appearance, which you have
produced here ?

A. Yes.

Lord Justice Clerk.—When Walker read what you call
the Proclamation, in the circle, or the ring, did it appear to

you at that time to be what you had read upon the chapel
gate ?

A. Yes, it did.

WiLLIAM CAMPBELL—swO0n.

Ezamined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. Where do you live ?

4. In the town of Johnstone.

Q. You lived there in April last ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect, in the beginning of that month, a
‘Towd being about your door?

4. 1 do, upon Monday the 3d of April.

Q. Your profession is that of a writer in Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect about what time in the forenoon this
Was?

4. 1 think it was about ten o'clock.

Q. Did the crowd stop in the street any time ?

4. 1 first saw the crowd about ten o’clock, assembled be-






4. 1 heard no more; they went awsy, and I came to
Paisley.

Q. Did any body else speak ?

4. 1 heard no voice but those I have mentioned.

Q. And you cannot recall to your recollection any thing
fuxther of the words or the substance?

4. T cannot.

ANDREW ARCHIBALD=—SWOrs.
Examined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You are clerk to Mr Campbell the writer in John-
stone ?

4. I am.

Q. The last witness that was examined here ?

4. Yes.

Q. You were so in April last ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you happen to be in his house upon a Monday,
in the beginning of April?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you remember a crowd collecting before his house ?

4. Yes.

Q. At what time of the day was it?

4. About ten.

Q. Do you remember the day of the month ?

4. I think it was the third of April.

Q. Had you seen that crowd before that morning ?

4. 1 saw them a little before they came up to Mr Camp-
Bell’s house.

Q. Where were they ¢

A. They were down about Mr Houstoun’s Mill ?

Q. The Old Mill ?

4. Tt is not called the Old Mill.

Q. What then?

4. Mr Houstouns Mill; he has another mill called the
Old Mill.
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Q. What o'clock was it then?

4. It was immediately before they stood opposite Mr
Campbell’s door.

Q. What happened, when they came opposlte, at Mr
Campbell's house ? -

A. A man addressed the crowd opposite Mr Campbell’s
door,

Q. Was there a circle formed ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you hear what the man said ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did he address them from the circle ?

4. He addressed them,-when they formed a circle round
him.

Mr Maconochie.—Did you hear what he said ?

4. Iheard part of it ; I do not recollect the precise words :
he invited all those who wished their country’s freedom, to
meet in the Green, or the Square of Johnstone, at twelve o'-
clock that day.

Q. Would you know that man again ?

4. T would have a notion of his general appearance.

Q. Had you seen that same man any time previous to that
morning ?

A. Never, to my knowledge.

Q. You had not seen him that day before ?

A. No.

Q. Would you know that man again ?

4. T am not sure that I would.

Q. Look at the prisoner ?

A. [ could not say positively that was the same man ; he
was a man much of that appearance, making an allowanee
for the difference of his dress.

Q. How was he dressed ?

4. I cannot be certain ; but I think he had on a jacket
of some kind of fustian.

Q. He was a man of the same size ?

A. Of the same size.

Q. Had you seen Mr William Houstoun that morning
before ?

A. I do not remember that I had.
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Lord Justice Clerk.—Did any other body speak to the
people formed in the ring ?

A. There was some other man eked his words, and men-
tioned Mr Houstoun’s name ; but I do not know who it was
—the person who spoke first, said, that he was sure of it,
—that all would attend, except deluded men ; another person
said, ¢¢ Such as Mr Houstoun.”

Q. “ Such as Mr Houstoun,” were words uttered by an-
other voice ?

4. Yes.

JAMES SMITH—sWOMN.
Ezxamined by Mr Hope.

Q. You live in Johnstone, I understand ?

4. 1 live in Johnstone.

Q. And are a wood-merchant there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you a wood-yard there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts is your wood-yard situated in Johnstone?

4. It is attached to the School-Green.

Q. Were you in Johnstone about the begmmng of last
April?

A. The first day of April.

Q. And the subsequent days, were you there?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you notice any thing particular going on in the
&reen, about the commencement of April ?

4. T being in the timber-yard, saw a great number of
ypeople assembled on the School Green, and I asked the
ameaning of it, and they told me there was to be a meeting
there, and I went to see who was there, and the crowd was
coming in from all quarters. It was the first Monday in
April.

Q. After you saw this crowd of people in the green, did
You see any other party join them ?

4. 1 seed from the church-gate, three people coming down
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4. Theve was another person that they chose as a preses ;
but he came after the ring was formed a little while.

Q. Do you know who that person was ?

4. Yes; they called him Robert Parker.

Q. Do you know gny of the three persons whom you
mentioned ?

4. I did not know them pemnn.lly, I never bad seen
the others before that day, to my knowledge.

Q. Will you look at that man; was he one of them P
(#he prisoner.)

4. I could not say.

Q. Do you think he was one of them ?

4. I could not say; I could not swear to his being
there. :

Q. Did you, at the time that you were standing amongst

the crowd, ask any of the crowd the names of any of those
three persons ? :

A. Yes; I asked their names, and they told me.

Lord Justice Clerk.—The names of those in the ring ?

A. Yes.

Mr Hope—~What name did you receive in answer ?

A. They called one of them Speirs, and one of them

Walker. .
Q. Did you know the other man, or did you ask his
Dame ?

A. They called the other Smillie, I think.

Q. Will you have the goodness to tell us, as distinctly as
Yo can recollect, what you heard and saw done, and what
those different persons did whose names you received upon
thaat occasion

A. There was one of them read a paper ; that one that
‘-hey called Walker ; the paper that was taken off the church

Q- Did that appear to you to be the paper which one of
thaore three persons had in his hand when they came to the
S<chool Green.

4. It was the very same paper that was upon the church
Rnxd gate, and posted up in the corners of the streets.

VoL. 1v. c
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A. After they had chosen a preses, they then proposed
going down in a body, and stopping public works.

Q. This was proposed amongst themselves, you say ; was
it proposed by any of the persons within the ring ?

4. Yes, by some of those that were in the ring. :

Q. Did they state for what purpose the public workn were
to be stopped ?

A. They said that the object they had in view, in stop-
ping the public workss was, that they might have a greater
body to assist them in what they intended.

Q. Was this said by a person who was in the ring ? who
proposed the public works to be stopped ?

4. Some of those four.

Q. Did they say what they intended to do ?

A4, They said that there might be less bloodshed in the
conflict if they got a great body to support them.

Q. Repeat it again.

4. The object of their stopping the mills was, that they
might get a larger body to assist them, t.hat there might be
less bloodshed in the conflict.

Q. Did they say any thing further about this object that
they had in view ?

4. They proposed then to march off in regular order to-
wards the mills; and one of them said, that they would
warch away in a regular body, as they had been all trained
to fall into ranks.

Q You said, that by getting a greater body there would
be less bloodshed in the conflict; did they state what that
conflict was to be ?

4. They did not say.

Q Was it discussed or arranged among them who was to
be leader in going to stop the mills ?

4. They had rather a few words amongst themselves ;o=
one said one, and another said another.

Q. Were any names mentioned at that time, when one
said it was to be one, and another another ? -

A. None that I recollect.






) 101

Q How was this paper that was read, and this remark,
received by the crowd ?

4. It was received by shouts of huzzas.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Do you mean at the end of the paper,
or at the end of the remark ?

4. At the end of sentences they were hurraing.

Mr Hope.—Did any other symptoms of feeling follow that
observation in regard to Spain ?

A. There was a huzza like the rest.

Q. Had you seen any papers affixed to any part of the
walls, or in any part of the village of Johnstone, before this ?

4. T had seen a paper at the corner of one of the hduses
in Johnstone, exactly the same words as those that were
read.
Q. Do you mean the words read on the Monday ?

A. Yes, on the School Green.

Q. Do you know in what part of Johnstone that was ?

4. It was upon the corner of Mrs Johnstone’s house, at
the corner of the square.

Q. Had you seen that paper before the meeting at the
School Green ?

A. 1 saw it upon the Sabbath before.

Q. Was that the day before ?

4. The day before.

Mr Hope.—I now propose to show the paper to the wit-
ness.

LordJustice Clerk.— After giving his account of this paper,
the substance and outline of it, he says it was exactly the same
as that which he saw at the corner of Mrs Johnstone’s house ;
and therefore they may shew it him.

Mr Hope.—He stated, my Lord, that the one that he saw
was the same words with the one at the green.

Mr Grant.—And you propose to shew him it, to ask
whether that is the same paper ?

My Hope.—I am going to shew it to him, and to ask him
whether it is a similar paper.

(The witness looked at a paper.)

Mr Hope.—Do you believe this to be the same which you

saw posted up in Johnstone ?
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Crosscxamined by Mr Grant.

Q. You gave to us a great many observations that were
made at this meeting—were they made in the form of ‘a
speech ?

A. The Address was regularly read.

Q. Were the observations in the form of a speech ?

A. There were some observations made with respect to

Q. There was no speech then? .

A. There was no speech further, than they proposed to
go and stop the cotton-mills.

Q. How long was this meeting assembled ?

4. 1 did not take particular notice—I could not exactly
.say the time.

Q. You cannot say how long it lasted ?

4. No, I could not say ; they were a long while a-gatber-
ing—there were people on the School Green, I dare say, an
hour before the ring was formed.

Q. That might have been between ten and elevea o'clock
in the day, then?

4. 1 could not exactly say the hour—it was the forenoon.

Q. Do you mean before twelve o’clock

A. Before twelve o’clock, I dare say.

Q. Then there were some people assembled on the green
an hour before that ?

4. Yes.

Q. That might have been before eleven o’clock, if the
meeting was before twelve ¢

Lord Justice Clerk.—Was the ring formed at twelve, or
before it ?

4. 1 could not say—{ could not fix any time, for I paid
®o attention to time of day—it was in the forenoon.

M7y Grant—You paid a good deal of attention to what
was going on ?

4. To the paper that was read.

Q. And to the observations ?
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proposed to go in a body themselves, and stop the public
works—that was one of the occasions in which you made
use of the word * they”—who said that ?

4. I could not say.

Q Hnwdoymknownmmyoﬁhepeoplethatnre
in the circle?

4. I know it was one of the four.

Q. How do you know that ?

A.Thaewmmneofthemtspokethulheud

~ Q. How do you know it ?

4. Because I was in the ring—I was not within the ring,
but in the body of it.

Q. Was it Walker said that ?
- A. I could not say whether it was Walker or not ; but it
‘was some of those within the ring that said that

Q. You say there were four within the ring ?

A. Three ‘when they came in, and they chose a preses,
and that made the fourth.

Q. Was it the preses who said it ?

4. T could not say.

Q. Did he say any thing ?

A. He spoke very little.

Q. But he did speak ?

4 He spoke a little, but I do not mind what it was.

Q. Who was the preses? .

A. Robert Parker.

Q. What is he?

A. He is a shoemaker.

Q. When you say preses, was he placed in a chair, or
upon 2 height in any way ?

4. No, there was no chair, and no height ; he stoodupon
the lower side of the green.

Q. What did he do in his character of preses .

A. He did nothing more, that I saw, than the rest—but
they called him preses, and they elected him by a show of
hands.

Q. Did you see a man there with a glazed hat ?

A. Yes; and a red vest.

Q. Do you know his name ?
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not my object to put questions that are unfair. Can you an-
swer the question ?

A. Put it again, if you please.

Q. What is the reason why you cannot recollect the time
that this meeting lasted, when you recollect the circumstances
that took place there ?

A. 1 peid no attention to the time the meeting lasted; I
only paid attention to the words that were said at the meet-
ing.

Q How long was themeenngmembledbeforethepraes
was elected ?

4. 1 could not say.

Q. TheProchnam,andullthosemmenunponu,
were made before the Preses was elected, I understand ?

A. Yes.

Q. You have said you were some distance from the peo-
ple when they went off in the sort of order you have descri-
bed ?

A. Yes, they went away towards the mills, and 1 did not
go after them ; I went away home.

Q. Were you near enough to observe whether they had
any staves or bludgeons in their hands ?

4. 1 did not observe any of those things.

Q. Do you think they had any ?

A. I eould not say.

Q. You are not sure that they had not ?

A. I sm not sure whether they had, or had not.

Q. Yet you were in the heart of them, I think?

4. I was in the midst of them, but I saw no weapons of
war.

Q. You saw no bludgeons ?

4. No; there might be a common walking-stick among
them ; some of them were _

Q. Did any body take the command of them, and march
them off ?

A. None, to my knowledge.

Q. Was the meeting dissolved before the workmen’s din-
ner hour?

4. Yes.
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Re-examined by Mr Hope.
Q. You have siated that the town was in great conftmon
that day ?
4. Yes.

Q. Was this in consequence of the proceedings of thls
crowd ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did it appear to you that there were strangess in' the
town ?

A. Yes, people I did not know.

Q. Were the shops shut in the afternoon, partly ?

4. 1 cannot say.

Q. Did your work people strike work ?

4. The sawyers did.

Q. Did the ordinary mechanics and artwansworkmthe
town?

4. So far as I know, they did, in small shops. :

Q. You said that Walker was the principal speaker ?

A. Yes; if any of the others spoke, it was but little, for
I did not hear them say any thing. -

Q. Who proposed the stopping of the mills ? -

4. I cannot say.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Were any of your work people
standing with you at this time ?

4. Yes, two of my sawyers were, Arthur M*Nichol and
Robert Burnett.

JAMES PATBICK=—S$t00rN.
Ezamined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. What are you by trade ?
A. A collier.

Q. Where do you live ?

A. At Quarreltown.

Q. Is that near Johnstone ?
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4. About a mile from it.
Q. Doyourecollect.anythmgofameeungmthe School
Green of Johnstone ?
A. Yes.
Q. When did that take place ?
4. On the 3d of April.
Q Was that upon a Monday ?
A. Yes, it was.
Q Last April ?
4. Yes.
Q. Do you know a man of the name of Parker?
A. Yes, I know him.
Q. At what time was that meeting ?
4. T could not say what time of day it was.
Q. Wasiit in the forenoon ?
A. Perhaps in the middle of the day some time.
Q. Was Parker there ?
4. Ay.
Q What was done there, do you recollect ¢
4. I do not recollect all that was done.
Q. Was there a circle formed ?
4. Yes.
Q. Was there any body in the middle of that circle ?
4. Yes.
Q. Whot?
<. I do not know their names.
Q. Was Parker there ¢
4. Yes.
Q. He was in the middle of it ?
4. Yes.
Q. Was any body else there that you recollect ¢ Can you
axme them ? -
4. There were different people there ?
Q. Was there a man of the name of James Walker there ?
4. Yes.
Q. You know him ?
4. I know him, but I was not acquainted with him.
Q. Do you know Speirs?
4. Yes, I know him by sight.
Q. Was he there ?
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4. Yes.

Q. Did you read that paper when it was posted up ?

4. No, I did not.

Q. When did Walker take it down ?

A. Before he read it on the green.

Q. You saw him take it down?

A. Yes

Q. Did you see him carry it to the green?

4. No, I could not say I did see him carry it to the
green, but I saw him with it, and heard him read it after-
wards.

Q. Was that soon after ?

4. A short time after, ten minutes, I dare say.

Q. How long might it be after he took it down, that you
beard the paper read ?

A. About ten minutes or a quarter of an hour.

Q. Were there many people with him when he took it
down ?

A. There were a good deal of people standing about the
&ate, at the time he took it down.

Q. How is the chapel-gate by the green ; unneant?

4. Close upon it.

Q. Did Walker, when he took down that paper, Jult go
©nto the green with it?

4. Yes.

Q. You heard the paper read, I think you said ¢

4. Yes, I heard him reading it.

Q. Do you recollect the beginning of it ?

4. No, I could not say.

Q. Was it an Address ?

4. Ay, I suppose it was.

Q. Do you recollect to whom it was addressed ; vhatwas
At the top of it?

4. I could not say.

Q. Can you tell any thing that was in it? you heard it
Tead, you know.

4. I couild not say that I recollect it.

Q. I do not ask the words, but can you tell the substance
of any thing that was in it ?
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‘4. 1 do not remember any of the words.

Q. You say that all those three or four people, whom you
mentioned as being within the ring, spoke to those about
them ?

A. Yes, they were speaking to the folk about them, but
I do not recollect the words that were spoken.

Q. You may recollect the sense of what was spoken ; look
at the Jury, and tcll them. ‘

A. T do not know what it was they were saying.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Attend to the question. Though
you do not recollect the words, do you recollect the sub-
stance of what was spoken at that meeting by any of them?

4. I heard tuem taking the votes whether they would stop
their works or no.

Mr Solicitor-General—Be so good as just to tax your
memory a little more, and let us know what more they said.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Was the vote taken ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was it carried ?

4. Yes

Q. Did they stop the works ?

4. Yes.

Mr Solicitor-General.—1t was carried to stop the works ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was any thing else said ?

4. They held up their hands, and then they went away.

Q. The four persons in the ring spoke ¢

A. Yes. .

Q. Did Speirs speak ?

4. I cannot tell ; I heard some of them speaking, but I
- wannot say what they were saying.

Q. Did you hear them say why they were to stop the
“works ?

4. I could not say what they were going to stop the works

for.
" Q. Did you hear any body there say why they were to
stop the works ? did they tell their purpose for stopping the
‘works ?

vYoL. IIL H
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A. Some of them were saying they were to turn out and
stop the mills, till they got their rights.

Q. That they would stop the mills till they got their rights,
was that it?

4. I suppose so.

Q. Did they say that they expected any thing else from
stopping the mills ?

A. Not that I recollect.

JoEN GEMMELL—swors.
Examined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You are employed at the Hagg Cotton-Mill ¢

A. Yes.

Q. Were you so in April last ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember any thing particular happeniog at
that cotton-mill in the beginuning of April ?

A. Yes, upon the 8d of April.

Q. What was it that happened ?

A. There were a great many people came forward.

Q. A’crowd came to the mill ?

A. Yes,

Q. At what hour of that day ?

A. About one o'clock. :

Q. How many people might the crowd consist of ?

A. T really could not fully answer to that how many there
might be.

Q. In what sort of order did they come ; did they come
in a crowd, or in regular order?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Were there a great many, or a few

4. A great many.

Myr Maconochie.—In what manner did they come ?

4. T do not recollect whether they came in array of four
or six a-breast.

Q. But they came a-breast of each other ?

4. Yes.
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Q. What bappened whén they eame to the mill ?

A. When they came forward to the mill, they made a
halt.

Q. Did any body order them to halt ?

A. T went out anid met them on their way, and some per-
son called out halt ; some person from the rear ; and I ask-
ed what they wanted.

Q. Was there any answér given ?

4. No; they said men from the rear would comte forward
and speak, and Robert Parker came forward.

Q- Is that the shoemaker ?

4. Yes

Q. Was there any other body came ?

A. There was another man came along with him, but he
did not speak at the time.

Q. Would you krew that person again ?

4. T am sure I really could not say whether I would.

Q. Is that him, (pointing to the prisoner.)

4. I could not say that was the man, because he was rud-
di¢r than that man is.

Q. Was he like that man?

4. He wis ruddier ; I ceuld net say positively ; the man

who came with him was more eurly haired.

Q. Did you learn his name ?

4. Afterwards there was some——

Q. When those men came forward, what did they say ?
«did either of them speak to you ?

4. Robert Parker spoke.

Q. What did he say?

4. He said, they were chosen as & committee, so as they

Might ceme forward to stop the public works,

Q. Was there any cry set up from the crowd at thu time?

A. No, there was none.

Q. Did you make any answer to this remark, that they
“wyere chosen as a committee to stop the works ?

4. 1 said, our master was not upon the ground, and for
hat reason we cdould not take it upbn us to stop the public
“Works,

Q. Did any thing else happen ?
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staircase window, and he wished for that man to be taken
down, and the crowd would retire,
Q. Did you order the man down ?
A. Yes, I went in and ordered the man down.
Q. Did the crowd go away ?
4. Yes.
Q. And Parker and this man along with them ?
4. Yes, Parker went away; the whole of them went away.
Q. In what direction did they go?
A. They went straight up the avenue.
Q. Is Cartside Mill near your mill ?
A. T really cannot say what the distance is between them.
Q. Did they go in the direction of that mill ?
4. Yes.
Q. Did you follow the mob ?
4. No.
Q. Do you know a man they call James Walker ?
A. Yes, I know him,
Q Was he among the crowd?
4. Yes.

Cross-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. You say you saw the crowd going up an avenue there;
‘where does it lead to?

A. Tt leads straight to the mill.

Q. Which mill ?

4. The Hagg Mill.

Q. You saw them going up the avenue from the Hagg
Mill 2

A. Yes.

Q. Where does the other end of it lead ?

A. It leads to the road that goes between Johnstone and
Cartside Mill. .

Q. Do you remember any boys at the Hagg Mill attempt-
ing to do any mischief ?

A. No; there was no mischief done.

Q. Had those people any arms of any kind who came in
this crowd to the Hagg Mill ?
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A. Noue that I seed.

Q.

And they did no mischief either to the mill or ¢to any

of the people about it ?

Q.
4.

AONOAOA

None.

. And you saw them have ne arms ?

No.

. Clubs, or sticks, or staves ?
. Nothing at all.
. No offensive weapon of any kind ?

No.

WiLLiaM WHITERILL—0rYS.
Examined by Mr Hope.

You beleng to ene of Mr Houstoun's Mills, [ believe ?
Yes.

Q. To which of them ?

4.

To Cartside.

Q. Were you there about the beginning of April ?

4.
Q

Yes.
Do you recollect any thing particular occurring about

the mill?

4.
Q.
ped?
4.

About the stopping the mill.
When did this take place? When was the mill stop-

It was between one and two.

Q. Between one and two ? Upon what day ?

Q

OLNDRONDAOA

Upon Monday.

. When was that Monday ?

I do not remember the day of the month.

. What month was it ?

It was the month of April.
Did people come to your mill ; or what took place ?
There were a quantity of people came into the mill,

. What was the first that you saw of them ?

. It was Jem Nixon ; and the next was Bmillie.
Any other person ?



119

4. No more there that I knew particularly ; there were a
great deal more there.

Q. Those people came into the mill, Smillie and Nixon ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there at that time a crowd before the mill, or
round the mill ?

4. Yes.

Q. About what number, do you suppose ?

4. T dare say, there would be five hundred.

Lord Justice Clerk~Round the mill?

4. Yes.

My Hope.~Was any thing said by the crowd ?

4. James Nixon.

Q. Was any thing said by the crowd, before James Nixon
and Smillie came into the mill ?

4. Not that I heard.

Q. Did those two men, when they came into the mill, say
any thing ?

4 Yes.

Q. What was said ?

4. Nixon said, ¢ Come away, my boys, tear all down.”

Q. To whom was that addressed ? to you within the mill,
or to those without ?

4. Just to the whole who were upon the stairs, and to
the rest who were ready to go in.

. Q. Following him ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was Smillie along with him at that time ?

A. Yes ; he was behind him.

Q. Had they told you what they wanted or came for, be-
fore Nixon made this remark ?

4. No.

Q. What was said after that ?

4. Smillie said, ¢ Hurra, my boys, come away.”

Q. Did the people continue to advance up the stairs, and
to approach the mill ?

4. No.

Q. After they came up the ptairs and made use of those
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expressions; did they tell you, or any person in your hear-
ing, what they wanted or what they came about ?
4. No.
Q. What else did they say ?
4. I heard them say no more.
" Q. What made them leave the mill ?
4. They went out of the mill, after it was stopped.
Q. The mill was stopped ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it in consequence of what they said, that the mill
was stopped ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they then leave the mill after the mill was stop-
ped?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they desire any thing else to be done, besides
stopping the mill ?

A. No.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of Robert Parker ?

A. Yes.
* Q. Did you see him in the crowd ?

A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts was he at the time that you saw him ?

A. He was advancing up towards the road alone; there

was no person near him.

Q. Was that before Nixon and Smillie came into the mill ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him after you saw him advancing up the
road ?

4. No.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of James Speirs ?

4. Yes.

Q. The man at the bar ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see him there?

4. No.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did you hear any body, whether it
was Nixon or Smillie, I do not care who said it, desire the

mill to be stopped ? -
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4. No.

Q. Then, am I to understand that the mill was stopped
merely from those expressions being used, “ Come away,
boys, tear all down,” and so on ?

4. Yes.

Q. You considered it was stopped entirely by the ex-
pressions used by Nixon and Smillie ?

A. Yes.

Mr Grant.—Will your Lordship ask him, who stopped
the mill ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Can you tell, by whom the mill was
actually stopped ?

A. The master of the room stopped it.

Q. Do you know who that master was ?

A. James Colville.

Mr Grant.—How long have you known the prisoner at
the bar ?

4. About four years.

Q. If he had been there, do you think you must have -
known him ?

A. Yes; if I had seen him, I would have known him.

Q. And you did not see him ?

4. T did not.

JAMES COLVILLE—SwOrn.
Ezamined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. Are you a spinning-master ?
- 4. Yes.
Q. In what mill ?
4. Cartside Mill. .
Q. Do you recollect, in the month of April last, any nym-
ber of persons coming to that mill ?
4. Yes.
Q. When was it ?
4. 1 think it was upon the third of April.
Q. Upon a Monday ?
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A. Yes.

Q. Was it a large crowd ?

4. Yes, a very large crowd.

Q. How many ?

4. I could not say the number of them.

Q. Some hundreds ?

4. Yes.

Q. What did they do when they came to the mill ?

A. They came and wished the mill stopped.

Q. Did any body come into the mill ?

4. Yes. .

Q. How many ?

4. There were four came at the first.

Q. Did any come after ?

4. Yes.

Q How many ?

4. A goodly number ; I could not say the number.

Q. Did any of the people that came into the mill, say any
thing ?

A. Yes; they wished the mill stopped, and I wished to
know why I was to stop the mill, and they said, they were
to stop it by order of the Provisional Government, or the
Provisional Government would not be answerable for any
damage that might be done.

Q. What did you say first?

4. T asked them by whose order I was to stop the mill,
and they said it was by order of the Provisional Govern-
ment, or that the Provisional Government would not be an-
swerable for what damage was done to the mill,

Q. Did you know any of those persons?

4. No.

Q. Was there any body along with you when this took
place ? '

4. Yes, William Whitehill.

Q. The last witness here?

4. Yes.

Q. Was the mill stopped in consequence of that visit ?

4. Yes.

13
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Cross-examined by Mr Sandford.

Q. Do you know Speirs, the prisoner ?

A. I have no acquaintance with him.

Q. Did you know him by sight before this ?

A. 1 had seen the man, but I had oo personal knowledge
of him.

Q. Did you see him at Certside Mill }

4. No.

Q. Was Whitehill along with you all the time you were
speaking to the men ?

4. No, he was a part of the time, but not the whole.

Mr Grant.—We asked no questions st the last witness as
to the array at Cartside Mill

My Solicitor-General.~—No, we give up thet—you will
hear no more of that.

JoHN BrobpiE—sworn.
Ezomined by Mr Maconochie,

Q. You are a spinner at the cotton-mill of Mr King ?
. Yes.

Were you 8o in April last ?

. Yes, I was.

Where is Mr King’s mill ?

In Johnstone.

Is it near Mr Houstoun's mill ?

. It is between the two,

Q. Do you remember the work being stopped in Mr
Xing’s mill, in April last ?

4. 1 cannot say what month it was in, nor what day of
the month it was in, but it did not stop till the meal hour—
3t stops every day in the meal hour,

Q What day of the week was it?

I think, to the hest of my knowledge, it was——

Q. Do you remember a crowd coming to the mill ¢

ROAONON






125

Cross-cxamined by Mr Grant.

Q. Do you know the prisoner at the bar, James Speirs?

A. No; I do not think I ever saw him, till I saw him
here the last day at the indictment.

Q. You did not see him there ?

A. No.

WiLLiaM MALLOCH—sWOTR.
Ezamined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. You are manager of King’s Mill ?
- A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the work being stopped in that mill
in the beginning of April ?

A. Upon the first Monday of April.

Q. Do you remember a crowd coming to the mill .upon
that day ?

4. I do.

Q. At what time of the day wasit—was it about mid-day ?

A. It was about mid-day, I think.

Q. Was there any body from amongst the crowd spoke to
you ?

4. Yes, a man spoke to'me.

Q. What did he say ?

4. He asked whether I would stop the mill—I told him
that T would not—then I asked his reason for wishing me
to stop the mill—he said others had done it—I told him that
was no sufficient cause for me to stop the work.

Q. Did he say any thing else to you?

-4. There was one from behind him said, ¢ That I might
abide the consequences.”

Q. Did you make any reply ?

4. T made no further reply, than told him I would not
“stop the work.

Q. Did you know either of those men ?.
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A. 1 knew none of them.

Q. Did you know their names ?

4. No.

Q. Did you inquire their names at the time ?

4. Not at the time.

Q. Did you see a mand'then-neofWalke: there ?

4. 1 did not know him to be Walker at the tite, but from
the account that I got of him afterwards——

Q. Did the work stop that day ?

4. Yes.

Q. Why did it stop ?

4. The workers would not work.

Q. Did they give any reason for mot working ?

4. They said they were intimidated ; they were afraid.

Q. Afraid of what ?

A. They were afraid of the consequences ; they said the
work might be burnt, sad soon.

Q. Did the mob return again to the mill ?

A. They returned shout two o’cloek, or between two and
three.

Q. But by that time the mill was stopped, was it #

4. Yes.

Q. Whatdid they do when they observed the mill stopped ?

4. They gave two or three huzzas, and thens went away.

Cross-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. What time of day was the mill stopped that day ?

A. The mill stopped at ome o'dock.

Q. Wag that dinner time 2

4. No.

Q. Before dimmer time 2

A. Before dinner tiare.

Q. Do you know the prisoner st the bar, James Spem’

A. No; I have seen him.

Q. Had you seen him before that time ?

4. 1 did not see him there.

Q. If you had seen him there, you would heve known
him ? .
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A. 1 do not think I would have known him.

Q. But from seeing him now, can yoa say that you did
not see him there ?

A. I do not think I saw him there.

Mr RoBERT MONTGOMERY—sW00TN.
Examined by Mr Hope.

Q. Ibelieve you are a master cotton-spinner at Johnstone ?

4. Yes.

Q. Have you one mill, or more than one mill ?

A. One mill.

Q. What is the name of it ?

4. 1t is called Robert Montgomery’s mill ?

Q. Were you in Johnstone in the beginning of April last ?

A. 1 was.

Q. Did any thing particular occur at your mill about that
time ?

A. There was,
- Q. Was it stopped ?

4. It was.

Q. Upon what day of the month, do you know ?

A. It was upon the Monday, I suppose, the 2d of April.

Q. How was it stopped ? did a number of people come to
it?

4. Yes, there was a crowd of people came, and wished us
to stop.

Q. Did you see any person in particular in that crowd,
whom you can name ?

A. The only person I saw in particular in thet crowd,
was one of the name of Robert Parker.

Q Had you any conversation with any of them ? did they
tell you their object in stopping the mill ?

4. Yes, I had a little conversation with one ar two of
them.

Q. About what hour might this be?

4. It was about half after two o’clock.
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JorN Frazrr—called.

Frazer—1I have been confined in gaol for four months
upon a charge of Treason, and under various grievous cir-
cumstances, and I wish to know whether I appear here as a
principal, or as a witness. I do not know that I may not yet
be brought to trial.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—You will be examined cer-
tainly as a witness ; but you will not be bound to say any
shing that will criminate yourself. ‘Therefore, if any ques-
tions are put to you, the answer to which is likely to crimi-
mate yourself, you certainly would not be bound to answer
them, unless you please to answer them.

Lord Advocate—We certainly have no intention to try
this prisoner. I understand the law to be, that if a man is
examined as a witness, he is not afterwards liable to be tried.

Myr Gramt.—My learned Friend is perfectly aware, it is
in no person’s power, by the law of England, unless he gets
a pardon from the Crown, to prevent his being brought to
trial, because he may be indicted before a Grand Jury by
any body.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—If a witness who is under
a similar charge chooses to become evidence, and does give
evidence, it is always understood and supposed, that he will
not be prosecuted ; but if he has not agreed to come forward
as a witness, he certainly would not be bound to say any
thing that tends to criminate himself ; what the consequences
of that may be, the Court has nothing to do with; all the
Court has to do, is to see that if any question is put that
tends to criminate him, he may be cautioned.

Lord Justice Clerk.—I had thought throughout, that when
any persons have been brought as witnesses, the Crown does
enough in stating they have no intention to call them as
principals ; that is the course they are following now, and
Tam of opinion the witness ought to be sworn, and dealt
vith as a witnes ought to be dealt with.

VOL. III. . I

’
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The witness was then sworn.
Ezamined by Mr Hope.

Where did you live before your apprehension ?
In a house that I had taken from Mr Campbell.
Where was that house ?
. At the back of the new street, Johnstone.
. What was your trade or occupation there ?
. A teacher.
. You have been for some time in Johnstone ?
. I have.

Q. Were you in Johnstone in the beginning of April last ?

A. T was.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of James Speirs,
who lately lived in Johnstone ?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Is this the man? (the prisoner.)

A. Yes.

Q. Upon what day were you apprehended ?

4. On the 10th of April, if I recollect right.

Q. Had you seen this person, Speirs, upon the first of
April ?

A. Yes; I saw him in the evening of the first of April.

Q. Do you know what day of the week the first-of April
was?

4. Saturday.

Q. Where was it you saw him first upon that evening ?

A. 1 saw him on the main street in Johnstone.

Q. About what hour might that be?

A. If I recollect well, it was between the hours of ten and
eleven o’clock,

Q. Tell us what took place between you—what did Speirs
say or do when you met him ?

A. 1 was standing speaking along with an accountant, and
he came to us and said he had an Address or bill.

Q. Was there any thing else said ?

A. After reading the bill, I remarked——-

ADANOROAD
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A. Not to my recollection.

Q. After he brought it to your house that night, in con-
sequence of the message that you left, did the Address re-
main with you that night ?

4 Icdid.

Q. Was the paper which he brought t you this second
time the same which he had shewn to you ‘formerly that
evening ?

A. That never occurred to me ; I thought it was the same,
I cannot say positively. .

Q. Was the paper which he shewed to you the first time
inthe street, and which youreadatthe shop-counter, a printed
paper ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was it a copy of the former one, or the same in sub-
stance ?

4. They were both printed papers.

Q. Had they the same contents ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did that paper remain in your possession that night ?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you occasion to look at it several times in the
course of that night, or in the morning ?

4. T read it to my wife, of course, and I went down to a
neighbour.

Q. Had you occasion to see it, and to read it several times?

4. T could not give my word to it, except that I read it
to my wife, and to a neighbour.

Q. T do not wish you to say about your going to different
people ; but I only ask, whether you had occasion, more than
the time you read it to your wife, to read that paper while it
was in your possession ?

4. T think I had.

Q. Did you read it to any other person but your wife ?

A. 1 went into our neighbour’s, in the same land, and read
it there. '

- Q. It remained in your possession all that night ?

A. Yes.
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A. There was a warm appeal to the soldiery.

Q. What, to oppose the people, or to join the people ?

A. To join the people.

Q. Was there any other topic touched upon ? Did it say
how the people were to do this ?

A. By taking up arms.

Q. Was there any thing else in it, do you recollect?

4. 1 forget.

Q. Read that paper, and say whether it is a copy, or in
substance the same with the one that you had in your pos-
session, (handing a paper to the witness.)

4, 1 think it is the same, as far as I can recolleet.

Q. Have you any doubt that it is a copy of the same Ad-
dress?

A. Most certainly, the ldeas seem to be the same, to the
best of my judgment.

Q. And are the ideas expressed in pretty nearly the same
words ?

A. Yes, I think so. _

Q. Did you see any papers posted up in Johnstone, or
any of the places about after this ?

4. No; I did not see any posted up.

Q. Did you see any affixed to the wall ?

A, 1 saw one at a distance ; but I was not near toit. I
was told it was one of them, and 1 saw people reading it.

Q. After Speirs shewed you this Address in the shop upon
the Saturday night, had you any conversation with him
about it ?

A. No, very little. I remarked that it seemed to announce
a state of rebellion, and disapproved of it, and Speirs appear-
ed to agree with me.

Q. Did you express any surprise at seeing such a paper ?

4. I do not recollect whether I did or not.

Q. Did Speirs tell you where he got this extraordinary
Paper ?

4. No.

Q. Did he say that he had more of them, besides that :
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Mr Hope.—You say that there was some person with you
at the time that Speirs shewed that paper to you ?

4. Yes.

Q. Who was that ?

A. William Read.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Ask him if he can recollect what
Speirs first said to him when he first came up with the paper.
You say you suppose it was curiosity that induced him to
shew it you, and that he appeared to be alarmed. I am sure
you mean to tell the truth according to the best of your re-
collection—What did he say when he first came to you?

- A. I think, to the best of my recollection, he said, here is a
hand-bill, or an Address.

Q. Did he say wherehe had got this hand-bill, or Address?

4. No.

Q. Had you any access to know where he got it ?

A. No, I had no access to know. .

Q. Did he take it out of his pocket at the time?

A. T cannot recollect ; I do not know indeed, whether he
did or not.

Q. You mean to say you did not see him ?

" A. It was darkish you know, being night, and I do not re-
collect that circumstance.

Q. Who proposed to go into the shop to read it at the
counter ?

4. ‘T cannot say that I recollect that circumstance either ;
it is long since now. .

Q. It is not a very common mcndent, for you have told us
yourself, you thought it was exciting the people to rebellion ?

4. 1 do not recollect who proposed it.

Q. Is there any particular circumstance that you can state
upon your oath, which led you to think Speirs shewed you
this out of curiosity ?

4. No; I cannot say, only not being acquainted, and his
stopping and shewing it me, that it was out of curiosity ;
it was a paper that any person might be curious to shew to
another, I think.

Mr Grant.—Will your Lordslup ask, whether the prisoner
asked the witness his opinion of the paper ?
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Q. Will you state to the Jury, if you please, who brought
it to your house ?

A. James Speirs; I did not know James Speirs at that
time, but I was informed that it was he that brought it.

Q. Was it the man you now see here that brought it to

your house ?
A. Yes, I suppose so; I never saw him till I saw him in

Q. Did you know him then to be the same person, who
brought it to your house ?
A. Yes.
Q. What time of day was it that it was brought to your
house ?
4, It was about eleven o’clock at night.
Q. Do you know upon what day of the month—what day
of the week was it?
A. It was upon the Saturday night.
Q. Was it in the month of April ?
4. Yes; it was that Saturday before the business took
Place.
Q. Do you mean the strike of work ?
A, Yes.
Q. Did it remain in your house that night ¢
A4, Yes.
Q. What became of it next day ?
A. James Speirs took it next day, the same man, but I did
ot know it was the same man.
Q. This person got it from you?
A. Yes.
Lord Justice Clerk.—~He got it from you the next day ?
4. Yes.
-8fr Hope.—~Are you sure that the paper which you gave
© that man was the same which you read ?
4. Yes, I am quite sure.
Q. Was it the same which he brought into your house ?
-d. Yes, quite sure.
-Lord Justice Clerk.—You had been told by your husband
glve it him, if he called for it, had you not ?
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Q. James Walker ?

4. Yes.

Q Did you sec James Speirs there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is this him, (pointing to the prisoner.)

A. Yes.

Q. Did anybody speak to the meeting ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was it ?

A. Two or three.

Q. Did Walker speak ?

A. He read an Address.

Q. Did Speirs speak ?

A. A few words.

Q. What were they ?

- 4. T cannot tell.

Q. Was there a man they called Lang that spoke ?

4. Yes; there was a man the crowd called Lang.

Q. What did he say ?

4. I cannot tell.

Q. Was Parker the shoemaker there ?

4. Yes.

Q. How was Lang dressed ?

A. I cannot exactly say.

Q. You saw Parker there ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was he preses of the meeting ?

4. I heard some of the people say in the crowd that he
Vras.

Q You know Parker very well ?

4.: Yes.

Q. Had you any meeting with Parker after that yourself'?

4. No.

Q. Did you never take a walk with him ?

4. No.

Q. Did you see Parker at any time, at the Canal Bridge ?
4. It was dark ; I think he was there ; I heard him say-
tug he was there, but it was dark.

Q. When was it? )
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4. T do not recollect very well.

Q. Was it before, or after the meeting at the Scheol
Green ?

A. It was after, I believe.

Q. How long after ?

A. I cannot exactly say.

Q. Was it a day, or two days?

4. 1 think it was about that.

Q. What took you to the canal bridge ?

4. We went there to get staves.

Q. Who went with you?

A. There was two or three.

Q. Do you know their names ?

A. Yes.

Q. Be so good as tell their names ?

A. David Kennoway, Archibald Ballantyne, and James
Currie.

Q. Parker was there ?

A. Tt was dark at the time ; but I heard him say he was
there.

Q. Did you hear that at the time ?

A. Yes,

Q. Have you any doubt he was there at the time ?

A. 1 thought he was there, from what I heard them say-
ing.

Q. You heard them saymg at the time, that he was there?

4. Yes.

Lord Justice Clerk.—I understand you to say that it was
dark, so that you could not see that Parker was there ; but
that you heard people at that canal bridge say that he was
there; and that you thought, from what they said, that he
was there.

A. Yes.

Mr Maconochie.—~W as there any person therce spoken to,
as Parker ?

A. Yes, I think there was.

Q. Was there a man they called Kirby there ?

A. Yes; I heard them say he was there.
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Q. You say you went there to get staves, did you get
staves there ?
A. Yes.
Q. What kind of staves were they ?
A. Middling long.
Q. How many feet long might they be ?
A. Seven or eight, I think.
Q. Who gave them to you ?
A. T could not tell who it was.
Q. Did the whole of the people there get them ?
A. 1 do not know ; it was dark ; I did not see who got
them. .
Q. Do you know that other people got them besides
yourself ?

A: Yes, I think there was.

Q. In what way were they given to you? Did you buy
them, or how were they given to you ?

A. Yes, we bought them.

Q. What did you pay for them ?

Lord Justice-Clerk.—1 do not say that I think that you
are not speaking out : But you are brought here as a witness,
and no harm can come to you for speaking out upon this
Business ; there is not the smallest doubt, that the Lord
-<Advocate, in the discharge of his duty, would be bound to
«nter a Noli Prosequi against any indictment found against
Yyou.

Mr Grant.—My lord, I submit—

Myr Hope.—This is not the case of the prisoner : the coun-
=zel has no right to be heard.

Mr Grant.—1 appeal to your lordship, whether it is not
<onsistent for the counsel for the prisoner to call the atten-
Tion of the Court to the circumstances of the witness,

M7r Maconochie.—"This man is not a prisoner.

Lord Justice-Clerk.—No.

Mr Grant.—This could be given in evidence against the
“wvitness.

Mr Maconochie—~You say you bought that stick—was

there any thing upon the end of it when you bought it ?

4. Yes, there was.

Q. What wasit ?
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Q. I think you say you heard him say a few word: ?

A, Yes

Q. Did he,or did be not, takennacuvepartmthatmeet—
ing?

4. 1 did not observe him taking an active part more than
the rest.

Re-examined by Mr Maconochie.

Q. At the time you saw Speirs at this meeting, where was
he? at what part of the meeting ?

A. He was in the nng

Q. Then there was a ring formed by the crowd ?

A. I was not there when the ring was formed.

Q. But you saw people in the ring ?

A. Yes. _

Q. How many were in that ring besides himself ?

A. There was others, three or four.

Q. Was that man Parker, whom you mentioned, one of
them ? -

A. Yes, he was.

Q. You told us before that Speirs spoke to the meeting ?

A. Yes, a few words.

Q. And you say he was in the ring where there were three
>x four others ?

4. Yes.

Q. And then you said to my learned Friend, that he did
1t take 8 more active part than the rest ?

4. No.

Q. Did all the persons at that meeting speak ?

4. They were speaking in the meeting.

Q. Were they all speaking ?

4. He took no more active part than speaking those few
rords.

Q. Did you observe Speirs at the Hagg Mill ?

4. I was at the head of the brae, and did not observe who
v ent forward.

Q. Did you see Speirs at the Hagg Mill ?

VOL. IIL x
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A. Archibald M‘Innis and David Kennoway.
Q. Was that man Parker there ?
A. Yes.
Q. Tell us what you went there for ?
A. We went there to meet with a man wbomtnbnng
us some shafts.
Q. Did you get a shaft when you went there ?
4. Yes.
Q. Did you get it from Parker?
. No.
Who was it from ?
. Alexander Kirby.
You said Parker was there at the time ?
Yes.
Did you pay any thing for this ?
. Yes, I paid a shilling.
What sort of a stick was this ?
. It was a stick about seven feet long.
Q Was it rough, or was it worked up at all ?
4. It was rather smooth ?
@. Was there any thing at the end of this stick ?
4. No.
Q. Did you see any of the other people there get any of
these shafis ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see any pieces of iron at the end of the other
shafts that they got ?

4. No, I did not.

Q. For what purpose did you get this shaft ?

4. I cannot rightly tell what it was,

Mr Hope.—My Lord, this is a young man; I think he
might be rightly told that he is in safety.

' Lord Justice Clerk.—Tell us what a shaft is ; some people
will ‘be very anxious to know what it is, and the Jury in
particular ; and remember you are upon your oath.

4. It is a long stick.

Q. With any thing upon it ?

4. No.

Q. A shaft is just a long stick, with nothing upon it

JVICIVIVIV
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Q. About that time, do you recollect having gone out to
the canal bridge, near Johnstone ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that in the evening ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect what day of the week it was ?

4. No.

Q. Was it at the time the strike of work took place ?

A. Yes.

Q. In the beginning of April ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it the first, or second, or third ?

4. T cannot recollect.

Q. It was about that time ?

4. Yes.

Q. Who did you see at the canal bridge, when you went
out there?

4. T do not recollect that.

Q. Was there a young man of the name of M¢Innis
there?

-A. Yes, I think so.

Q. Was there a young man of the name of Ballantyne
there—Archibald Ballantyne ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see a man of the nameof Kirby there ?

4. Yes.

Q. He was there?

A. Yes.

Q. You cannot come to any injury from what you say
here—you understand that? Was there a man of the name
of Parker there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you get any thing when you went there ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was it you got ?

A. 1.suppose it was a pike.

Q. Had it a shaft to it ?

A. Yes.

Q. WasRobert Parker, a shoemaker, there, do you know ?
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4. The weavers in Paisley were a great many of them in
the streets, and appeared to be totally idle.

Q. I believe there are some public works going on in
Paisley—do you know whether the persons employed in
those works struck ? .

4. I know that some of the masons wrought upon the
Monday, but upon the Tuesday they did not.

Q. What was the consequence of this apparent suspen-
sion of labour—was there a great confusion in the town ?

A. There was considerable alarm in the town—the shops
were closed’; and in the public streets, upon the Monday,
about the Cross, they had their window-shutters on at every
past of the buildings.

~Q. Did you receive any information upon the Saturday
night, that led you to desire your watchmen and police to be
pasticularly on the watch ?

4. Yes, I received it on Saturday morning.

Q. Did any of those watchmen bring anything to you in
the moraing ?

4. Not in the morning ; on Friday evening a gentleman
wrote to me at the police office. ”

Q. On Saturday night, after the watchmen were on watch,
did they bring you anything ?

A. They did upon the Sunday morning.

Q. What was it they brought ?

A. Abill—an Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain
and Iveland, dated Glasgow, the 1st of April.

Q. Did they bring various copies ?

4. They did.

Q. Is there a person of the name of Dighton in your
police ?

4. He belengs to the suburbs police.

Q. Did he bring anything ta your office in the morning 2

4. No.

Q. What distance is Johnstone from Paisley ?

A. 1t is about three miles.

Q. In what parish is it ?

4. In the Abbey parish of Paisley. .

e
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Re-examined by Mr Hope.

" Q. Was there any other person along with you besides
Mr Motherwell ?

A. No other person.

Q. Do you know what was the import of the notice served
upon the prisoner ¢

4. 1do.

Mr Grant.—I submit, we cannot have the import of the
notice.

Mr Hope.—Most undoubtedly ; your Lordship will ob-
serve here, that we have another witness to speak to the ser-
vice of the notice ; we are not bound to keep a copy of the
notice ; and having served a notice upon the prisoner, we
may ask what that notice was.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—Not unless he knows what
the contents of it were.

Mr Hope.~He says he knows the contents of it; that is
the question we put to him, What was that notice ?

Mr Grant.—I do not think this is understood ; perhaps
I misunderstand it ; here is a written notice, and the witness
says there was a copy of it taken ; and that he signed the
copy ; and that he read the one ; but whether the original or
the copy, he does not know, he did not compare them.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Did he read the one served on the

Mr Grant.—He does not know.

Mr Hope.~Did you read the paper which was given to
the prisoner ?

A. After the paper was given to him by Mr Motherwell,
X took it from him, and said, I will read it to you, and I

read half it, and then the prisoner took it from me, and read
&the remainder of it.

Mr Grant.—Then it stands thus; that he saw the notice
elivered to the prisoner, and then he took it out of the pri-
®oner’s hand, and read about half of it to the prisoner, when
the prisoner got it back again ; now, that is not reading the . °
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Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd~—That man may examine
them in this way ; he says there was a copy, because he sup-
poses there was a copy, but he does not know there was a
copy at all ; he says he read a notice in a paper, purporting
to be a notice which was delivered to the prisoner ; after that
peper was delivered to the prisoner, he read part of that pa-
per; and it was, as far as he read it, the very thing he had
read before ; he does not know whether it was the same spe-
cific paper or no, if there were two, but at present he has not
proved a copy.

. Mr Grant.—I find it mentnoned in Mr Phillips’s book,
(we cannot have the books themselves,) that there are two
cases ; the one is Gothis ». Danvers, 1st Espinasse, and the
other, Surtees . Hubbard, 4th Espinasse ; the passage in
Plnlhps is 842, deciding, that a parol notice to produce
writings may be proved by a third person, who delivered the
notice, or by one who heard it delivered ; and a written no-
tice to produce, may be proved by a duplicate original.

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—So it may, but it may also
be praved by something else; a parol notice, you know,
can be proved in no other way than by parol ; there is a
written notice, suppose there is no copy taken, it is deliver-
ed to the defendant—I do not see why, there being no copy,
you may not prove the contents of that notice.

. Mr Grant.—Then, if this witness will prove the contents
of what was delivered

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—Yes, he does; he talks
‘sbout the copy, and then, on cross-examination, he does
not know there is any such thing as a copy ; if he had read
the copy, and it had been here, the difficulty would have
been got rid off. He supposes there was a copy, but he ne-
ver read it; therefore it stands thus, that he knows there was
a notice written, to be delivered to the prisoner, which he
read, before it was delivered to the prisoner, somewhere else;
then he goes and sees a paper delivered to the prisoner,
which paper, after it is delivered to the prisoner, he reads
a part of, and, as far as that part goes, it is the same as he
had read before,
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A. T dids

Q. Did you compare that which you describe as a copy,
with that which you served on the prisoner ?
- A. 1did, most carefully.

Q. Have you got that copy ?

A. Yes, (producing it.)

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—It shews we need not have
argued the point.

Mr Hope.—I could not tell, my Lord, that this witnese
had compared it.

(The Notice was read, signed Jonn WyLLIE, Procurator-
Fiscal, Paisley ; dated the 29th July, 1820.)

Q. Were you present when the prisoner was brought up
for examination ?

4. 1 was,

Q. Before what magistrate was the examination taken ?

A. Before the Sheriff-substitute of this county.

Q. Upon his examination, did he make any declaration ?

A. Thisis the declaration which he emitted, when brought
up for examination, (producing it.)

Q. Was that emitted in your presence ?

4. Yes. -

Q. And written by you?

4. It was.

Q. Was the prisoner sober at the time ?

4. 1 thought so.

Q. Was he in his sound senses ?

4. Apparently.

Q. Was it freely and voluntarily given ?

4. Quite so.

Mr Grant.—I beg that question may be otherwise put.

Mr Hope.—The point to be ascertained is, whether it was
emitted freely and voluntarily ; and how otherwise can I as.
certain whether it was done so ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—There is no other way of putting the
question.

Mr Hope.e=Was it freely and voluntarily emitted ?
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A. He is examined to that, and his answer to that is, that
he is twenty-six years of age.

Q. Being examined, megns being mterrogated or asked ?

A. Yes.

Q. I observe here, it is written, ¢ Interrogated, if the de.
clarant.was concerned in taking a musket from a soldier, in
one of the Veteran Battalions,” and eo on ; that, I presume,
also refers to the question that was put to the ‘prisener.

4. Yes.

Q. And the same observation applies where the word in-
terrogated occurs afterwards ?

4. Yes.

Q- How long was he under examination .

4. I could mot say; you will be able to form some idea
of the length of time, from the length of the declaration.

Q. Can you recollect how long he was under examination

4. I cannot.

Q. Was it an hour ?

4. It might be an hour ; very near, I dare say; but 1
only judge from taking the length of the writing, the num-
ber of pages.

Q. Are you sure that it did not exceed an hour?

4. As to the time, I cannot be positive, one way or the
other.

Q. I observe that that is nineteen pages in length of your
writing—do you suppose that you could have written those
nineteen pages in the space of an hour ?

4. 1 have no doubt but that I could do that.

Q. In taking down the examination of any person, whose
examination you were employed to take down ?

4. If the dictator is speedy enough, I could take down
much more.

Re-examined by Mr Hope.

Q. Do you remember any thing particular in regard to
this declaration ? is your memory very strong about what
took place at this particular examination? can you tell us
Whether there were many questions put to this prisoner, or
Whether the greater part was a voluntary statement ?
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4. | cannot particularly say; but from the particular
circumstances, and the nature of the accusation against the
man, I have no doubt it was.

Q. Look at the close of it, and see whether there is not
that clause ?

A. 1 see nothing in the end of this memorandum, except a
reference to certain marginal alterations.

Q. It is your practice to read it over before it is signed ?

A. Certainly.

Mr Hope.—It is freely emitted by the declarant, and on
being read over is adhered to by him, and signed by him,
ong with the Sheriff-substitute.

Re-examined by Mr Hope.

Q. Youmentioned this declaration occupied acertain portion
of time ; did that arise from the number of questions which
rou put, or from the length of the statement which the pri-
oner thought proper to make ?

4. T gave that answer merely from looking at the length
f the declaration.

Q. Was that length in consequence of any pn'ucular

unber of questions which you put at that time, or in con-

juence of the prisoner giving a long statement, freely and
luntarily ?
4. It was entirely, or almost entirely, from the necesury
ph of the narrative.
!. ‘Which the prisoner gave spontaneously ?
'+ Yes.
» Would you have considered you had performed your
‘as & magistrate if you had omitted any parte—e— .
* Gromi.—We cannot bear that.
* Hope.~Hear the question out : Would you have con-
1 you had been performing your duty, if you had
1 any part of the narrative which the prisoner chose
in answer to any one of your questions, however long
rrative might have been ?
think it would not have been doing my duty if I
e any thing else than I did.
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any thing else to be added, those have been read against the

It seems to me, a little confusion arises; I do not say
it has to-night, but a little confusion arises from calling it
a confession ; now, the document is an examination, and
before it is read, nobody can tell whether it will amount to
a confession or not; peradventure, and in some cases it
does 80 happen, that that which is produced, is not a confes-
sion when taken altogether; one part has neutralized the
other, and it has turned out to have no effect at all, except that
some parts of it have given the prisoner an advantage,which,
without that, he might not have had ; therefore, in discus-
sions of such questions, sometimes a confusion arises in not
considering that the question is, whether the examination of
the prisoner is to be read, to see whether it will amount to &
confession or not. Now, the declaration in question appears
to have.been taken by questions put to the prisoner, a great
part, consisting not merely of answers to the specific ques-
tions, but a great part having been a continuance, Mr Hope
said, of a voluntary declaration, I will not use that term, but
call it a continued narrative; but if the whole has been ta-
ken, not under the operation of fear, nor under the induce-
ment of promise, and has been read over to the prisoner, and
the prisoner has voluntarily signed it, the Court are of opi-
nion that it is receivable in evidenee.

‘We are not discussing whether it is evidence of a confession,
but whether receivable in evidence, it may more or less corro-
borate the evidence that has been already given. I believe
that is the opinion of the whole Court, and I wished to state
my opinion, because I cannot but think that the decision re-
ferred to is such as would not be decided again, unless there
was a different state of facts from those reported ; we know
notes are taken without considering specifically all the nice
and minute parts of the case ; and I doubt myself, very much,
whether there must not have been something, which, from the
mode of putting the questions to the then prisoner, was such
as to make his answer amount to extorted answers ; however,
without saying whether that is so, the Court are of opinion,

YOL. III. u
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not remember of having done so: That the only subject
which the declarant heard spoken of at this meeting, except-
the said printed bill or Address, was a proposal about stop-
ping such of the cotton-mills in the neighbourhood as had
not already stopped : That it was carried by the voice of
the meeting, that they should go and stop the cotton mills;
and he thinks the proposal was so carried by the people at
the meeting crying they would all go: That they did ac-
cordingly go first to the cotton mill called the Hagg Mill, of
which Mr William Houstoun is understood to be the owner ;
and having come to the mill, they drew up in a body, and
the declarant, with some others, went to the door of the
mill, and the people who were drawn up called out to cease
working, and the declarant, as he thinks, told Mr Steven-
son, the manager of the said mill, that as the people (mean-
ing the people assembled to stop the mill,) seemed to be en-
raged, it would be prudent for Mr Stevenson to cause the
mill to be stopped: That Mr Stevenson, as the declarant
believes, did thereupon go into the mill, and order those
workers who remained at work to leave the mill, and the de-
clarant saw these workers come out accordingly : That when
the declarant spoke to Mr Stevenson as aforesaid, part of
the workers had previously quitted their work, and come
out in consequence of the people coming to the mill as afore-
said ; and it was because the people seemed to be more irri-
tated at those that still remained working in the mill, that the
declarant advised Mr Stevenson as above-mentioned : That
the Hagg Mill is about a quarter of a mile from Johnstone:
That the people with whom the declarant had gone there,
Joined, as he thinks, by a number of others from different
<quarters, next proceeded to Cartside Cotton-mill, which is
also understood to belong to Mr William Houstoun, and
‘which is another quarter of a mile distant from the Hagg Mill:
That the declarant was somewhat behind the body of the
erowd when they arrived at Cartside Mill ; and when he join-
ed them, he only remained a very few minutes with them,
and while he 8o remained, he saw some of the masters, or sub-
ordinate managers, speak to some persons among the crowd,
Wt the declarant did not wait to see what was the result,
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of the priated Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain
aud Ireland, before-mentioned, had been left during said
absence with the declarant’s wife; and she told the decla-
rant that it had been left with her by one Alexander Cairdie,
weaver in Johnstoue, a neighbour of the declarant's: That
the declarant was not informed by his wife or by Cairdie, of
amy purpose for which the said printed paper had been so
left, nor did the declarant expect that any such paper was to
come to him, although he had previously heard a common
rumour that there was to be a strike of work on Monday the
8d of April. Being now shewa a printed paper, entitled
% Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain and Ireland,
dated Glasgow, April 1st, 1820,” and bearing to be ¢ by
order of the Committee of Organisation for forming a Pro-
visional Government,” declares, That the said paper is simi-
lar to that which the declarant received as aforesaid, and the
declarant now subscribes the said document as relative here-
to: That the declarant read the said Address in his house
that might when he received it, but he does not recollect of
baving carried it ot of his house that night, nor of any per-
son having called upon him that night to see it: That some-
body sent for the Address to the declarant’s house on Sunday
morning the 2d instant, and got it; but whoever it was that
%0 sent for it and got it, it was never returned to the decla-
rant: That the declarant does not recollect of having had
ey conversation whatever with Cairdie concerning that Ad-
dress : That the declarant had been in Paisley on the fore-
nooa of that Saturday, delivering some cloth at the ware-
house of Mr Strathearn, his employer, and he called upon
Jobn Neil, weaver in Maxwelton-street of Paisley, at his
bouse, and probably at his shop also, and afterwards met
vith Neil on the street, although he had not seen him when
he called: That the declarant bad no conversation with
Neil on this occasion upon political matters, but called up-
on bim purely for civility: That upon Sunday, the 2d of
April current, the declarant employed himself in walking
with John Smillie before-mentioned, to Horwood, and then
back again to the village of Slates, where they met with
Alexander Robertson, weaver there, who, some time before
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the speakers, although he got upon the hustings; and he
also sttended various public meetings connected with some
business, at Meikle Rigg’s Muir, near Paisley—all which
be declares to be the truth.

This declaration, consisting of this and the eighteen pre-
ceding pages, with the marginal additions on page fifth,
ninth, and thirteenth, written by William 'Motherwell,
Sheriff-clerk Depute of Renfrewshire, is freely and volun-
tarily emitted by the declarant, and on being read over, is
adhered to by him, and signed by him, along with the She-
riff-substitute, examinator at place and date first above
written, before the witnesses—James Brown, Superintend-
ant of Police in Paisley; William Crichton, Corporal of
Police for the New Town of Paisley ; and the said William
Motherwell, eight words delete before signing.

, (Signed) Jaus Srrims.

ALEXANDER CAMPBELL.

Jauzs BrowN, Witness.
W. MorazrwzLL, Witness.
WiLL. Cricuron, Witness.

My Hope—~Now, we will read the Address.

My Grant.—Whichof them ? do you read the same asthe
prisoner refers to in his examination ?

My Hope—Yes, the same paper.

My Grant.—TI think they are at liberty to read the Ad-
dress, it being referred to in his own declaration. I do not
wish to make objections where I think I have no cause. '

(The Address was read as follows.)

ADDRESS TO THE INHABITANTS OF GREAT BRITAIN
AND IRKELAND.

¢ Friends and Countrymen,—Roused from that torpid
state in which we have been sunk for so many years, weare
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battles of liberty, refuse to fight those of your own country ?
Forbid it, heaven | Come forward, then, at once, and free
your country and your king from the power of those that
have held them too too long in thraldom.—Friends and
eountrymen, the eventful period has now arrived when the
services of all will be required for the forwarding of an ob-
ject so universally wished, and so absolutely necessary.
Come forward then, and assist those who have begun in the
.completion of so arduous a task, and support the laudable
efforts which we are about to make, to replace to Britons
those rights consecrated to them by Magna Charta and the
Bill of Rights, and sweep from our shores that corruption
which has degraded us below the dignity of man. Owing
to the misrepresentations which have gone abroad with re-
gard to our intentions, we think it indispensably necessary
to declare inviolable all public and private property ; and
we hereby call upon all Justices of the Peace, and all others,
to suppress pillage and plunder of every description, and
to endeavour to secure those guilty of such offences, that
tbey may receive that punishment which such violation of
justice demands. In the present state of affairs, and during
the continuation of so momentous a struggle, we earnestly
request of all to desist from their labour from and after this
day, the 1st of April, and attend wholly to the recovery of
their rights, and consider it as the duty of every man not
to re-commence until he is in possession of those rights
whick distinguish the freeman from the slave, viz. that
of giving consent to the laws by which he is to be governed.
‘We therefore recommend to the proprietors of public works
and all others, to stop the one and shut up the other, until
order is restored, as we will be accountable for no damages
which may be sustained, and which, after this public intima-
tion, they can have no claim to. And we hereby give notice
to all those who shall be found carrying arms against those
who intend to regenerate this country, and restore its inha-
bitants to their native dignity, we shall consider them as
traitors to their country and enemies to their king, and

treat them as such.
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¢ By order of the Committee of Organization for form-
ing a Provisional Government, Glasgow, 1st April, 1820.

¢ Britons | God, Justice, the wishes of all good men, are
with us; join together and make it one cause, and the na~
tions of the earth shall hail the day wilen the standard of
Liberty shall be raised on its native soil !”

ALEXANDER CAIRDIE—called, but did not appear.

ANcus CAMERON—swOMNR.
Ezomined by Mr Hope.

Q. Did you serve any notice upon this person, Alexander
Cairdie ?

4. Yes.

Q. You subpeena’d him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you find him at his house ?

A. No. .

Q. Where did you receive information that he lived ?

4. At his father’s at Johnstone.

Q. Were you oftener there than once ?

4. Only once.

Q. What information did you receive about him ?

4. They said he was away from home, and they could
not tell where he was; I left the summons in the hands of
his father.

Mr Hope.—There is another officer, my lord, but it is
not necessary—did you make inquiries about him ?

A. Yes.

Q. And could not learn any thing about him ?

4. No.

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—Y ou will call him upon his
subpeena ; what is proper to be done upon it will be to be
considered hereafter.

Lord Advocate.~—We have closed the proof on the part
of the Crown. ‘
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Lord Justice Clerk.—~Then I think this is the proper
time to adjourn. Before we can proceed with the trial, we
must have some little refreshment by sleep and otherwise ;
therefore I apprehend this is the proper time for the jury
to adjourn. Proper care will be taken of them where they
are going, and we will proceed to-morrow morning with
the investigation ; we will make the hour ten o’clock.

At twelve adjourned to to-morrow morning, ten o'clock.



"PAISLEY CHURCH.

Wednesday, August 2, 1820.

(SECOND DAY.)

My Sandford.
May it please your Lordships—Gentlemen of the Jury,
There are no cases that involve the question of life and
death, which the counsel upon whom the duty has devolved
of conducting the defence, must not view with anxiety and
fear. In the present case, that anxiety is greatly increased
by the novel nature of the present proceedings, and by the
nature of the crime of which the prisoner at the bar here
stands accused. He is, Gentlemen, indicted as having been
guilty of the highest crime which is known in the State—
of a crime which is truly said to include almost every other;
for it is evident, that where treason is committed, and
where rebellion is even partially successful, vent must be
given to human passions and to human iniquity which can-
not easily be restrained. Gentlemen, my duty is, therefore,
an arduous one, and yours is not less so—you are bound
on the one hand by your oaths, to protect the country from
the consequences of treason and rebellion, if that treason is
proved ; and on the other hand, you are bound to protect
the liberties of the country, and every individual in it,
against the law of treason being strained, and the prisoner
at the bar found guilty by inference and construction.
Gentlemen, the present arc cases which a jury is bound
to view with peculiar jealousy—in them the State is the
prosecutor—against the prisoners all the legal talents at
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the bar are generally employed ; and at the same time, if the
law is strained beyond its proper limits, every danger to the
Liberties of the subject may be feared.

Gentlemen, this has been the view of every legal philoso-
pher—Judge Blackstone states, ¢ As this is the highest civil
crime which, (considered as a member of the community,)
any man can possibly commit ; it ought therefore to be the
most preciscly ascertained. For, if the crime of High Trea-
son be indeterminate, this alone, says the President Mon-
tesquien, is sufficient to make any government degenerate
into arbitrary power.” Here the opinion of President
Montesquien is founded upon, one of the greatest philo-
sophers of the day, and the learned Judge goes on to ob-
serve, ¢ And yet, by the ancient common law, there was a
great latitude left in the breast of the Judges to determine
what was Treason or not, so whereby the creatures of ty-
rannical princes had opportunity to create abundance of
constructive treasons, that is, to raise, by forced and arbi-
trary constructions, offences into the crime and punishment
of treason which never were suspected to be such.” These
obeervations, Gentlemen, I request you to carry along with

in the course of the present investigation.
" In order to define what Treason is, the statute of Edward
I11. which has already been quoted to you, was enacted.
Lord Coke observes, upon that statute, that ¢ except it be
Magna Charta, no other Act of Parliament hath had more
bonour given unto it by the King, Lords, spiritual and
temporal, and the Commons of the realm for the time be-
ing in full Parliament, than this Act concerning Treason
hath bad.” Lord Coke states, that in after times, all law-
yers, and every individual in the land, had concurred in
calling that Parliament Benedictum Parliament, the Bless-
ed Parliament; and so it was, for, along with Magna
Charta, that act was the foundation on which the British
liberties have been raised. Gentlemen, that statute enacts,
_ that there are two modes of Treason, the one is compass-
ing and imagining the death of the King, and the other is
the levying war against the King ; of either of those Trea-
sons, a prisoner who is accused, must be provably attainted,
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that purpose, because, as Foster observes, ¢ the distance
between the prisons of princes and their graves is short.”
In the same manner, where there is a conspiracy to depose
the King, this is held to be an overt act of compassing his
death; to levy war is compassing the King’s death, because
no one can levy war without putting his life in danger. Com~
passing to levy war against the King’s person is likewise
an overt act of compassing his death ; but it must be made
out, that it is not a compassing for the purpose of bringing
about any general measure, such as removing all inclosures,
or changing the religion of the country, but a compassing to
levy war in order to compel the King to change his mea-
sures, or to do some act generally.

Mr Justice Foster states here, that ¢ levying war is an
overt act of compassing; and under the limitations stated
in the next chapter, conspiring to levy war likewise is an
overt act within this branch.” 'The author here alludes to
certain limitations to be stated in the next chapter; and
therefore, that you may have before you what is such a con-
spiring as may be founded on to prove the compassing, I
shall state to you the limitations alluded to in the next chap-
ter.

Gentlemen, Judge Foster goes on to state the two modes
of levying war ;—the first, where there is a direct levying of
war, by raising troops and marching in battle array against

the forces of the King; he then proceeds to state what is
& constructive levying of war, where the parties do not
@mppear with all the pomp and circumstance of war, but
“wvhere they are marching with weapons to bring about some
&eneral purpose by force ; for instance, he states, that ¢ In-
murrections in order to throw down all inclosures, to alter
Rhe established law or change the religion, to enhance the
Warice of all labour, or to open all prisons; all risings in
<arder to effect these innovations, of a public and general
<aoncern, by an armed force, are, in construction of law,
Migh Treason, within the clause of levying war ; for though
They are not levelled at the person of the King, they are
mgainst his Royal Majesty ; and, besides, they have a direct
tendency to dissolve all the bonds of society, and to destroy-
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the intended war is to dethrone, imprison, or constrain the
King, or to have any power over him.”

‘Gentlemen, the passage in Lord Hale, which I could not
before find, is this: ¢ An assembly to levy war against the
King, either to depose, or restrain, or enforce him to any
act, or to come to his presence, to remove his counsellors
or ministers, or to fight against the King’s lieutenant or
military commissionate officers, is an overt act proving
the compassing of the death of the King, for such a war is
directed against the very person of the King, and he that
designs to fight against the King cannot but know, at least,
it must hazard his life; such was the case of.the Earl of
Essex and some others.” This shews the distinction that
exists between the levying war against the person of the

- King, and the constructive levying of war where the insur-
rection is purposed to accomplish some general object.

But examples are to be found in the history of the last
centurywhich will distinctly shew the nature of the difference
that exists between the actual and constructive levying of
war against the King. You all know that when Prince
Charles landed in this country, he collected an army around
him, and levied war. Now, every one who joined his stand~
ard was guilty of an overt act of compassing the death of
the King. Again, during the reign of George I., a body of
people assembled in London, and proceeded, with great tu-
mult and violence, to pull down all the meeting-houses of
the dissenters. They thus interfered with a general law of
the state, and were, under the construction gf law, consider-
ed guilty of levying war. But while, in the first case, the
mere conspiracy was an overt act of Treason, it would not
have been so in the latter; for the law in such a case re-
quires the desigp to be actually carried into execution. So
that the conspiracy alone is not an overt act of compassing
the death of the King.

Now, having made these explanations, I must request
you, Gentlemen, to look at the indictment. We there find
four counts or charges of High Treason ; the first two are
under the statute of Edward the Third, which was read to

voL. I1L. . N
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ments peculiar to itself, and different in terms from the
statute of Edward IIL., yet does not, in my mind, very ma-
terially alter the law of Treason, except in one respect,
because there is nothing, as it appears to me, stated in that
statute of the 36th of the King, as far as relates to this case,
which, though stated as Treason, as substantive Treason,
would not, if committed, have been an overt act, manifest-
ing such Treasons as are stated in the statute of Edward
the Third.”
Now, Gentlemen, if I have succeeded in shewing you that
& conspiracy to levy a constructive war against the King
was not an overt act of compassing the King’s death, under
the statute of the 25th Edward II1., neither is it now a sub-
stantive Treason under the statute of the 86th George IIIL. ;
and, Gentlemen, I think that the very words of the statute
are sufficient to shew that the distinction which I have now
drawn was taken by the framers of the statute at the very
time it was enacted. The statute enacts, (after the preamble
stating that an attempt had been made upon the person of
the King,) ¢ That if any person, after the passing of this act,
shall compass, imagine, invent, devise, or intend death or
. destruction, or any bodily harm tending to death or de-
struction, maim or wounding, imprisonment or restraint
of the person of the King, his heirs and successors, or to
deprive or depose him or them from the style, honour, or
kingly name of the Imperial Crown of this realm, or of any
other of his Majesty’s dominions or countries, or to levy
war against his Majesty, his heirs, and successors, in order,
by force or constraint, to compel him or them to change
his or their measures or counsels.” Now, these are the
words of the statute on which the count of this indictment
is framed; it is framed upon the words:  To levy war
against his Majesty, his heirs and successors, within this
realm, in order, by force or constraint, to compel him or
them to change his or their measures or counsels.” After
this, the statute proceeds to devise what is a new Treason,
bat upon which this indictment is not framed, and there-
fore it does not at present come under your consideration.
The new Treason is in these words, separating it from the
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of the et;nspirntors, among whom the prisoner at the bar
was one, to levy war for the purpose of obtaining a reform
in Parliament. Now, that is a conspiracy to levy war to
alter one of the laws of the country, but it is not a con-
spiracy to levy war to compel the King to change his mea-
sures or counsels, because the obtaining Universal Suffrage
or Annual Parliaments does not depend on the King, but
on the Legislature alone.

Gentlemen, the arguments which I have now stated to
you shortly, will be much better and more strongly stated
to you by my learned Friend who is to follow on the same
side. It is now necessary that I should call your attention
shortly to the facts of this case. I shall not detain you by
going over the evidence at length, because it is not my duty
at present to do so; my duty is shortly to open to you the
case of the prisoner at the bar, and it will be for my learned
Friend to sum up and make his observations at length on
the evidence.

Gentlemen, when I heard this case last night, I certain-
ly considered, from the immense mass of evidence which
was floating in my mind, that a much stronger ease had
been made out against the prisoner at the bar, than from
siting that evidence, and laying aside all those parts
which appear useless and unnecessary, I can find. Gentle-
men, the whole case, as far as I can make it out on the
part of the Crown, is this: that upon the Saturday, the
first of April, the prisoner was in possession of a copy of
the treasonable Address which has been read in evidence
before you ;—that on the Monday morning, he was found
with a crowd at Mr Houstoun’s mill, and then he and
another had some conversation with Mr Houstoun with
regard to stopping the mills ;—that from that he attended a
meeting, at twelve o'clock in the forenoon, at the School
Green, where he is proved to have been. Some of the
witnesses depone that he spoke a few words, but none of
them depone to what these words were; and it is evident
that, in any other respect, he was not an active party at the
meeting ; but a treasonable Address was there read and com-
mcnted upon by some person present, The prisoner is then
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luded to. It is the last with which I shall think it necessary
to.detain you, and regards the proof to be brought as to the
prisoner’s previous character. Persons who have known him
for many years will bear testimony to his sober, peaceable,
and industrious conduct ; they will declare that he was not
a man likely to engage in those treasonable designs that are
imputed to him; and, where a doubtful case exists, such
evidence is entitled to weight.

Gentlemen, it is a merciful provision in our law, and wxll
be so stated to you from the Bench, that, in every case at-
tended with difficulty and doubt, the Jury are bound to lean
towards the accused. Therefore, if you have any doubt on
the law; namely, whether, in point of law, a conspiracy of
the nature of that charged is an overt act to compass the
death of the King; or, if you have any dbubt on the fact,
namely, whether, in point of fact, the prisoner at the bar
was an active leader in such a conspiracy, it is your bounden
duty to return a verdict of Not Guilty.

EVIDENCE FOR THE PRISONER.

Nemn M;Vlc,\n—swom.
Examined by Mr Grant.

Q. What is your business ?

4. A cotton-spinner.

Q: Where?

A. At Eldersley.

Q. Where is Eldersley ?

A. It is about two miles and a half from Paisley.

Q. Whose mill is it ?

A. Mr King's.

Q. Do you rcmember a crowd coming to King’s Mill
some time in the beginning of April ?

A. No, at Eldersley there was none came till the afternoon.

. Q. Was therc a crowd came in the afternoon ?






Q. Did you see him before Mr Campbell’s house ?

4. I saw him at the Laigh Mill, but I did not see him
before Mr Campbell’s house.

' Mr Grant.—It is close by Mr Houston’s Mill ?

4. Yes, it is not many yards from it.

Q. You mentioned that you saw the crowd go to the
green—were you upon the School-Green that day ?

4. Yes.

Q. At what time of day was that ?

A. It was between ten and eleven o’clock, I think ; I could
not say the exact time, but it was between ten and twelve.

Q. Did you sce the prisoner at the bar there ?

4. Yes. ‘

Q. Did he appear to you, in that meeting, to be taking
an active part?

4. No, 1 do not think that he did any more than the rest.

My Solicitor-Geheral.—That is rather ircegular—ask
what he did.

Mr Grant.—~1 did not mean it as a leading question,
but I will put it otherwise if it is.

Lord Justice Clerk.—I took down his answer: I do not
think he did more than the rest.

My Grant.—I think he has said he did not see him taking
any active part.

Lord Justice Clerk~—He did not appear to be doing
more than the rest, was his answer.

Mr Grant.—Did you hear him make any address to the
meeting.

A. None.

Q. Was there a considerable number of people there?

A. Yes, there was a good number.

Q. Did you hear any body else address the meeting

A. Yes.

Q. Who did you hear address the meeting ?

A. T have no personal acquaintance with the man, but I
understood it to be Laing ; I heard a number of them tall
out to Laing to give them a speech from England.

Q. Did you hear his christian name mentioned ?

A. No, I did not.
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* Q. Do you know a man of the name of John Laing ?

4. No.

Q. Was he a little man, or a tall man?

A. It is the English Laing ; he is not a very tall man—
a small slender man.

Mr Grant.—Y our Lordship is aware there is a prisoner
indicted here of the name of Laing ; this witness does not
know the name of this Laing of whom I am giving evidence,
and the indicted man is John Laing, and he does not know
him either.—Had he a cap on or a hat?

4. He had a hat.

Mr Grant.—If your Lordship thinks it right, we can
call in the prisoner Laing to shew it is not the man.

Mr Hope—~How can you do that, after telling the wit-
ness 8o ? .

Mr Grant.—Well, we have got, (and it is quite enough,)
that he is a little slender man.—Did you hear any body else
make a speech, or an address of any kind ?

4. 1 heard the Address read at the meeting.

Q. Who read it ?

4. 1 understood it to be Walker, bat I had no personal
acquaintance with him.

Q. Then, I understand you to say that you heard a man
called English Laing make a speech, and you heard Walker
read the Address, and you did not hear the prisoner at the
bar make any address to the meeting ?

4. No, except declining to have any thing to do with
President; I think, I heard him declining to have any
thing to do with it; some of them were shouting out to
him to be preses, and he declined, and said he would have
nothing to do with it.

. Was there anybody, then, made preses ?

Yes.

. Who was that ?

. It was one Parker, I believe ; but I do not know.

. Did you hear his name called out upon that occasion?
. Yes, I did.

. Did you hear any body, in any specch there, make
rcfcrcnce to bloodshed ?

: ORDALKD =
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A. None.

Q. Did you hear any person, in any speech, talk of the
example of Spain ?

A. None, except I heard Walker commenting a little
upon the Spanish soldiery, that was the Address that re-
ferred to that.

Q. I think you said that part of the Address that Walker
read referred to that ?

A. T heard him comment a little upon the part of the
Addrecss that referred to the Spanish soldiers; he com-
mented a little on the conduct of the Spanish soldiery
when he was reading the Address.

Q. But you swear positively that you heard nobody re-
fer to bloodshed ?

4. None.

Cross-cxamined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. I think you said that your mill was at no great dis-

tance from the Old Mill belonging to Mr Houstoun ?

4. No.

Q. A mile, is it ?

A. Yes, I think it is something near a mile.

Q. Is there any other mill between Mr King's Mill and
the Old Mill?

. A, Yes, there are a number of small mills.

Q. Has Mr King another mill nearer than that to the
Ol Mill?

4. None.

Q. You say you saw a crowd at the Old Mill?

4. Yes.

Q. And Speirs, the prisoner, was with them?

4. Yes.

Q. Were you in the middle of the crowd ?

4. Sometimes I was in the midst of a considerable part
<> f the crowd, and sometimes on the outside, just as I could
&Zet along.

Q. Tell us what they did.

4. They walked up and down just before the mill.
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4. 1 did not pay any particular attention to what dress
they wore.

Q. You saw Speirs there ?
4. Yes.
- Q. How was he dressed ?

4. 1 do not recollect, I thought he had on a corduroy
jacket. ‘

Q. You were at the School-Green, I think you say ?

4. Yes.

Q. You saw the meeting there ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was there a circle formed there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who were within that circle ?

A. There were three or four men in it.

Q. Who, pray ?

A. James Speirs was into it. .

Q. This man you heard called Walker, he was in the
middle of it?

4. Yes.

Q. Was there anybody else ?

4. Parker was in it.

Q. Was there anybody else ?

4. And Smillie.

Q. You heard something about a preses ?

4. Yes.

Q. Parker was appointed ?

4. Yes.

Q. In what way ; was it by acclamation ?

4. It was by the shew of hands.

Q Who proposed him ?

4, 1 cannot say.

Q. Did anybody propose him at all ?

4. Yes; there was some person proposed him ; but I can-
not say where the voice came from ; there were a number of
voices.

Q. Whereabouts did it come from—from somebody with.
in the circle ?
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A. No; it was from the outside of the circle. It went
round very generally.

Q. Did you hear anything proposed to be done by that
crowd ?

4. I heard nothing except the Address read, and that
speech that English Laing gave there ; he commented at con-
siderable length upon the propriety of stopping the public
works. I could not swear to this; but I think he said he
had come from Glasgow, and that they had all stopped there;
and he said, it was very proper they should all be stopped,
whether they were men, women, or children: he had only
come from Kilbarton, I understood, though he said he came
from Glasgow.

Q. This proposal of English Laing’s that you spoke about
met with general approbation ?

4. Yes, and I dare say the crowd would have dispersed,
but for that they gave him three cheers.

Q. What became of the crowd after that ?

4. 1 could not say; they went away from the green, to-
wards the Hagg Mill; but whether they went there or not,
I cannot say, for I did not follow them.

Q. You saw the man that read the Address ?

4. Yes,

Q. And you heard him called VValkcr?

4. Yes.

Q. Was that the same man that you saw walking with
Mr Houstoun ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were near enough to see that ? -

A. Oh, I was.

Q. How was Walker dressed ?

4. T think he had on a short blue coat; but I cannot say
for what kind of trowsers he had on.

Q. How was the other man dressed that was along with
Mr Houstoun ?

4. T could not say what he had on; I had seen Walker
some time before with the same dress, but I could not say
what the other man had on.

12
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Q. Were you acquainted with Walker ?

A. I knew him perfectly well to look to. I saw him very
often ?

Lord Advocate.—1I think you said before, that you did not
know Walker before at the meeting ?

4. I knew him to look to.

Q. You said you only heard him named the first time ?

4. T only knew him to look to.

Lord Justice Clerk.—You said you understood it was
Walker ; but you had no personal acquaintance with him ?

A. 1 had no personal acquaintance with him, but I knew
him to look to.

Mr Grant—You have been asked about a corduroy
jacket, or you spoke about a corduroy jacket—is that a com-
mon dress for the weavers when they are about their busi-
ness ?

4. Yes ; there is a number of them has that.

WiLriaM CrLARK—sworn.
Ezamined by Mr Grant.

Q. What is your business, and where do you reside ?

4. 1 am a cotton-spinner.

Q. Where?

4. In Eldersley.

Q At whose work ?

4. Mr King’s.

Q. Is there amill in that neighbourhood belonging to Mr

Houstoun, called the Laigh Mill, or the Old Mill?

4. It is about a mile, or a mile and a half off.

Q. Do you remember being there any day early in April ?
4. Yes, I was there early in April ?

Q. Do you know the day of the week, or of the month ?
4. It was upon the first day of the week, I believe.

Q. You mean Monday, the first day of the weck ?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect the day of the month ?
VoL. 1L o :
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4. 1 believe it was the second.

Q. Was it the first Monday in it ?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you see there? Did you see a great crowd
there?

4. Yes, I saw a number of people walking to and fro.

Q. Did you sce the prisoner at the bar, that man there ?

A. Yes, I believe I did.

Q. Do you know him ?

A. I do.

Q. Did you see him taking an active, or leading part in
that disturbance ?

A. None. .

My Solicitor-General.—Ask him what he did.

Mr Grant.—I submit, I am entitled to ask that question.

. Lord Justice Clerk.—In the first place, you call it a dis-
turbance, which the witness has not described it.

Mr Grant —I apprehend, I am entitled to put this ques-
tion :—Did you sce the prisoner take a leading, or active
part upon that occasion ?

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—The more regular way
is to ask him what he saw him do, and T will tell you why :—
Because one man understands an active and leading part to
be very different from another. Ask him what he did and
said, and then the Jury will judge of it.

Mr Grant.—Upon that question, I am certainly entitled _
to ask the witness’s opinion, as to taking an active and lead—
ing part.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—1I think not; the fact is this=mms,
one does not like to put quite those restraints on Counsemegel
for prisoners that the strict law requires ; but the best wasmesy
is, to ask what he saw the prisoner doing, and that is not 50
leading a question as the other, the answer to which is r—=o0t
satisfactory, because we do not know what the man meca===gns
by an active part. '

Lord Justice Clerk.—After the facts are disclosed, it rmeay
be competent to ask—Was he more active than others ?

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—No doubt about it.

Mr Grant.—What were the crowd doing ?
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A. They were walking to and fro. I could not say they

were doing any particular business.

Q. Did you hear anything said by the crowd ?

4. No, I cannot say that I heard anything particular.

Q. Did you see a crowd opposite to Mr Campbell's office ?

4. 1did.

Q. Did you see the prisoner at that time ?

A. T could not positively say, but I might see him going

past among the crowd.

Q. Did you ?

A. 1 do not doubt but I might ; I cannot positively say.

I seed him down at that place ; but I could not say particu-
larly, that it was opposite Mr Campbells office.

Q. Were you close to the crowd, opposite Mr Campbell's

office ?

4. T do not suppose the crowd halted at all ; I was an eye-

witness to their going past.

Q. Did you hear the prisoner say any thing, or see him

do any thing at that time ?

4. No; I did not hear bim mention one syllable.

Lord Justice Clerk.—1 did not understand you to say

upon your oath, that he was there at all ?

4. 1 seed him going past.

Mr Grant—Was this at the time that the crowd were
aving Mr Houstoun’s Mill, or at the time that they were
wing to Mr Houstoun’s Mill ?

A. It was at the time they were coming from Mr Hous-

’s Mill.

Q. Do you know a person of the name of James Walker ?

{. Yes, I do.
\. Did you see him in that crowd, opposite to Mr Camp-
s office ?
. I seed him coming along amongst the crowd;too.
rd Justice Clerk.—Do you mean from Mr Houstoun’s
Yes ; from Mr Houstoun's Mill.
Grant.—Were you upon the School-Green of John-
hat day ?

was.
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Q. Do you remember any assembly or crowd of people
there ?

4. Yes; I saw a number of people.

Q. Did you see the prisoner there ?

4. Idid.

Q. Did you hear him address any thing to that assembly ?

4. 1 did not.

Q. Did you hear anybody address that assembly ?

4. 1 did.

Q. Who?

A. Theard a man of the name of Robert Parker, I believe,
say a few words to them ?

Q. Did you hear anybody else ?

A. No, not to my knowledge.

Q. Who else did you see there in the middle of the crowd ?

4. T was acquainted with no others but those that have
been specified to me, Speirs, and Parker, and Walker.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Were they in the ring ?

4. Yes.

Mr Grant.—Did you hear anything about the election of
a preses ?

A. 1 cannot say really as to that ; there was such a noise
going on, that I really could not say.

Q. How did Speirs, the prisoner, conduct himself at that
meeting ! What did he do, or what part did he take ?

4. T never heard the man say one single syllable the whole
day.

Q. Did you see him do anything that attracted your at-
tention ¢

A. Not the smallest ; walking among the crowd the same
as other idle spectators.

Q. To what time do you mean to refer this?

4. To any part of the day, except at the time of his be-
ing in the circle.

By Lord Chicf Baron Shepherd.

Q. You say he was walking amongst the crowd, like one
of the spectators ?
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A. Yes.

Q. How many spectators were there ?

4. T could not say.

Q. A spectator is very different from one who forms a
part of the crowd.

4. T was alluding to the whole crowd.

Q. Then they were all spectators ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean to say, that all the persons who werc
there were merely spectators of what was going on, as I or
any other person casually there might have been, or that
they were not forming an assembly for some purpose or
other ?

A. T was alluding to the crowd going back, the whole
multitude, when I said the spectators.

Q. You say he was there like any other of the spectators—
Do you mean that he was there as any person that might
from accident have been there standing by looking on, or
that he was there like one of the body ? I do not ask you
whether he did more or less.

A. That is what I intend to say.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Repeat what you intend ?

A. He was the same as the rest of the crowd, that was go-
ing to and fro.

Mr Grant.—Perhaps your Lordship will ask him this,
or permit me to ask him

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—By all means.

Mr Grant.—Was there a great number of persons assem-
bled on the School-Green ?

A. There was a good many.

Q. How long did that meeting last ?

4. T could not positively say how long it lasted. I was
not there upon the first assemblage; I only happencd to be
there by chance.

Q. What were they doing when you arrived there ?

4. 1 believe there was a man reading the Address, that

paper. .
Q. Did you hear that Address read?
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I really could not say I did, on account of the noise

that was at the time.

Q.

But when you got there, there was a man reading the

Address ?

A.
Q.

Yes.
From the time that you arrived there, where you

found the man reading the Address—how long was it be-
fore the meeting broke up ¢

4.
Q.

I could not positively say.
‘Was it an hour ?

4. I could not determine. I really could not say?
Lord Justice Clerk.—~Did you see any show of hands, on
the School Green ?

4.

I do not recollect seeing any show of hands on the

School-Green.

Cross-examined by Mr Hope.

Q. You are a cotton-spinner, you say ?

AORORONOAONDOADON

Yes.

. You belong to Mr King’s Mill ?

Yes.

. Where is that ?

At Eldersley.

. When did you leave your work that day ?

At breakfast-time.

‘What made you leave your work ?

I had no particular reason for leaving my work.
Had you your master’s leave ?

It was at the meal hour.

. Had you your master’s leave ?

No.

. Had you struck work ?

-The reason we went to Johnstone was, that we wer- —em

informed the works in Johnstone were all stopped, and w— ===

~ went down purposcly for that reason, to sce whether the= %
were, or were not.

Q.

At the time that you left your work at the meal how 1>
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had you then heard that the works at Johnstone had all
stopped ?

4. Yes

Q. At nine o'clock ?

4. Before nine we had heard it.

Q. Did the other workmen at your mill strike work ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you all go to Johnstone together ?

4. I could not say whether we all went or not.

Q. Did you go with others?

A Yes.

Q. Then you can speak to your own conduct ?

4. Yes.

Q. How many went with you ?

A. I could not say the number.

Q. Were there as many as there are in this Court ?

4. No.

Q. How many were there ?

A. Probably a dozen. »

Q. How many men are therc in the work—Are there
fifty.

4. Not so many ; but I could not say the number ; there
might be about twelve or fourteen men went.

Q. And you went with about a dozen to Johnstone ?

A. Yes, I think so.

Q. Where did you go to, when you got to Johnstone ?

4. What we call the New Mill.

Q. Who does that belong to?

4. Tt belongs to Walter Logan.

Q. About what hour was that?

4. Just immediately after breakfast.

Q. You got there by ten o’clock then ?

4. No; we could not be there by ten.

Q. Shortly after ten ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you meet any other people in your way to Lo-
gan'’s Mill ?

4. None therc; therc were a number of people on the
Street,
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Q. Did you go with those people to Logan’s Mill ?

A. We went straight down to Logan’s Mill ?

Q. Did many of the people upon the streets go along with
you to Logan’s Mill ?

4. There were a few.

Q. What do you mean by a few ?

4. 1 could not determine the number.

Q. Were there as many more as your men from King's
Mill who had gone to Johnstone ?

4. Yes, I think there might.

Q. How did you go?

A. We went down the New Street of Johnstone,

Q. Did you just saunter along, or march ?

A. We walked alcng in the same way as if we were taking
a walk.

Q. What did you see at Logan’s Mill, when you got
there ?

A. 1 sced the workers all standing out at the door.

Q. Did you see any body else ?

4. I could not say ; I do not know.

Q. I ask you, upon your oath, whether you saw a great
crowd in front of Logan’s Mill, or not ?

4. None, to my knowledge, but the workers.

Q. Except the people that went with you ?

4. None; I do not think there were any more.

Q. About what number might there be, who went along
with you in front of Logan’s Mill ?

A. I really could not give an idea of that.

Q. You have told us of four-and-twenty ; were there as
many more ?

A. Possibly there might be as many more as there were
of us, about twenty ; there were many people on the street
that might possibly go along, although I do not know.

Q. How can you say that?

A. There were a number of people in the street we were
passing through.

Q. You can tell whether they went with your small party
of twenty or thirty, or not ?

4. There were a number went with us; I could not say.



217

Q. Was Walker along with that party when you first wen¢
to Logan’s Mill ?

A. I did not see Walker.

Q. Was this man at the bar there ?

4. 1 did not see him.

Q. What did you do after you left Logan’s Mill ?

A. T went to my mother’s in Johnstone.

Q. How long did you remain there ?

4. 1 could not positively say; I never entered the house
at all, I only stood at the door.

Q. How long did you stand at the door ?

4. I could not say.

Q. Did you stand till dinner-time ?

4. Not so long.

Q. Did you stand there five minutes, or a quarter of an
hour.

4. Yes, I might stand there a quarter of an hour.

Q. Where did you go to then?

4. Up the town, straight up to the cross.

Q. Did you meet people there ?

A. There were people standing there.

Q. A multitude of people ?

A. Not a great multitude.

Q. A considerable number, compared with the streets ?

A. There were more than what is in general.

Q. Where did you go to next i

A. 1 went away from that round by Mr Houstoun’s es-

tate, and took a walk.

Q. Did other people go with you upon this walk ?

A. No, none but myself.

Q. Where did you go to next ?

A. 1 went round and came down upon the School-Green

Q. When were you at the Old Mill ¢

4. It was coming from the New Mill away to my mo-

©Cher’s.

Q. Before you went to your mother ?

A. Yes; I was not at the mill at all, I was only past it.

Q. Did you go with the crowd from Logan’s Mill to
Houstoun’s ?
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4. Yes, I went along with them.

Q. What carried you to Houstoun’s Mill ?

4. I was not going to Houstoun’s Mill ; it was the way
to my mother’s house.

Q. Was it necessary to go with the crowd, in order to go
to your mother’s house ? I ask you, what took you to Hous-
toun’s Mill with this crowd ?

Mr Grant.—He was not there.

Mr Hope.—He said he was.

A. That is the road to my mother’s.

Q. Was it necessary to go with the crowd to Houstoun's
Mill, in order to go to your mother’s ?

A. T could have stopped till the crowd went away, no
doubt.

Q. You stopped at Houstoun’s Mill—how long did you
remain there?

A. 1 was not down at the work at all ; I was between Mr
Campbell’s office and Mr Houstoun’s Mill ; at the end of Mr
Campbell’s office and the end of Mr Houstoun'’s Mill.

Q. At what distance might that be from Houstoun’s Mill ?

A. Between the two, like the common distance of a street,
I believe.

Q. What distance might you be standing from Houstoun’s
Mill?

4. 1 might possibly be twelve yards, or thercby ; I could
not rightly say the distance.

Q. What number of people might there be at Houstoun’s
Mill?

4. I could not say that there was a great number.

Q. Were there as many people as there are here ?

4. Ireally could not say; I am not acquainted with look-
ing at crowds ; I really could not give an estimate of it.

Q. Were there as many people as you think you sce
here ?.

4. Icould not say.

Q. I ask you, were there as many people, to your belief,
as you now sece around you ?

A. There might; I could not positively answer to that.
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Q. If you were standing twelve yards from Houstoun's
Mill, do you mean to swear that you were alone ?
4. No, I was not standing alone.
Q. You were then standing in the middle of the crowd ?
4. 1 was standing in the middle of a few men ; the body
of the people were away down at the work like.
Q. You said you were only twelve yards from the work ?
A. Well, but they were down at the other end of the
work ; I was at one end, and they were down at the other;
they were at the entry of the mill.
Q. What were the crowd doing ?
A. I heard nothing, nor seed nothing, but a multitude of
people.
Q. How long did you remain there ?
4. I might remain fifteen minutes.
Q. Were this crowd making a noise ?
4. Not a great noise.
Q. Did Mr Houstoun speak to them ?
A. Mr Houstoun went down, but I could not say whether
he spoke to them or not.
Q. You did not see what took place then ?
A. Not I, not down at the work.
Q. You said that you believed you saw Speirs at Hous-
toun’s Mill ?
4. Yes,
Q. At what time did you see him ? was it when you first
‘went there ? '
A. Yes, it was when they were coming up from the work.
Q. Coming up from where ?
4. From Mr Houstoun’s work.
Q. When they were leaving it ?
4. Yes.
Q. Had you seen him before that ?
4. Not that day.
Q. How was Speirs dressed ?
4. He had on a corduroy jacket ; I could not say parti-
<ularly what breeches he had on.
Q. Then, T understand, from your saying you saw him
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when the crowd came from Mr Houstoun’s 'Mill, that you
staid there till the crowd left it ?

4. Yes.

Q. Where did you go to after leaving Houstouns Mill ?

A. T went straight for my father’s house.

Q. In what street is that ?

A. It is in the west end of the town ; the High Street, as
they call it.

Q. You passed Mr Campbell’s in going to your father's
house ?

4. Yes, Idid.

Q. Had the crowd passed Mr Campbell’s before you did,
or did you pass before the crowd did ?

A. 1 passed along with the crowd, I believe.

Q. You were then in the crowd ?

4. T might be so.

Q. Were you so?

4. I think I might; yes, I was amongst the crowd.

Q. Were you among the first of the crowd ?

4. I could not say as to that.

Q. You say you were standing a little bit apart from the
crowd and Houstoun’s Mill; and they went towards Mr
Campbell's office—where did you join them ?

A. When they were coming up from the work.

Q. Going to Campbell's ?

4. They were not going to Campbell’s, they were going
by Campbell’s.

Q. Did you join the first part of the crowd, or the latter
part of the crowd ?

4. 1could not say what part of the crowd I joined.

Q. When you were standing twelve yards from the end of
Houstoun’s, what distance might you be from this crowd of
people ?

A. It might be three times twelve yards.

Q. You said you thought you saw Speirs passing Camp—
bell’s along with the crowd ?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you swear that you saw him on that particular oc—
casion ?
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~ 4. I could.

Q. What part of the street did you see him ?

4. In the centre of the street.

Q. Was it immediately opposite Mr Campbell’s office ¢

4. 1 went from the end of the work up the street.

Q. Did you see Speirs immediately opposite to Campbell’s
office ? was he in the centre of the part of the street opposite
to Campbell’s office ?

4. It was thereabouts.

Q. What was he doing ?

A. He was going up the street along with the crowd.

Q. And do you swear that Speirs did not stop opposite
Campbell’s house ?

A. I could not give my oath to that ; I do not recollect.

Q. Can you give your oath to the crowd not stopping be-
fore Mr Campbell’s house ?

4. No, I could not ; I do not recollect whether they did
or not.

Q. You said before, that you supposed, and was an eye-
witness to their passing, and not stopping before Campbell’s
house ; explain yourself.

A. I do not think they stopped.

Q. What did you mean by previously saying you were
an eye-witness to the crowd passing without stopping.

A. T might err; I do not recollect their stopping.

Q. But you said, just now, you could not say whether
they stopped or not.

4. T do not recollect whether they did or did not; I stop-
ped a good while myself between Mr Houstoun’s work and
Mr Campbell's office, along with those men that I mentioned
to you.

Q. Did you stop after leaving Houstoun's work ?

4. It was at the time they were down at Houstoun’s work,
that I was there.

Q. After they left the work, did you stop before you left
Campbell’s office ?

A. No, I think I went on.

Q. You say you went to your father's after that ?

A. Yes.
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Q. Did you leavc the crowd ?
4. Yes.
Q. And then you went to the School-Green ?
4. I went and took a walk before I went to the School-
Green.
Q. Where did you walk to ?
A. Upon Mr Houstoun’s estate.
Q. How long were you upon that walk ?
A. 1 could not say positively ; I had not a watch with me.
Q. Might you be an hour, or half an hour ?
A. Yes, I might be that.
Q. What induced you to go to the School-Green ?
A. It was in my way coming back from my walk.
Q. From Mr Houstoun’s estate ?
A. Yes,
Q. By which side of the School-Green did you enter ?
A. The side next to the church.
Q. Then you passed round the chapel gate ?
A. No, we did not pass round it.
Q. You passed it ?
4. No, I came through the fields, the backside of tbe
church, what they call a quarry.
Q. What was the first thing you saw when you went to
that crowd in the School-Green?
A. James Walker was reading the Address.
Q. You said you did not hear what he was reading ?
A. The paper.
Q. Did you hear what he was reading ?
4. I could not make it out what he was reading, on ac-
count of the noise.
Q. How do you know it was an Address?
A. The people round me were saying what the paper was.
Q. Had you seen that paper before ?
A. T saw it upon the church gate.
Q. That is to say, you saw upon the church gate a paper,
which they told you was the paper Walker was reading ?
4. No, they did not tell me that was the paper.
Lord Justice Clerk.—What paper did you sece on the
church gate ?
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A. They called it the Address.
Mr Hope.—Did you read that Address?
" A. Iread part of it.

Q. What was that part about ?

4. T really could not say a single sentence.

Q. When was this ?

4. Upon that Monday, the second of April,

Q. At what time of the day wasit?

A. In the forenoon.

Q. When you first went in to Johnstone ?

A. No, when I was coming back from my walk. No,
when I was going away past to my walk.

Q. Did you go direct from your father’s house to the
School Green ?

4. I did not.

Q. You went direct from your father’s house to the chapel
gate, where you saw this paper ?

4. Yes.

Q. Where did you go to after that ?

4. Through Mr Houstoun’s estate.

Q. Did you go through the School-Green ?

4. 1 did not.

Q. Which way did you go?

A. 1 went out past the back of the church.

Q. How did you get to the back of it?

A. Thereisaslap at the east end of it ; and I went through
that slap.

Q. Does that carry you through to the School-Green ¢

A. The road goes down along the side of the School-
Green.

Q. Were there any persons with you at the time you-
read this Address ?

4. There might be some person; I really do not recol-
lect ; there were a great of comers and goers ; I could not
say whether there were persons standing or not.

Q. Did you, or did you not, ‘see that paper taken down
from the chapel gate ?

4. 1 did not.






4. 1 went down to a house in the town to get some re-
freshment.
Q. How long did you stay there ?
4. I could not say; I was there till I returned home ;
possibly an hour.
Q. When did you return home ?
4. In the afternoon ; I cannot say the time.
Q. Were you at the Hagg Mill again ?
4. No.
Q. Were you on the School-Green again ?
4. No.
Q. Were there five with lnm in that ring, or four ?
A. I could not say.
Q. How large might the ring be ?
A. I could not give a positive answer to that.
Q. Was it as wide as this table ?
A. Yes, it was wider,
Q. Were there any others within the ring, besides those
people whom you kiave named ?
A. I think there was.
Q. How many more?
4. I could not say; they were coming and going ; there
was nothing like regularity in it.
Q. Was the ring well kept ?
A. Pretty well.
Q. What size might that crowd be at the School-Green
meeting ; was it as large as the one at Houstoun's Mill ?
A. It might be larger.
Q. Then there were probably more people than you see
now ?
4. It might be so.
Q. Do you believe that there were more ?
4. Could not say that.
Q- You saw Speirs at Campbell’s office—Did you see him
after that, before you got to the School-Green ?
4. T did not ; I went up a piece of back street with him ;
I do not know where I went with him ; when I got up the
street, I went my own way.
voL. I1I. r
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Q. What was the first you saw of him at the School-Green ?
was he within the circle ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see him leave that circle ?

4. No, I was away before the circle was broken up.

Q. You have told us, that Speirs, during the whole time
you saw him at the School-Green, was within this circle?

4. Yes.

Q. What did you mean by saying he was going about the *
crowd like any other idle spectator ?

4. That was at the time he was going up.

Q. You said expressly, that at the School-Green——

Lord Justice Clerk.—He said, except when he was in the
circle.

Mr Hope.—The Lord Chief Baron asked him exclusively
to the School Green.

Lord Justice Clerk.—I have it down.

Lord Advocate.—You heard that there was to be a meet-
ing at the School-Green, when you went to take this walk ?

A. Yes, thcre was some talk of it.

Re-examined by Mr Grant.

Q. You have been asked whether the prisoner had a cor-
duroy jacket on ; is that a common and ordinary dress among
the weavers ?

4. No; I cannot say, one has one garb, and another an-
other. ‘

Q. There are many corduroy jackets in this part of the
country ¢

4. Yes, a great many.

Q. Many persons wear them ?

A. Yes. ,

Q. Did you see any other corduroy jackets at that meet-
ing, except the one that Speirs wore ?

4. Yes, there were a number of corduroy jackets there.

Q. Now, about the situation of Mr Campbell’s house and
Mr Houstoun’s Mill, what is the distance between them ?

A. It s the common distance of a street.
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Q. The distance of the breadth of a street ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is Mr Campbell’s office in the mam street ?

A. No, it is in what they call Collier Street.

Q. And is that the street adjoining to Mr Houstoun's
Mill ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is Mr Houstoun’s Mill in the same street ?

A. Yes.

Q. And then I understand you to say, that there is a
passage, or street, between Mr Campbell’s house and Mr
Houstoun’s Mill ?

A. Yes; that is the way that I went when I was going to

my father’s.
Q. Are they on the same side of the street with the mill ?

A. Yes.
Lord Justice Clerk.—Is the house and office the same?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is on the same side of the street with the
mill ?

A. Yes.

Mr Grant.—And a passage between them ?

A. A pagsage between the two gables.

Q. And this is the passage which leads down to the en-
trance of the work ?

A. Yes, it leads to the works, or up the town.

Q. So that when you were standing at Mr Campbell's
office, you were standing in the street which led up the town ?

A. Yes.

WiLLiAM BLACKBURN=——sm0OM™N.
Ezamined by Mr Sandford.

Q. What are you? are you a cotton-spinner ?

A. No, I work in the ware-room at Mr King’s, at Elders-
ly, as a bundler.

Q. Are Mr Houstoun’s Mills near that ?

A. Yes. ‘



Q. Do you know the Laigh Mill ?

A. Yes. '

Q. Do you remember being thete the begianing of April?
4. Yes. '

Q. What day of April was it ?

A. T cannot say.

Q, Was it a Monday ?

A. Yes, it was on & Monday.

Q. Did you see any thing particular there that day ?
4. No.

Q. Did you see a crowd there ?

A. Yes. :

Q. Do you know James Speirs ?

A. Yes.

How long bave you knewn him ?

Two years.

. Was he there ?

Yes.

What was he doing ¢

Going through the crowd like the lave of the men.
. Did you hear him say any thing ?

No.

. Do you know the School-Green at Johnstone ?
Yes.

Were you there that day ?

Yes.

Did you see any thing there ?

No.

Did you see a crowd there ?

Yes, there was a crowd there.

Did you see Speirs there ¢

Yes.

. What was he doing ?

. He was going through the crowd like the lave of the
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Did you hear him say any thing ?
4. No.
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Cross-cxamined by Mr Hope.

Q. Have you had any conversation with any body about
the subject of this trial ?

4. No.

Q. At no time?

4. No.

Q. Were you in Johnstone last week at a meeting ?

4. No.

Q. Will you swear that ¢

4. Yes.

Q. Or at Eldersly ?

4. No.

Q. Had you conversation with any of the relations or
friends of the prisoner, about the subject of this trial ?

4. No.

Q. At no time?

4. No.

TroMAS LocAN—ewOrR.
Examined by Mr Grant.

What are you ?
. A cotton-spinner.
Where P
. At Eldersly.
In whose employ ?
Mr King’s.
Do you know the prisoner at the bar, James Speirs ?
Yes, I have séen him.
Do you know him by sight ?
Yes, I have seen him, but I am not particularly ac-
quainted with him.
Q. Do you remiember a crowd at Mr Houstoun’s Laigh
Mill in Johnstone, some time the beginning of last April ?
4. Yes.

NOAOKOAON®
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Q. At what time was that?
A. The third of April.
Q. Did you see a crowd leave the mill at that time ?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the house of a Mr Campbell, in that
neighbourhood ?
A. Yes.
Q. Is that near to Mr Houstoun’s Mill—the Laigh Mill?
4. It is not far from it.
Q. Were you at Mr Campbell's door that day, or at the
side of his house ?
A. I was in the middle of the crowd opposite it.
Q. Was that at the time the crowd was lecvmg Mr Hous-
toun’s Mill.
4. Yes.
Q. Do you know a person of the name of JamesWalker?
4. 1 seed him that day ; but I never seed him before.
" Q. Do you know him by sight ?
4. No.
Q. Did you hear any persons say any thing opposite to
Mr Campbell’s house, from the crowd ?
A. All that T heard was, that man as they called Walker
say, that the people were deluded, such as Mr Houstoun.
Q. Did you hear any body else speak from the crowd up-
on that occasion ?
4. No.
Q. Did you see the prisoner at the bar, upon this occs-
sion, opposite to Mr Campbell’s house ?
4. I saw him as another man.
Q. Did you see him, and whereabouts ? was he near you?
4. Yes,
Q. At that time did you know him by sight ?
A. Yes,
Q. When you say as another man, do you mean———
4. Going through the crowd like another spectator.
Q. Did you hear him say any thing upon that occasion?
4. No.
Lord Justice Clerk.—You have not explained to us what
the crowd were doing; you were in the middle of the street,
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opposite Campbell’s ; did the crowd stop, or what did they
do, when this speech was made ?

4. There were a great many men standing together, and
those were the words that I heard there.

Q. Was there a ring formed there ?

4. 1 do not recollect that there was a ring. -

Q. You were there standing in the middle of the street ;
and I think you would be able to answer the question, was
there a ring formed, or not, in your presence ?

A. Not in my presence.

Q. How long did they remain opposite to Campbell's
house ?

4. I could not say, perhaps about ten minutes or so.

Q. Did you, or did you not, hear anything said there about
& meeting being held at the School-Green ?

4. Yes, there was some speaking at that meeting.

Q. When you were there, and when you have sworn to
certain words that you eay you heard uttered by a person
called Walker, did you hear then anything said about a
meeting to be held upon the School-Green in Johnstone on
that day.

4. No, I heard nothing of that opposite Mr Campbell’s
office.

Q Did yeu go along with that crowd after they moved
from Campbell’s office.

A. T went up near to the Cross, and I remained there for
the greater part of the day.

Q. You moved with the crowd, did you?

4. Yes.

Q. Now I ask you this—you have expressly sworn that
you did not know Walker even by sight, and I ask you how
you know that the expressions that the people were deluded
such as Mr Houstoun, were uttered by that man named
James Walker ?

A. People said that the man was Walker.
<. Q. At the time, do you mean to say ?

A. Yes. o
«-4 Attend to the question—did the people at the tim



when the words were uttered in your hearing, state that they
were uttered by this Walker ?

A. Yes.

Q. You say that upon your oath ?

4. Yes.

-Q. Then you asked by whom they were uttered ?

4. No, I did not ask, but I heard folks in the crowd say-
ing that man was Walker.

Q. Did the crowd say, or any of the crowd, that Walker
was the speaker of those words at that time ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was anything more said by any body but Walker et
the time he used those words ? -

A. No, not that I heard.

Q. Be 50 good as to explain to us a little more fully what
you mean when you say that you saw the prisoner opposite
Mr Campbell's house as another man ?

" A. He was there as another spectator.

Q. What do you call another spectator ¢

A. There were a great many men there.

Q. And do you mean to say that he was just there as any
other of the peraons assembled ?

A, Yes.

Q. And you call them all spectators ?

4. If there was any person there who made a speech, they
were all spectators there but him.

Lord Chigf Baron Shepherd.—You were there as a spec-
tator ?

A. Yes.

Q. What were you a spectator of ?

. I heard that man say those words, that was all.
Before you heard those words, you were there ?

Yes.

. You were there as a spectator ?

. Yes, | was there as a spectator.

. What were you a spectator of—what were you to see ?
. I went to see what the rest went to see.

Q What did they go to see, when they got there ? there

ONONONDA
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was either something to see, or there was nothing to see,—
what did they go to see ?

A. T could not tell you that.

Q. Do you mean to represent to my Lord and the Jury,
that all the persons who were there, were merely there as
spectators, upon your solemn oath, and as you shall answer
to God at the great day of judgment ?

4. Yes.

Q As spectators, as the nudlence here may be spectators
of what is going on ?

4. Yes. .

ARrcHi1BALD MNicHOL—sworn
Eaamined by Mr Gront.

Q. What business are you?

4. 1 am a sawyer

Q. In whose employment are you?

A. 1 am in Mr James Smith’s.

Q. Where is Mr Smith's yard ?

4. It is situated upon the east end of Johnstone where I
saw, in William.street.

Q. Is it near the School-Green ?

A. Yes, the corner of our wood-yard adjoins the corner
of the School-Green,

Q. Do you remember a great meeting of people upon the
School-Green about the beginning of April?

4. Yes, I remember a meeting about that time.

Q. Do you remember what day it was ?

4. T could nat say exactly the day of the month when it
was ; I paid no particular sttention in regard to that.

Q. Was it early in April ?

A. Yes, I think it was.

Q. Do you know what toak place at that meeting ?

4. I could not say what was.the purport of the meeting,
but I saw a person come forward there with a paper and
read the paper to the meeting, to the ¢rowd.

Q. Do you know who the man was that remd this paper ?
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A. It was James Walker.

Q. Do you know the prisoner at the bar, James Spiers ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was he at that meeting ¢

A. He was.

Q. What part did he take, and what did you see him do
or hear him say ?

4. 1 could not say that I heard or saw any particular part
that he did or said, so far as I seed of the meeting.

Q. Did you hear him make any speech to the meeting ?

A. None that I remember.

Q. Did you hear any speech made ?

4. I could not say.

Q. Did you hear any speech made that day with regard
to the shedding of blood ?

4. T could not say that I heard anything particularly
mentioned at that meeting, excepting what was in the paper
that was in Walker’s hand, which he read, for the meeting
was in a sort of a bustle after that on account of men huzza-
ing so, and I being outside of the meeting, I could not hear
exactly what was said.

Q. Did you hear the Address read ?

A. T heard the Address read that was in that paper.

. By Walker?

Yes.

. Did you see your master Mr Smith there?

Yes. .

Were you near him?

. I was just beside him. '

Was anybody else from your work present there ?
There were me and my partner who wrought along
with me ; there were us three just aside of one another.

Q. What is his name?

A. Robert Burnett.

Lord Justice Clerk.—Your partner Robert Burnett wa=
beside you, and you were altogether, I think you say ?

A. Yes.

Q. How long did this meeting last ?

4. I could not tell exactly.

AONOADORO
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Q. Could you tell near about how long it lasted ?

4. 1 cannot give any satisfactory answer to that; I did
not see any hours at the side of me, and I could not say how
long it lasted.

Q. Did you see the meeting begin ? )

4. T was into the wood-yard and seed it over the dyke.

Q. And did you see it separate ?

A. We seed them going up off the hill, and I staid at my
own house, which adjoins the wood-yard, and saw no more
after that.

- Q. Was it over before dinner-time ?

4. Yes.

Q. What is your dinner-time ?

4. Two o’clock.

Q. Do you recollect what time of the day it began ?

4. I could not pointedly mention the hour that it com-
menced.

Q. Would it be about mid-day ?

4. 1 could not pointedly say.

Cross-examined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. You say you are a sawyer with Mr Smith ?

4. Yes.

Q. This meeting that you speak of occurred when the
strike of work took place ?

4. I could not mention the day of the month exactly.

. Q. Was it about the time of a general strike of work.

A, Yes, it was.

Q. Did you continue working at that time ?

A. Occasionally I was working at that time.

Q. And occasionally you were not working at that time ?

4. No; our business was not very throng at that time.

. Q. Were you among those who struck work ?

A. We went up to work, at the usual hour in the morn-
ing, and we came back to our breakfast at nine, and we did
net go back any more.

r-Q. Why did not you return to work ?

4. Business was not very pressing.



Q. And you were not very anxious to go to it?

4 No.

Q. Themwuworkenoughtodo,xfymhadgun?

A. We might have had work that day ; but there was ne-
thing to be done, except with our own pleasure.

'Q. Did your master desire you ?
A. No; he neither desired, or forbid us.
Had you work the next day ?
No.
On the Wednesday ?
No.
The Thursday, perhaps ?
The Thursday, we did work.
Were you in the church here, yesterday ?
No.
Where were you yesterday ¢
. I was in the School House, at the side here.
The whole day ?
. The whole day, till past twelve o'clock last night.
You heard the Address read ?
. Yes, I did, what was in that paper.
. You heard a paper read ?
. Just the paper read.
. You heard it distinctly enough read, I presume ?

A Parts of it I heard, and other parts of it T did net.

Q. Can you tell any thing of what you heard ?

A. No ; because 1 pinned no dependence upon it, neither
did I fix any of it in my mind at the time. I did not think
I was to be called upon to it again, and therefore I paid no
attention to 1t.

Q. What was the beginning of it?

4. I could not say pointedly, any part of it.

Q. Was it an Address? -

A. T could not tell at that time. I paid no partieular at-
temtion to it.

Q. Did you pay any attention to it at any other time?

A. From hearing others speaking of it ; but I saw a paper
similar to it on the church gate the day before, on the Bun-
day, they told me it was the same paper.
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. Q. Where was it ?

4. It was on the pillars of the church stile.

Q. Did you read it ?

4. 1 could not get to it so as to distinguish the letters,
there was such a erowd about it at the time.

Q. But you heard the whole of it read at the meeting ?

4. Yes; the man allowed he had read the whole contents
of that paper.

Q. I do not ask what the man allowed. You heard it ?

A. Yes; but there were times when the crowd got into
such a bustle, that some could not hear the whole of it.

Q. What kind of a bustle ?

4. Pressing forward, and shouting, and crying into it.

Q. Were there any huzzas ?

A. There were.

Q. At the end of sentences ?

A. Yes; after the sentences, there were huzaas.

Q. Were there any remarks made upon any part of it ?

4. I could not say to my recollection, after the speaker
stopped and they got into the huzzas, it was some tithe be-
fore they got quiet again, and there was a piece of thé next
read, and that was heard by very few that were there, in my
opinion.

Q. How long did you remain there ?

A. I could not specify the time; but I remained there
such times as they were leaving the green.

GEeoror THOMSON—sWOrn.
Ezamined by Mr Grant.

Q. You are a cotton-spinner, I believe ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember a meeting in the School-Green of
Johnstone, early in April last ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where do you work ?

4. In Mr Logan, and Watt’s work, in Johnstone.
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Q. What day was that meeting ?

A. It was on the third of April, I believe.

Q. Were you at it ?

4. Yes.

Q. You know the prisoner at the bar, James Speirs ?

4. Yes.

Q. Did you see him there ?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. What part did he take, and what speeches did he make ?
A. 1 saw him make no speeches.

ANDREW SMITH—swOMTN.
Ezamined by Mr Grant.

Q. You are a weaver in Millerstone, I believe ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where is that—is it near Johnstone ?

A. It is on the road to Johnstone.

Q. Do you remember the meeting in the School-Green
at Johnstone, in the beginning of April ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the day ?

A. On the third of April.

Q. Were you there?

A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts were you in the crowd ?

A. At the first, I was on the outside of the ring ; but be- .
ing jostled by the crowd, I was jostled within a very little of
the front.

Q. Do you know James Speirs, the prisoner at the bar?

A. I know him by passing backwards and forwards, the
road through the town.

Q. Had you any personal acquaintance with him ?

A. None but that.

Q. What took place at the meeting ?

A. Atfirst I went down that street, and I got down intothe
front, and got down into the east side of the green, and
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" coming back in a little time, I saw the mob getting together,
and they gathered in a round ring, and after that there were
silence cried by one person or another, I did not know who
he was; and another cry was in it, for a preses to be chosen.

Q. Was this the first thing that you observed ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was elected preses, do you know ?

A. I think it was Park, or Parker. I do not know which.

Q. Did you know the person that was chosen preses ?

4. No.

Q. Then how do you know his name ?

A. Two men were mentioned, and I think he was the one
that was chosen.

Q. You heard the crowd mention his name then ¢

4. Yes.

Q. Who mentioned the name of those two persons ?

A. 1t was just out of the crowd they were called.

Q. What passed, after it was put to the vote ?

4. It was put to the folk, whether any of them knew what
was the meaning of the meeting there.

Q. What happened next ¢

A. There were none of them appeared to know what was
their meaning ; and there was one person there was speared
by the crowd, if he knew any thing about it.

Q. What passed then ?

A. He said he could give nothing, but the paper which
wa; posted up and circulated on the Sunday, or late on Sa-
turday night

Lord Justice Clerk.—Y ou used the word circulated. What
did you mean by using that word ?

A. There were heaps of them circulated through the
place ; he said he thought that most of them there had heard
it or seen it before, and there was a cry out of the town to
read it, it was none of the worse to be heard again.

Q. Did he read it ?

A. Yes,

Q. Who was this man that took this active concern ?

4. 1 did not know the man. -I had never seen him before
nor since ; but it was not the panel.



Q. Did you hear the panel, as you call him, make sy
speech at that meeting ?

4. No.

Q. Did you stay till the meeting broke up ?

A. Yes,

Q. Where did the crowd go to?

A. A great deal of them marched away along by the
8chool-Green, and along by the school, and along by the
church, and the road leading to Kilbarton.

Q. Did you go with them ?

4. I did not go with them at the time; but I go'd along
the road a good while, following after them.

Q. Did you see where they went to ?

A. When we went forward, I do not know what is the name
of the street ; but I seed them a long way on along the loan—
a long way down, and I tried to force my way through the
crowd, to see if there was any body that I knew, and I could
not see any of them that I knew ; but while I was looking
about, I saw James Speirs the panel.
~ Q. What was the crowd doing when you saw the panel ?

A 1 saw a mill, a good pace from where I stood.

Q. What mill?

4. I heard a person say it was the Hagg Mill. T have
heard it called Hagg Mill since, I did not know the name of
it then.

Q. How do you know that it was the Hagg Mill ?

4. 1 speered at a man as I was coming from Johnstone,
and asked him what the place was, and he said it was the
Hagg Mill.

My Hope.—~Who told him ?

Mr Grant.—I cannot ask that.

Lord Justice Clerk.—He knows it is the Hagg Mill, in
short, now.

Mr Grant.—I have been examining this witness, as if 1
had been examining him for the prosecution, I am sure.
What was he doing at the time that you saw him ?

A. He was standing alone. No one appearing to speak to
him.

Q. What position was he standing in ?
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. A. He was standing with his hands in his pockets,

Q. Were you at the head of the crowd, at this time ?

A. No; I was at the backside of the greatest part of themob.

Q. Do you mean to refer to the time when you were
standing behind the prisoner, who had his hands in his
pocket ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—He did not say he was standing by
the prisoner.

Mr Grant—How far were you from the prisoner at that
time ? '

4. Not above six yards.

Q. Was it at this time, that you were within six yards of
the prisoner, that you mean to say you were behind the
greatest part of the crowd ?

A. I was between the crowd and him.

Q. Was the greatest part of the crowd before you?

4. They were between me and the mill.

Cross-examined by Mr Solicitor-General.

Q. You were at the School-Green meeting, you say ?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you first see when you went there?

A. 1 seed when I got there, and were going down the
west side of the green, a great deal of people was lying, some
on the grass, and some on the dike, and I passed by the front
and I saw no person there that I knew, going along the
front of them, and I ga'd through the East street, and there
staid a considerable time, and came back and I seed them all
gathering in a crowd, and then they made a ring.

Q. Where were you then ?.

4. T was up upon the top of the hill, going on to the green,
towards the east side.

Q. Then what did you do next ?

A. There was a ring made then.

Q. What did you do next ?

4. T was of the outside at the first, and I got forward to
them, and then they cried to move the ring bigger, there was
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A. He was standing exactly opposite-to me.

Q. Was he within the ring then ?

4. He was just standing in the front, the same as myself.

Q. Was he within the ring ?

A. He was in the front of the ring.

Q. Was he within the ring ?

A. He was not nearer. As the ring was moved about, he
was in the front of the crowd.

Q. Was he within the ring ?

4. He was standing straight in front of the crowd.

Q. Who more were there ?

4. That Parker was in the middle of the ring.

Q. Who more were there?

A. One or two were round him.

Q. Pray, how were the other two dressed—Can you tell ?

A. 1 cannot say much how they were dressed.

Q. Did you see Speirs within the ring at all ?

4. No, I never saw him ; but when he was jostled back-
wards and forwards by the crowd.

Q. Where do you live?

4. At Millerstone,

Q. Isit close to Paisley here ?

4. 1t is about a mile or so from the Cross..

Q. Does it join on with Paisley ?

4. No, it does not join, there are several pieces with no
buildings on at all.

Q. What took you to the School-Green meeting

4. T had no intention of going there at all ; I knew no-
thing about it.

Q. What took you there ?

A. Scveral of our door neighbours were wanting for a
walk, and went through Johnstone, and they stopped to hear
what was said, and they stood talking to a man on the
Johnstone brae, and I got forward, and then they called me
back to see what was going on.

Q. When did you leave home?

4. I think, to the best of my remembrance, it would be
past ten o’clock in the morning.

Q. You had struck work at this time, I suppose?
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A Yes. . -

Q. You asked a man; I think you said, what was the
name of the Hagg Mill ?

4. No.

Q. What did you ask him ?

A. I was coming out of the town, and this man and I
were cracking together on the road, and I peared him to
describe the loan I described ; I passed first, and he said, thas
leads to the Hagg Mill, and then I saw them on the road.

Lord Justice Clerk.~~This man says he saw a man mo-
ving to a place which I did not know ; but having described
where the crowd were going, and towards a certain xmll,
the man told me it was the Hagg Mill.

Mr Solicitor-General —Why did you ask him that ?

~ 4. I was coming from Johnstone that day by the losn,
and I asked him if he knew what that mill was, whether it
was & mill.
* Q. Why did you ask him that ?
4. I cannot say why.

ALEXANDER THOMSON—gworn.
Examined by Mr Grant.

Q. What are you?
4. A weaver.
- Q. Where and in whose employment ?

A. I work in Johnstone.

Q. Do you work in your house, or at any other person's
work ?

4. I work in the employment of Mr Saunders of Ren-
frew. '

Q. Do you know a person of the name of John Lamg?

4. No.

Q. Do you remember a meetmg at Johnstone, upon the
School-Green, about the begmnmg of April? .

A. Yes.

Q. What day of Apnl,—and what day of the week ?
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" A. Monday the l:lnrd of April, about twelve o’¢lock.

Q. Did you see any person of the name of Laing addreu
that meeting ?

4. Yes. ' :

Q. How did you know t.hat his name was Laing ?

4. 1 did not know that his name was Laing at the time—
I made inquiry what they called him, as he was a stranger
to me.

Q. Did you make that inquiry at the time ?

- A. At the time when he was done with his speech.

Q. And what, answer did you receive ?

A. They told me that his name was Robert Laing, from
Kilbarton.

Q. What sort of looking man was he P

4. He was a little man.

Q. How was he dressed ? What had he on his head? '

A. To the best of my knowledge, he took his hat off
when he came out of the crowd, to address the crowd. '

Q. Did you hear his address to the crowd ?

4. Yes.

Q. What was the nature of it ?

4. When he came out of the crowd he spoke—to the. best
of my knowledge—after a person’s reading the bill—to the
best of my knowledge—which the people said was a bill—
¢ Perhaps,” says he, ¢ there are a good many here that do
not know the contents of this bill.”

Q. What more did he say ?

A. He said that he was just new come from Glasgow, and
he could assure them that the whole factories in Glasgow,
and in Anderston, was stopped, owing to the contents of
that bill.

Q. What more did he say ?

4. He said some more ; but I do not recollect the words.

Q. Did he recommend to the meeting, to do any thing ?

4. Yes; he said that seeing that the factories were stop-
ped here as well there, no doubts, but the masters of the fac.
tories would come in compliance with the wishes of the work-
ers, and that the end, what he meant I do not know, would
be accomplished. .
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toun to stop the mill. Voices from different places in the
crowd spoke to that purpose.

Q What did Mr Houstoun say ordo? Or what did any-
body else say or do?

A. He wished that the crowd would nominate a man or
two, to come out and explain to him what the mob wanted.

Q. Did he make this request more than once ?

4. Yes

Q. Did you see the prisoner at the bar at that time ?

A. Yes, I seed him at the outside of the crowd, at the
time Mr Houstoun made this request.

Q. What did he do or say ?

. 4. The crowd at that time was very clamorous, and press-
ed so close upon Mr Houstoun, that the gentleman could not
obtain a hearing. I seed the prisoner speak out, and say,
within my hearing, it was a shame to annoy Mr Houstoun
in the manner they were doing ; they ought to nominate a
man or two according to his desire; the crowd withdrew
back, maybe thirty or forly paces, to the best of my know-
ledge, and nominated two men.

Q. Did you know these two men ?

4. I knew one to look to, and call him by his sirname ;
but I was a mere stranger to him.

Q. What was the sirname of the one you knew ?

4. Walker.

Q. Did you hear or see the prisoner at the bar say or do
any thing else, while the crowd was at that mill ?

A. Yes, I heard him say some more.

Q. What more?

4. At the time that these two men that were nominated
went ont and were speaking to Mr Houstoun, there was
part of the crowd broke off from the main body, and said,
Let us draw the sluice, and take the water from it. |

Q. This was at the time the men were speaking to Mr
Houstoun ?

4. Yes; and saying at the time, that he was not willing
to stop the mill ; there were three or four I seed and heard
cry out, Shame, shame | Let the gentleman do as he pleases.
Do not stop the mill, let him do whatever he thinks proper.
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Q. Tell us what took place at that time ?
A. Some cried out for Bob Parker, some cried out for
" Lovely Bob, and it went round amongst the crowd in that
manner.
Q. Was Lovely Bob a name for Parker ?
4. A bye-name he gets.
Q. Was there any other name mentioned besides Par-
ker'’s?
A. Not that I recollect.
Q. In what part of the crowd were you standing at that
time ? )
A. T was standing in a part of the crowd, upon a piece of
‘rising ground next the road, between the crowd and the
Q. Was there any person along with you at that time ?
A. Yes; there was a good many standing, about where
I was standing at that time. '
Q. Was Andrew Smith along with you ?
4. 1 do not know the man, he might be there for me. .
Q. How far might this be from the ring that you were
standing ?
4. A matter of five or four paces.
Q. Do you mean from the inner circle of the ring ?
A. No; the outer circle.
Q. What breadth might this circle be? How many peo-
ple broad do yon suppose ?
4. T could not say.
Q. Was there a great crowd ?
A. There were more than what appeared in the circle.
Q. Was the ring five paces deep ?
4. No; it would not be above a pace, or a pace and a
“half -
Q. You were not above seven paces in that way, from
- the inner circle of the ring ?
" A. There was a pace and a half from the front of the
circle to the rear of it.
Q. And you were four or five paces from the rear of the
circle?
A. Yes. 12
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Q. You were on a piece of rising ground ?

4. Yes.

Q. You were rather above the circle ?

A. Yes.

Q. You saw what was going on in the ring?

4. I seed a part of it.

Q. Did you see it ?

4. Sometimes they burst out, so as we could not see
things just as we wanted.

Q. At the time that the preses was chosen, did you hear
distinctly, the cry for Bob, and Lovely Bob?

A. Yes, and that from different parts of the circle.

Q. You say that no other name was mentioned? -

A. Some called, Beautiful Bob. .

Q. And you heard no other name mentioned ?

4. 1 can swear, to the best of my knowledge, I heard no
other name mentioned.

Q. Did any person propose himself as preses, besides
Parker ?

A. Not that I seed.

Q. Did you see any person, immediately before Parker
was chosen, bustle through the ring into the centre, and see
him rejected as preses?

4. No.

Q. Was Parker chosen at once, without any delay ?

4. Yes; he was chosen at once, by the name of Lovely
Bob, and Beautiful Bob together.

Lord Justice Clerk.—How was he elected—by show of
hands ?

A. I do not recollect that. I do not think it was ; to the
best of my knowledge, I think it was just a cry.

Q. Was Parker within the ring at this time, before he
was chosen ?

4. No, he was in the body of the ring when they cried
out, Lovely Bob. ’

Q. Did he then go into the middl¢ of the ring ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any person there, before he was chosen ?
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A. Yes; one Walker, and the other stranger that I did
not know.

Q. Did you hear his name ?

4. No ; I might have heard, but I do not recollect it.

Q. Did you inquire his name?

4. Yes, I did inquire his name; but I did not get him.

Q. Did the people not know him ?

A. The people where I was standing, did not know him.

Q. What sort of a dress had he on ?

4. To the best of my knowledge, he had on a short
greencoat.

Q- Do you know what sort of cap he had on his head >

A. No, I do not recollect.

Q. What sort of a waistcoat ?

4. 1 did not pay attention to his waistcoat, his back was
mostly to me, where I was standing.

Q. Do you swear that there was no other person within

the ring but these two, before Parker was chosen ?

A. No, I could not swear that ; for sometimes there was
very much pressure took place in the ring.

Q. Was anybody standing apart in the ring, besides
those two ?

A. Not that I saw.

Q. When did Speirs go in ?

4. 1 do not know when Speirs went in.

Q. You saw him within the ring ?

4. The preses being chosen.

Q. You saw Speirs within the ring, at one part of the pro. -
ceedings ?

A. Yes, I seed him in the inside of the ring.

Q. Was there any other person within the ring but these
four ? .

4, 1 could not say that; there was sometimes more and
- sometimes less.

Q. You have already told us, people were sometimes
hustled in for 8 moment, and then hustled back. Were
there any other persons standing farther in the ring, apart
from the others, for any length of time, besides these four ?
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A. 1 did not see four standing together. -

Q. There were four within the ring,—Walker, Parker
this stranger, and Speirs ?

A. Yes; Parker, Walker, and that stranger were stand-
ing three together. I seed Speirs standing between them,
and the front of the circle.

Q. Did you see any other person ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—Is that what you said—you saw
Parker, Walker, and the stranger standing together, and
Speirs was between them and the circle ?

A. Yes.

My Hope—~Were there any persons besides these four
standing apart in the ring, and the persons who formed that
circle ?

A. Not that I seed.

Q. Can you tell us, at what time Spelrs went into the
ring ?

A. 1 could not tell that.

Q. After the preses was chosen in this way—what was
done next ?

4. This Walker read the Address.

Q. Where were you standing at that time ?

A. I was standing between four and five paces in the rear
of the circle.

Q. In the same place ?

A. In the same place.

Q. Did the circle continue then, of the same size as be-
fore?

4. Not much larger, much about it.

Q. Was there any order given to the people to be silent?
Was silence proclaimed ?

4. Walker did, and he read the Address.

Q. Was silence observed ?

4. Yes; they were as quict as they could, till they heard
him read the Address that he had in his hand ; he said, it was
the Address.

Q. You were able to hear it at that distance ?

4. Idid not, I heard the sound ; but I could not make
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the words just out of the man that was reading the Address,
and his back was to me.
" Q. Do you mean to swear, that you heard no part of that
paper that was so read ?

4. I heard it all read ; but I did not know the words that

were in it ; I could not take it up.
. Q- No part of it ?

4. No part of it.

Q. And that you say was owing to the man's voice being
weak, and to his back being towards you ?

4. Yes, from that and the pressure together.

Q. You said, you were only with two or three people,
apart from the crowd ?

A. 1 was three or four paces from the crowd, and there
were two people standing in the place where I was ; but the
Pressure took place several times within the circle.

Q. How do. you mean that the pres:zure in the circle which
was not very large, prevented you, who were standing four
or five paces off with two or three people, from hearing ?

A. The reason of that was owing to the character that
the preses was in ; he was in a manner covered with rags, he
had a long beard, and dirty flesh.

Q. Yon said the people were quiet when the Address was
read ?

4. Yes.

Q. The preses went forward before the Address was
read ?

4. Yes.

Q. How long was the preses forward in the ring, before
the Address was read ?

- 4. T could not say.

Q. Might he be five minutes, or any short space ?

4. I could not take upon me to say what time.

Q. Was there any interval at all ?

A. Yes, there was a little.

Lord Justice Clerk.—You said Walker proclaimed silence
before he read the Address, and they remained as quiet as
they could, till he had read the Address which he had in his
hands,—that is what you have sworn ?
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My Hope.—You say some little interval elapsed after the
preses went forward into the ring, and before the Address
was read—W as there any laughter when the preses first went
forward ?

4. Yes, there was a laugh took place.

Q. At the preses?

4. I do not know whether it was at the preses or not ;
but it appeared to me to be so.

Q. Had their laughter subsided before the Address be-
gan, and after silence was proclaimed ?

A. Yes.

Q. Had they recovered from their amusement at the ap-
pearance of this preses ?

4. At the beginning of it they did.

Q. What number of people might there be there alto
gether, including those immediately about this ring ?

4. I could not say.

Q. Look round here—were there as many people as you
now see underneath the gallery ? ‘

A. In the circle, there were not near so many.

Q. I suppose not, but round it ?

A. Spectators and altogether, I think there would be
much about it.

Q. Did the people ask the object of the meeting ?

4. Not that I heard.

Q. Was it put to the meeting by any person, or inquired
generally among them; what was the object of the meeting,
or the purpose of their coming there ?

4. I do not know. I did not see it.

Q. And heard nothing to that purpose

4. No.

Q. Did you hear the persons ask Walker the object of the
meeting at first ?

4. No.

Q. Did you see Walker, Parker, and Speirs, or any of
them, come upon the green? -

4. No, I did not see them come upon the green ; I seed
them when I was there.
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Q. Did you see any body of people come together to the
green?

4. No.

Q. Did Walker say where he had got this paper from ?

~ A. T did not hear Walker say so; but I heard some of
the crowd say, that he had taken it off the chapel-gate.

Q. This paper was read to the meeting, as you have de-
scribed—How was it received by the meeting ?

A. Some said it alluded to rebellion.

Q. Were there any huzzas or cheers as he went along, at
the end of the sentences ?

A. Yes, there were huzzas as he went along ; the preses
often attempted to comment upon the Address.

Q. Parker?

4. Parker—and they were laughing at it many times,
then..

Q. When Parker began to speak ?

4. Yes.

Q. Was the Address received as it went along, at the end
of the sentences, by cheers from the people ?

A. Not that I saw. I did not know what the huzzas or
cheers were for ; but I took it, for my part, to be at the cha-
racter of the preses.

Q. How often did this preses attempt to comment upon
the Address ?

4. Two or three times.

Q. Did he make any observations ?

4. He could not get the observations made, because they
always laughed.

Q. Upon your oath, were there no laughs, nor cheers, nor
huzzas, on the reading of that Address, till Parker began to
speak ?

4. To my knowledge, there were none ?

Q. Did Walker make any remarks upon this Address?

4. Yes, to the best of my knowlédge, he attempted once
to make a little,

Q. What was that about ?

4. T could not obtain rightly.

Q. What words caught your ear?
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A. His back was towards me.

Q. What did you hear?

A. Merely his voice.

Q. How did you know that he was reading the Addrens,

or commenting on it ?

A. He had it in his hand, reading it in this way, (descri-
bing it).

Q. At the time you say he made a sort of remark upon
the Address, how did you know whether he was reading or
making a remark upon it ?

4. He let drop his hand, and from that I considered he
was speaking upon it.

Q. His back was towards you at that time ?

4. He was standing in such a manner as this, (describing
it). N .

Q. His back was towards you, you have told us several
times. I ask you again, if you heard nv part of that Ad-
dress ; and if you heard no part of the remark which you say
Walker made upon a part, how do you know that he was
making any remark upon it at all 2. Remember the situation
in which you stand.

4. His band being dropped, he could not read it at thn
time that he was speaking.

Q. At that time Walker was not further from you than I
am, six or seven paces off ?

4. He was further than that.

Q. Did you hear any thing that the chairman, Parker,
said ?

A. No.

Q. Was his voice so weak also?

4. No; always when he began, the laugh began.

Q. He must have said something before they began to
laugh ?

4. He only attempted to speak, for I never could make
any thing of what he said.

Q. How was that remark which Walker made rece:ved?

4. T do not recollect it.

Q. Was there any huzzaing after that?

4. Not that I recollect.
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Q. You say Walker attempted to make a remark—what
do ‘you mean by that ?

4. T took it to be. -

. Q- He attempted to make a remark, what did you mean
by that expression—was he interrupted by laughter ?

4. No.

Q. What did you mean by that expression?

A. He attempted to make a remark.

Q. Did he speak ?

4. I did not hear him make the words out ; there was a
noise; they huzzaed and laughed.

- Q. There was huzzaing when Walker was upealung?

4. No, not huzzaing.

Lord Justice Clerk.—~You have already said, I do not re-
collect any huzzaing after Walker's remark. ¢ I did not hear
him make the words out ; there was a noise; they huzzaed
and laughed.”

My Hope.~Will you now say there was, or was not, huz.
zaing ? which statement do you now take?

A. The huszaing was not to Walker, to the best of my
knowledge.

Q. Was the huszaing at the time that Walker was speak-
ing?

. At the time that Walker was reading the bill.

Q. You knew him?

4. Yes.

Q. At the time that Walker made this observation, was
there huzsaing? You say the huzzaing was not to Walker;
but was there huzzaing at the time ?

A. Yes, at the time he was making a comment.

Q. What do you mean by the huzzaing not being to
Walker ?

4. I do not know.

Q. You do not mean to represent to us that the chairman
‘was making a speech at the same time that Walker was doing
s0?

A. Not at the same time, but at the time that he was

xeading he mterrupted Walker.

VOL. III. - R
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Q. You do not mean that Laing was between you and
Walker ?
- 4. No. :

Q. How came you to hear so distinctly, and to remembexr
so well what Laing said ?

4. Because he was a stranger made me pay more atten-
tion to it.

Q. Walker was a stranger to you ?

4. No. '

Q. You told us he was only a person whose name you
heard ? '

A. The other man was a stranger. -

Lord Justice Clerk.~* 1 know one of them to call him by
his sirname ; his name was Walker.”

My Hope.—Do you mean to say you were acquainted with
‘Walker, or that you merely knew his name ?

4. No, I was not personally acquainted with him.

Q. You merely knew Laing’s name in the same way?

4. 1 did not know Laing’s name before.

Q. You heard it then?

A. Yes, people round me told me Laing’s name. -

Q. You knew just as much of the one as of the other. It
does not signify whether you heard Walker’s name a month
before, or ten years before, or Laing’s only at that time, you
only knew them by name?

A. Walker by name.

Q- You heard Laing’s name upon that occasion ?

Lord Justice Clerk.—You say, the people around me call-
ed Laing by name—and do you mean, that you knew Walker
only by name?

4. 1 knew Walker by name, and to speak to him in the
street. ’ .

Q Had you frequently spoken to Walker?

4. No, I never spoke to Walker.

Q. Then how can you know him to speak to?

A. I could name him ; X could name his sirname.

Mr Hope.—Then you never spoke to Walker at all?

4. Not that I recollect.

Q. Then, although Laing came from Kilbarton, I ask
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‘Q 'You had heard people talking about it~-what did they
say about it?

A. They said it was of a rebellious nature.

Q. You say some of the people abeut you remarked upon
the Address, that it was about rebellion—how came they to
.hear it ?

A. 1 do.not know.

- Q. Cannot you give us a better reason why you did not
attend to this Address? You had heard people before say-
ing it was about rebellion ; and you heard people about you
at the time, saying it was about rebellion ; how came you
not to attend to it ?

A. 1 eannot answer that.

Q. What made you attend to Laing ?

.Lord Justice Clerk.—Let him go on. What were you
going to say ?

4. .1 do not recollect at present.

Mr Hope.—Had you more curiosity to hear a strange man
from Kilbarton, than to hear so strange a paper which you

had heard people talking about ?
* A Yes, being a stranger, I was looking for somethmg
wonderful from him ; he was in very decent apparel I took
him to be some Englishman that was come down ; but I did
not know what he was.

Q. You might have expected something wonderful from
the paper ; the people around you said it was alluding to re-
bellion ?

4. ] paid little attention to it, upon account of its allu-
ding to rebellion,

Q. After this Address was read, what was done next ?

. A. After the bill was read, this man, that the people told
me his name was Laing, stepped forward.

Q. Repeat what he said ?

A. To the best of my knowledge, he said, * that perhaps
there were some of the people there that did not understand
the contents of the bill ; but he could assure them, that he
was just now come from Glasgow, and that the factories in
. Glasgow and Anderston was stopped in consequence of the






4, 1 do not know what it was for.

Q. Did you hear any person desire them to hold up their
bands ?

4. 1 heard several voices desire the people to hold up
their hands ; but I do not know who they were."

Q. You heard them desire the people to shew their hands?

A. Yes, a shew of hands.

Q. Do you mean to say you did not hear what went be.
fore that? what they were to shew handa for?

A. No, I do not know what it was for.

Q. At what time was it that you heard some people call-
ing this man Daft Laing?

A. After he was done with his speech; when people were
coming about to know what stranger it was; it was Daft
Laing, they said.

Q. Was there any thing daft-like ip his appearance ?

A. I could not say that he had very decent apparel.

Q. Was it Laing’s proposition to stop the works, which
was agreed to?

4. 1did not know what it was ; I did not hear any agree-

ment.
. Q. You have told us that Laing said be had come from
‘Glasgow, and could assure them that the whole factories were
stopped in consequence of that bill ; that you did not recol-
lect any thing further ; but that he said, that if they stopped
the works, the masters would sooner come into their de-
mands—Did Laing propose that ?

A. He did not directly propose to go to the warks.

Q. You say he said they would sooner accomplish their

end by stopping the works ?
A. He assured them they were stopped at Anderston

and Glasgow.

Q. You stated that you had previously been at Mr Hous-
toun’s Mill, where different people wished them to stop the
mill ? .

4. Yes,

Q. Then you have told us what took place at this mect-
ing ? g

4. Yes.
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favour, I presume we may sssume we do know better than
the counsel for the prisoner ; and I should like to know what
right be has to convert this inquiry into the means of censure
upon any quarter whatever. I apprehend there is no dis-
pute that I am entitled to proceed in this inquiry ; and if any
question is put, on which the learned Gentleman has a right
to interfere, your Lordships will see that the witness must
be withdrawn.

Lord Justice Clerk.—It appears to me, that it is not a
wholesome proceeding which was first contended for by Mr
Grant, that a8 Counsel is entitled to caution or warn a witness ;
he can go no farther than suggest it to the Court; but I ap-
prehend the correct and wholesome course is, to ask the wit-
ness to be removed, and to state to the Court his objection to
the course of examination ; and then the Court will judge of
it, because I can see great evils which may result from the
mode of proceeding proposed here, and I am sure your
Lordships will not countenance it. Till the question is put,
we cannot judge whether there is a necessity to give a cau~
tion or not ; therefore, at present, there is no impropriety in
the question, where he was on Wednesday.

My Hope.—W eintended toask this person, whether he was
not drilling with a party at Quarrellstone—When a person ac-
cused of High Treason brings forward a witness, to state his

at the scene laid, it is usual to ascertain the charac-
ter and acts of the witness, by whom such evidence is given,
and I mean to put it to this witness, whether he was or was
pot drilling, upon that Wednesday.

MMy Grant.—1 object to that question, as standing here for
the witness ; for as to my client, it is a matter of indifference
to me ; but I am extremely surprised at its being proposed,
t0 ask & witness who already has been taken up———

. Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—But brought here by you,

Mr Grant.—Brought here by me—to ask a witness to give
evidence of that which, connected with the rest of these pro-
oeedings, is most likely to involve him in the guilt of High
Treason —

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd.—Only see what the conse-
quence of that argument is..

)
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ject; first, was he at this place, on the Wednesday, and then
were you drilling there on that day. Now, it is the act of
drilling which Mr Hope wishes to put to the witness ; then
he is not bound to answer that.

Mr Grant.—But I beg again to state it is really not in the
shape of an objection, but to save the poor man.

(Witness was brought into Court.)

Mr Hope~Did you go to Quarrellstone on the Wednes-
day, two days after this meeting ?

4. Yes, I was taking a walk up that way.

Q. Was it towards Shif~-Wood, that you went?

A. T went up by the How-Wood.

Q. Did you see some people there?

A. Yes, I seed different people.

Q. Where did they come from ¢ Were they Johnstone
people ?

4. 1 do not know they were Johnstone people ; some of
them was people about the country, I suppose. I do not
know where the people came from that were there.

Q. Were there any of Mr Houstoun’s men, who are em-

ployed about Mr Houstoun’s mill ? I do not ask the names
of any of those.

4. 1 do not know.

Q. To what mills did the Johnstone people belong ?

4. 1 do not know.

Q. About what number of people might be there ?

A. .1 do not recollect what number there might be.

Q. One hundred, or two hundred—or how many ?

4. No; I do not think there would be any of this number.
Q. Were there fifty ?

4. X do not think there was—1I cannot say.

. Q. Did you see a person of the name of James Young
there ?

4. He might be there—I do not recollect him.

-Q.:Did you see him that day when you went out npon
this walk ?

4. I do not know==Ido not recollect.
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Q. What was it?

A. The men playing themselves, I understood. .

Q. In what way were they playing themselves ?

. A. Playing and conversing with one another.

Q. In what way ? playing at leap frog ? or hide and seek ?
or what?

A. I could not say. s

Lord Justice Clerk.—~Now, upon your oath, you are not
taking the shelter I proposed you might take, but you pro-
fess to answer the questions, and must be dealt with as a
person who is bound to answer fairly. Were they playing at
any Scotch game whatever ? And I desire you to answer
that question ; because you are in a totally different situa-
tion from what you would have been, if you had taken ad-
vantage of the objection that I stated to you. Upon your
oath say, what was the game that they were playing at thnt
-time ? :

4. I really could not say the game.

Lord Chi¢f Baron Shepherd—How many of them were
there ?

4. 1 oould not say to the number.

Q. Ido not ask you the exact number; but can you tell
whether there were five, or ten, or fifty, or more ?

4. 1 think they would run about fifty or so.

My Hope.~In how many squads were those people ?

A. If they were in squads, I did not know.

Q. Were they in squads, or in divisions, or not{ Were
they all in a body, or separated ?

4. Yes, they were separate ; I did not know.

Q. Were they in one body, or were they not ?

4. There were two or three different parties.

Q. I asked you before about a John Young—did you see
a James Young there?

4, Not that I recollect.

Q. A man who was formerly in the 103d regiment ?

4. 1 have not mind of his being there.

Q You know the man?

4. 1 know the man if I see him.

Q. What were those two or three difforent parties doing ?
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A. It came on rain at night.

Q. But while you were there?

4. No.

Lord Chief Baron—You have now said that they asked
you to put them through a facing or two?

A. Yes.

Q. What do you mean by a facing ? facing about as a
soldier does? You say you have been a volunteer ? .

4. Yes.

Q. And they asked you to put them through a facing or
two—What do you mean by a facing ?

A. In a military way, seeing that we were going to be up-
on duty after that.

Q. What could you mean just now, upon your solemn
oath, when you were-asked if this was drilling, in not saying
at once that it was drilling ?—You, who have been a volun-
teer, who know what the drilling of soldiers is, and who were
desired by those people to put them about a facing or two;
and yet, in the face of a Jury of the country, and, I am
sorry to say, in the face of your God—you, who have sworn
to tell the truth as you shall answer at the day of judg-
‘ment, hesitate to say that it was drilling. I hope to God
you will never make such a figure again in a Court.

Eu.uf M<Quin, otherwise GILMORE—sworn.
Examined by Mr Sondford.

Q. Do you keep a public house ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where is it ?

A. At Cartside Bridge.

Q. Do you remember a crowd commg to Cartslde Mill,
in the beginning of April ?

4. Yes.

Q. Do you remember what day it was?

voL III ]
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A Tt was the beginning of April; I think it was the thivd ,
T am not quite sure;*but I remember it well.

Q. Did you see James Speirs that day ? -

4. 1 did. :

Q. How long have you known him ?

A. 1 think it is three years; and he lived a twelvemdnth
along with a gentleman in the land near me ; and a soberer
man never was in the land with any person.

Q. Tell us what time it was when you saw him én that
day, and what he did ? .

4. He came into fny house with another géntletviin, and
bought a gill of whisky, when the mob was iri the mill,

Q. Did you see the mob at that time? .

A. Yes; it was before the mob was that night at the mill
he.m in my house, .

€Q. How long did they rethain i in Hiat house ?

A. The moment I eannot ascertaid.

Q. What time do you think it was?

. . Tt was about the morning; I'do not keiow what time
lt was, my knock was not gping.

Lord Justice Clerk.—1It was the Cartside Mill ?

A. Yes, the Cartside Mill ?

Q. Do you know who the other gentleman was dhiat was
with him ?

4. I did not know.

Mr Hope—~How far is the Cartside Mill from your
house ?

4. A few pacegonly.

Mr Grant.—Was the prisoner, when he lived near you, s
good, peaceable man ?

4. Yes, a good, peaceable, honest man.

MacLcoLM FRrASER=—swOTR.
Ezxamined by Hr Grant.

Q. Were you a serjeant in the 26th regiment ?
A. 1 was a serjeant and a serjeant-major.



76

Q. Have you known James Speirs, the prisiner, long ?

4. I knowed him upwards of six years in the regiment.

Q Whntwuthecham:terheboremtheregnnent?

4. A very fair character, and very promising to be an or-
aament in the regiment, if he had continued.

Q. What was his rank ?

A. He joined as a boy.

Q. What rank did he fill ?

4. He was lance corporal, full corporal, and an ordinary
serjeant, and a drill serjeant.

Q. Do you know why he left the regiment ?

4, For a complaint in his breast.

Q. Do you know that signature there, (Aanding a paper
¢o the witness.)

A. 1do not recollect it at present ; J knew the officer wbo
commanded at the time.

Q. Who was his commanding-officer ?

A. Captain Hall.

Q. Do you know that signature?

4. Yes.

Q. Whose is it?

4. Hall

Q. What was he?

4. A Captain in the Depot.

Q. Look at that name again, and see if it is not the same
_ one that is signed before.

A. Tt is not so plain, but I verily believe it is.

Mr Grant—We may put it in.

Lord Chigf Baron Shepherd.—It is not evidenoe, but it is
his discharge, and states the cause. '

Mr Grant.—Yes, and states hmdxschnrge, mdtheause,
I presume the Lord Advocate will not object to it ?

Lord Advocate.—Certainly not. -

My Grant—We beg it to be read, with the consent of the
Crown; we cannot do it without, certainly.

Lord Advocate.~Most certainly we will consent to it.
. My Sandford.—Do you know if he was employed in the
recruiting service?

4. He was for some time ; bow long, Idonnt.know.



976

Q. Was he active in getting troops ¢
A. He was activepas far as came within my knowledge ;
but he was absent, and then I could not say. * .

The certificate, stating he had always merited the approba-
tion of his Commanding-Qfficer, was read.

JaMES CAMERON——SOrR.
Exzamined by Mr Sanéﬁrd.

Q. Areyou s tanner in Johnstone ?

A. Yes, .

Q. Have you known James Speirs long ?

A. I have known him these five years.

Q. Is that ever since he was discharged ?

A. Yes. :

Q. What character has be borne ?

A. Asfar as I know, he was an industrious, sober man.
Q. Do you consider him a peaceable man ?

A. Yes.
Davip BoyrLE—sworn.
Ezamined by Mr Sandford.
Q: What are you ?

4. A weaver.

Q. Have you known James Speirs long ?

4. I have known him for about three years, and been
personally acquainted with him for two.

Q. What did you consider his character to be ?

4. 1 took him to be a quiet, peaceable kind of a man.

Q. Did you consider him an industrious man ?

4. As far as I knew, as he did not work in the shop with
me.

Mr Grast—My Lord, I really do not think it necessary
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to encumber your Lordships notes, by examining more of
these witnesses. Your Lordship sees there are only two years
since the man left the service; therefore it is only to that
time. : :

JoBN M‘MILLAN=—=swomrn.

Ezamined by Mr Sandford.

Q. What are you?

4. A wright.

Q. Have you known Speirs long ?

A. About two years.

Q. What character has he had during that time ?

A. As far as I know, it was fair—a quiet, peaceable kind
of man,

Q. Did you consider him honest ?
- 4. Yes, as far as I know.

MR GRANT.

May it please your Lordships—Gentlemen of the Jury,=

I rise to perform one of the most anxious duties that
can be cast upon any man, and I shall therefore have much
reason to entreat your indulgence. It is an anxious duty at
any time to be charged with the defence of the life of a man.’
It is & yet more anxious duty to be charged with the de-’
Tence of a person accused of the crime of which the prisoner
at your bar is accused ; because, as we who have practised
in criminal courts of law, have often had the melancholy
opportunity of observing, in the greater part of the ordinary.
crimes that come under the cognizance of those Courts, there
‘is much in the unhappy character, and conduct, and situa-
tion of the persons, to detract from that degree of interest
_ which even under any circumstances those must excite, whose
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each count is, as it were, a separate offence. Each count is
an offence of High Treason ; but each count is a separate
charge of a distinct sort of Treason. The first count is for
compassing and imagining the death of the King; the se-
cond count is for levying war against the King, in his
realm ; the third count is for compassing,imagining, invent-
ing, devising, and intending to depose the King from the
style, honour, and kingly name of the imperial crown of
this realm ; and the fourth count is, the compassing, ima-
gining, inventing, and devising to levy war against the
King, in order to compel him to change his measures and
counsels.

- Now, each of these, as you will see from the very reading
of the words, is a distinct offence. Of the one or other of
these offences, you must be satisfied in your own mind, that
the publick prosecutor has convicted the prisoner by good
evidence, in order to your returning a verdict of Guilty.

The first charge is, that he compassed and imagined the
death of the King. Upon that there is really no observa-
tion necessary, except that these words, ‘¢ compass and
imagine,” are used in the old sense of these English words.
We say now, a man compasses his end when he attains it;
that he imagines a thing, when it is something that arises
in his imagination or fancy. The legal interpretation of these
words is, to intend and design, as we should say ; or, if you
choose, contemplate. Now, when I have said that a man is
accused of having intended and designed the death of the
King, I have used words which require no gloss. No in-
terpretation can make those words, or the meaning of them,
clearer than they'are; and no interpretation can be per-
mitted to vary them, or make them at all different from
what they are. You must be satisfied upon this first count,
that the prisoner did design and intend to put his Sacred
Majesty to death ; and nothing that any body can tell you,
notbing that you can read or hear upon the subject, no-
thing that the wit andinvention of man can suggest, can alter
or qualify the precise meaning of these words. And without
a breach of those oaths which you have taken, and without
a breach of what you value equally with the sanctity of an
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murderous intention, although the death of the person in-
tended to be murdered had not ensued. So that, in point
of fact, the law has not introduced any new rule, as to the
crime of Treason ; but it has retained in the crime of Trea-
son, on account of its great importance to the community,
that rule which was anciently the rule in other cases. And,
Gentlemen, it is of some importance shortly to refer you
to what that ancient law was, and what the admitted doctrine
upon it was, in order that you may see what the doctrine
of the law is, with regard to the crime that you are now try-
ing, and what was the intention of the legislature when this
act was passed, pursuing as it is understood, and admit~
ted by all lawyers to be pursuing, the rule of the common
law. :

My Lord Coke, who is one of the most valuable com-
mentators upon the laws of England ; a person whose great
mind was full of knowledge upon the law of England, states
to you upon this statute, on which he writes a most vala-
able treatise, upon the words, ¢ Fait compasser,” the old
French words to compass, ¢ Let us see first,”"—(this is in
order to explain what is to be understood by compassing
and imagining in the Treason law ; the terms of the statute
you have already heard ; I will again call your attention
to them more particularly ; they are stated in the indict-
ment; and in order to do this, he carries his readers back to
the rule of the common law in other crimes, before the pass-
ing of this act)}—¢ Let us :ee first what the compassing or
imagining the death of a subject was, before and at the time
of the making of this statute, when voluntas reputabitur pro
Jacto, when the will was taken for the deed ; and Bracton
saith, the will is looked to, and not the event'; and it is of no
importance, whether any one has slain another, or has at-
tributed the natural cause of death ; so as when the law was
8o holden, he must causam mortis prabere, that is, declare
the same by some open deed, tending to the execution of
his intent, or which might be cause of death.” And then he
mentions a case, “ that a man’s wife went away with her
avowterer, and they compuss;d the death of the husband,
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and as he was riding towards the Sessions of Oyer and Ter-
miner, and gaol delivery, they assaulted him and stroke him
with weapons that he fell down as dead, whereupon they
fled ; the husband recovered, and made hue and cry, and
came to the Sessions, and shewed all this matter to the
Justices; and upon the warrant of the Justices they were
taken, indicted and arraigned ; and all this special matter,
was found by the verdict,—and it was adjudged, that the
man should be hanged and the woman burnt ;" that being
the punishment by the law of England for killing her hus-
band, which was Petit-Treason. And then he says, ¢ And
Sir William Beresford, Chief Justice of the Common Pleas,
said, that before himand hiscompanions, Justices of Oyer and
Terminer, and gaol delivery, a youth was arraigned for that
he would have stolen the goods of his master ; and came to
his master’s bed, where he lay asleep, and with a knife at-
tempted with all his force to have cut his throat ; and think-
ing that he had indeed cut it, he fled ; whereupon the mas-
ter cried out, and his neighbours apprehended the youth ;
and all this matter being found by special verdict, in the
end he was adjudged to be hanged Quia voluntas reputabi-
twr pro facto, ¢ because will is to be taken for the deed ;”
80 a8 it was not a bare compassing or plotting of the death
of a man, either by word or writing, but such an overt deed,
as is aforesaid, to manifest the same; so as if a man had
compassed the death of another, and had uttered the same
by words, or writing, yet he should not have died for it, for
there wanted an overt deed, tending to the execution of his
compassing. But, if a man had imagined to murder or rob
another, and to that intent had become insidiator viarum,
and assaulted him, though he killed him not, nor took any
thing from him, yet was it felony, for there was an overt
deed.” And then he adds, * But in those days, in the case
of the King, if a man has compassed or imagined the death
of the King, (who is the head of the commonwealth,) and
had declared his compassing or imagination by words or
writing, this had been High Treason, and sufficient over-
ture by the ancient law : and herewith agree all our ancient
books.” Now, as to this last position of Lord Coke’s, that
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subvert the Constitution 7~—did he conspire to levy war to
subvert the Constitution ? But you are to try, did he com-
pass and imagine the King’s death ? The means by which
you are to arrive at this conclusion, are through the overt
acts, which are stated in the indictment ; and which pro-
perly, by law, must be stated in the indictment; otherwise
the prisoner would be entirely at sea, as to the nature of the
offence, or the nature of the charge; for, if it were barely
stated, that he compassed and imagined the death of the
King, it would afford him nothing to which to apply his
mind in the defence he was to make.

Gentlemen, with regard to the charge of levylng war,
though of that also there must be an overt act stated, yet it
is, in point of fact, only changing the terms. The levying
of war is an act of itself. They state, that the man is
guilty of levying war; and they state, that he appeared in
arms, in such a situation, in such a place. That is an a.ct,
which of itself constitutes the levymg of war.

The third count, of imagining to depose the Klng, is in
the same situation with the first count. The crime is in
the mind. You arenot to try, whether he did do a particu-
lar overt act charged here; but you are to try, arriving at
the conclusion from those overt acts, whether he compassed
and imagined to depose the King. And the last count is of
the same kind, whether he compassed and imagined to levy
war against the King, in order to compel him to changc
his measures and counscls.

Gentlemen, I have stated to you thus much in general;
and I will now more particularly address myself to each of
these counts separately. 1 will then endeavour to state to
you the nature of the overt acts which are charged under
the counts, so far as they can have any application to the
matter in hand; and I will afterwards beg your attention to
the evidence that has been laid before you, and request of
you to apply that evidence to the rules which I shall take the
liberty of suggesting to you, for guiding your opinion in
deciding the case.

Gentlemen, the two first counts of this indictment, the
compassing and imagining the death of the King, and the
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Jevying war against the King, are founded, as you have
been already told, upon the ancient statute passed in the
25th year of King Edward III.; and you have been told,
and I need not repeat to you, that, by the act of Queen
Anwe, since the Union, we are now entirely in an English
Court of Justice. The statute is the same ; the law of Trea.
son, in Seotland, is in every respect assimilated to the law
of England; and, therefore, it is to the English authors
alone we ean Jook for information on the subject, there ha-
ving beem hardly any trials for Treason, in this country,
thank God, since the Union.

The words of the statute of Edward III. are as follow :
And, in the first place, you will observe the preamble of
the act. Unlike our modern statutes, the whole of this act
is extremely short; but there is not within the compass,
either of the preamble or of the body of the act, one word
which does not appear to have been most maturely weighed,
and which of itself will not afford room for an ample com-
ment upon it. The preamble sets forth the object of the act,
andthe reason of the act. The reason of the act is one,which,
in every age, in every period of the history of England, has
eccurred frequently. I am not given to speak disrespectfully
of Courts of Justice ; and I am sure no English lawyer can
spesk disrespectfully of English Courts of Justice, because,
upon the whole, though with some considerable exceptions,
arising from the unfortunate temper of particular times,
English Judges have conducted themselves in 2 manner that
may well serve for an example to every other country upon
earth. But, notwithstanding this just eulogium upon them,
there s, through the whole course of English history,—~you
will see it every now and then, at periods here and there,~
s disposition, on the part of Courts of Law, to extend by con-
struction the law of Treason; and to this the Parliament
has applied itself, every now and then, in order to remedy
it; and it has always, upon those occasions, most wisely
brought back the law to the old statute of Edward III.

Gentlemen, this statute sets out with this preamble,
% Whereas divers opinions bave been before this time, in
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he says, * nothing can concern the King, his crown, and
dignity, more than Crimen lesee majestatis, High Treason ;
yet, at the request of his Lords and Commons, the blessed -
King, by the authority of Parliament, made the declaration
sbove said; and therefore, and for other excellent laws-
made at this Parliament, this was called Benedictum Parlia-.
mentum, as it well deserveth; for, except it be Magna Charta,.
no other Parliament of England hath had more honour
g"vden' unto it by the King, Lords Spiritual and Temporal,

the Commons of the Realm, for the time being, in full:
Parliament, than this act concerning Treason hath had;,
for by the statute of 1st Henry IV. cap. 10, reciting, that-
where, at a Parliament holden 21st Richard II. divers
pains of Treasons were ordained by statute; inasmuch as:
there was no man did know how to behave himself, to do,’
spesk, or say, for doubt of such pains,”—(this was the first
great encroachment on the Law of Treason, as it existed in
the 25th Edward III. ; the extension and construction first
introduced by the Judges, and afterwards, most unfortu~.
nately, adopted by the Parliament,)—¢ it is enacted by the
King, the Lords, and Commons, that, in no time to come,
any Treason be judged otherwise than it was ordained by
this statute of 25th Edward III.; the like honour is given.
to it,” he says, ¢ by the statute of Edward VI. cap. 12.; and:
by the statate of 1st Mary, cap. 1. sect. 1, different times,
but all agreeing in the magnifying, and extolling of this
blessed act of 25th Edward IIL.”

Now, Gentlemen, it may not be quite foreign to the sub-
ject, if I should state to you, always preferring reading to-
you from books, to stating anything on my own authority
~if I should state to you, by referring to Lord Hale, one
of the first lawyers, and.best men of his time, what he says
as to the history of the law previous to this statute, that
you may see what it was that it was intended to remedy.
He says, ¢ That at common law, the crime of High Trea~
son had some kinds of limits and bounds set to it.” But he
says, ¢ by those various expressions of Briton, it appears
that the crime of High Treason was very uncertain ; some-
times styled under the name of felony—sometimes had the
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royal power, was a usual charge of High Treason ancient-
ly, though a very uncertain charge, that no man could well
tell what it was, nor what defence to make to it.”’ So that
the charging as High Treason, that a man had drawn to
.himself, or usurped the royal authority, was, in my Lord
Hale's opinion, one of the causes why the statute of Edward
TI1. was passed, in order to remedy such lax mterpreta.uon :
of the law.

Then he mentions several mstances, in which this law, so
interpreted, had been put in force; and he says, By these
and the like instances, that might be given, it appears how
uncertain and arbitrary the crime of Treason was before
the statute of 25th Edward III., whereby it came to pass
that almost every offence”—Now, I beg your attention to
.these words— ¢ that almost every offence that was, or scem-
.ed to be, a breach of the faith and allegiance due to the
King, was by construction, and consequence, and interpre-
tation, raised into the offence of High Treason.” So that,
according to Lord Hale, the greatest possible inconvenience

-arises from ¢¢ construing an offence, which is, or seems to be,
.a breach of the faith and allegiance due to the King, into the
.offence of High Treason.” ¢¢ And we need no greater in-
.stance,” he proceeds, ¢‘ of this multiplication of constructive
.Treaons, than the troublesome reign of Kign Richard II.,
which, though it were after the limitation of Treasons by the
statute of 25th Edward IIL, yet things were so carried by
factions and parties in this King's reign, that this statute
-was little observed ; but, as this or the other party prevail-
.ed, so the crimes of High Treason were, in a manner, ar-
bitrarily imposed and adjudged, to the disadvantage of that
party that was intended to be suppressed ; so that, de facto,
:that King’s reign gives us as various instances of these ar-
:bitrary determinations of Treasons, and the great inconve-
.niences that arose, as if indeed the statute of 25th Edward
JII. had not been made or in force.” Then he says, ¢ That
in the Parliament of the 10th of Richard the Second, there
‘was a large Commission granted by the King, upon the im-
-portunity of certain great Lords, and of the Commons in
JParliament, to the Archbishop of Canterbury and others,
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for the reformation of many things, supposed to be amiss in
the government,which Commission was thought to be preju-
dicial to the King’s prerogative. After this, namely, on
‘the 25th of August, 2d Richard 1I., the King called to-
gether the two Chief-Justices, and divers other of the Judges,
and propounded divers questions, touching the proceedings
* in that Parliament, and the obtaining of that Commission ;
to which questions the Judges gave many liberal answers;
and, among the rest, ¢ Qualem pcenam merentur, qui com-
pulerunt, sive arctirunt regem, ad consentiendum confec~
tioni dictorum statuti, ordinationis, et commissionis? Ad
quam questionem unanimiter responderunt, quod' sicut ut
proditores merito puniendi. Item, qualiter sunt illi punien~
di, qui impediverunt regem, quo minus poterat exercere quae
ad regalia, et preerogativam suam pertinuerunt ; unanimiter
etiam responderunt, quod sicut ut proditores etiam puni-
endi. (What punishment they deserved who compelled or
forced the King to consent to the making the said statute,
ordination, and commission { To which question they unani-
mously answered, that they were deservedly to be punished
as traitors. Agsin, how are they to be punished, who pre-
vented the King from exercising the powers appertaining
to the royal authority, and to his prerogative? To which
also they unanimously answered, that they also were to be
punished as traitors.) With divers other questions and an-
swers to the like purpose.” Uponthis Lord Hale says,* This
extravagant, as well as extrajudicial declaration of Treason,
by these Judges, gave presently an universal offence to the
kingdom, for presently it bred a great insecurity to all per-
wons; and the next Parliament, Crastino Purificationis, 2d
Richard II. there were divers appeals of Treasons, by cer-
vin Lords Appellors, wherein many were convicted of High
‘reason, under general words of accroaching royal power,
boerting the realm, &c.; and among the rest, those very
dges, that had thus liberally and arbitrarily expounded
eason, in answer to the King’s questions, were, for that
y cause, adjudged guilty of High Treason ; and had judg-
it to be hanged, drawn, and quartered, though the exe-
m was spared, except that of the Chief-Justice, who was
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to their accomplishing their schemes, it is as impossible
as if one man by himself were to attempt it. They may in-
duce many an honest and well-meaning man to desert the
defence of those liberties, and of that constitution, which
otherwise he would be disposed to protect—they may in-
duce such men to lend themselves, as matter of necessity
perhaps, (mistaken necessity at the moment,) to more active
and stronger measures, than they could be brought to con-
sent to under other circumstances; but they never can, till
the state of human society is entirely altered, effect the slight~
est and the most trivial of the reformations which they con-
template. Those reformations must be effected otherwise ;
for, above all, it is necessary to the producing any benefi-
cial result, that every member of this great society should
feel, that there is no other part of the society of which he
has reason to be afraid. The higher orders are no more
exempt from terror than the lower; and when, by any of
these outrages of the lower orders, the higher are put in
terror, every other consideration gives way, in men of the
purest principles, and in other instances not destitnte of
courage, to the apprehension of present danger; and, if there
should be a government desirous to take advantage of these
circumstances, they have ample opportunity to adopt any
checks or controls they please, arising out of the means
used by those whose object is very different. _

I have been betrayed into this. It is impossible to dis-
cuss this subject without one’s attention being called to the
extreme folly, as well as the extreme wickedness, of the at-
tempts to persuade the lower orders of the people, to ef-
fect, by means wholly inadequate to the end, reformations,
which, even if they were the best in the world, could not be
effected by those means, while the success of such means
would be attended with almost every evil incident to hu.
man society.

Gentlemen, on the other hand, let us turn our attention
the other way. If this is what we must say—not what we
must hold out—but what, in our consciences,we must say to
those of the lower ranks of society, whom the pressure of
particular circumstances, to which, in a state like that.of
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this country, every rank of society, more or less, is at par-
ticular times exposed—if we say this to those who, under
the pressure of those circumstances, may at particular times
be induced te forget the duties, which they owe ¢o the
* society which protects them ; on the other hand, let not us
be betrayed into the belief, that for the repression of this,
or any other danger which may threaten the country, there
is anything to which we can have recourse, but the purity
of the administration of justice, the sacredness of our laws, .
the acting consistently upon the principle of those liberal,
and wise, and free institutions, which we have derived from
our ancestors—the preserving of our liberty, as we would
preserve the good order of our society, and the never being
betrayed even out of a Court of Justice, but still more in
a Court of Justice, for one moment to take a single step be-
"yond the law ; knowing that for many centuries the Consti-
tution of this country, and the government of it, have been
supported by those liberal and free institutions, by that sa-
cred attachment to the strict administration of justice,which
have distinguished our ancestors, which I hope we shall al-
ways give an example of, and which, I trust in God, will
distinguish our posterity.

Gentlemen, pursuing this subject, you will see from the
book which 1 have alrcady mentioned, how, in a few words,
Lord Hale, upon this great doctrine of Treason, sums up
what he has stated before. ¢ Now,” says he, ¢ although
the crime of High Treason is the greatest crime against
faith, duty, and human society, and brings with it the great-
est and most fatal dangers to the government, peace, and
happiness of a kingdom, or state, and, thereforc, is deserved-
ly branded with the highest ignominy, and subjected to the
greatest penalties the law can inflict; yet, by these instances,
and mere of this kind that might be given, it appears how.
necessary it was, that there should be some fixed and settled
boundary for this great crime of Treason, and of what great
importance the statute of 25th Edward 111. was in order to
that ; and how dangerous it is to depart from the letter of
that statute, and to multiply and enhance crimes into Trea-
son, by ambiguous and general words ; as, accroaching of
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sn indictment, which charges compassing and imagining the.
* death of the King, and it charges as an overt act, the con- -
spiring to subvert the Constitution ; hoping by the word
Constitution to supply the defect of the words fimdamental
lawos, and it is said this will make a good count. These two
Ppropositions cannot exist together. Lord Hale is wrong;
Lord Strafford was properly impeached ; Lord Strafford
was properly attainted ; for it is exactly the crime for which.
he was impeached and attainted ; and yet we have the act of
Parliament stating that this was an unlawful proceeding; so
that we have the judgment of Parliament upon the question,
stating the articles of impeachment against Lord Strafford,
which were these: ¢ That he hath traitorously endeavour-
ed to subvert the fundamental laws and government of the
realms of England and Ireland ; and instead thereof, to in-
troduce an arbitrary and tyrannical government against
law, which he hath declared by traitorous words, counsels,.
and actions, and by giving his Majesty advice, by force of
arms, to compel his loyal subjects to submit thereunto.”—
Now, upon that he was impeached before the House of
Lords; and even in those turbulent times, though the House
of Lords were ultimately compelled to assent to the Bill of
Attainder, the Commons could not prevail on the House
of Lords, upon their impeachment, to convict Lord Straf-
ford. The House of Lords, upon an argument in point of
law, which, if I were now to argue on this branch of the
statute, I should use for an argument of my own—the
House of Lords declined procecding in that impeachment ;
and that Parliament, hurried away by the violence of the
times, passed a Bill of Attainder against Lord Strafford,
to which the House of Lords was compelled, and the un-
fortunate King was compclled, afterwards, to give their as-
sent. Upon the Restoration, there was an Act of Parlia-
ment for reversing it ; and it states, that ¢ Whereas Tho-
mas, late Earl of Strafford, was impeached of High Trea-
son, upon pretence of endeavouring to subvert the funda-
mental laws, and called to a publick trial,” and o on ; «in-
somuch, that the turbulent party then seeing no hopes to
effect their unjust designs by any ordinary way and method
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of proceedings, did at last resolve to attempt the destruc-
tion and attainder of the said Earl by an Act of Parlia.
ment,” and 8o on ; and then this act of attainder is rever-
sed in Parliament, the act setting forth in terms that the
attempt to convict him of Treason, on an accusation that
he intended to subvert the fundamental laws, had been an
illegal attempt on the part of those who proceeded against
him. e
Now then, Gentlemen, having stated so much, perhaps
at greater length than I might have stated it, if I bad had
more time to compress my argument, [ will now beg your
attention to the case, as it regards the overt acts, which may
be given in evidence in support of this compassing and ima~
gining of the death of the King. In the Act of Parliament
itself, which you have heard read, it is stated, that a per-
son must be proveably attainted of open deed, by persons of
his condition ; so that the overt act, as I have already sta-
‘ted to you, is a proof of the treasonable intention which
constitutes the crime ; and thiovert act itself again, must
be proved, not by construction and inference, but must be
proved to you in a manner that shall command the convic-
tion of your minds. .
That an overt act is nothing more nor less than a proof
of the T'reason which you are to find, I think is sufficiently
established by all the authorities. It appears to me to be es-
tablished from the very words of the statute; but it has been
laid down so to be by almost all the authorities with which
I am acquainted. Lord Hale, to whom I have had occasion
before so largely to refer, uniformly states it as an overt act
¢o prove the compassing the King’s death, and so on—He
says, that ¢ the compassing the King’s death is High Trea-
son, though it be not effected ; but because the compassing
is only an act of the mind, and cannot of itself be tried with-
. out some overt act to evidence it, such an overt act is re-
quisite to make such compassing or imagination High
Treason ;” and all the way through he states, that the overt
act is to be considered as the evidence of the T'reason; the
evidence, therefore, of which you, Gentlemen, are to judge.
And I find this is most distinctly laid down, in a case, in

-~






305

with the surprise of the King’s guards, could be attempted
with no other intent, than to surprise and seize the King,
The Chief Justice states, Whether he did entertain this de-
sign to surprise the King’s guards, and whether he did com-
pass and imagine the King’s death, was left to them on the
whole matter.

Gentlemen, I would state to you, on authority which
cannot be shaken, in the very words in which Lord Chief
Justice Saunders concludes, in the case of this unfortunate
man at the bar—If you believe that he conspired the death
of the King, and, in order to that, had those consults that
the witnesses speak of,” and, I should add, too, performed
those acts which the witnesses spesk of, you must find him
guilty of the charge ; if not, be it a conspiracy of what na-
ture you please—be it a contemplation to raise war—be it
what you like, you must pronounce him not guilty under
this count. Upon this authority, I say, it is a case for
your consideration. What youn are to be convinced of is,
that this unhappy man conspired the death of King George
the Fourth.

Gentlemen, I should fatigue you, as I am afraid I am
likely to do at any rate, if I were to go more at large into
this subject. What I wish to impress on you is this. Pay
every attention to everything that is said to you, not from
me, without those grants of allowance which you must al-
ways make for one, who is in duty bound to plead the cause
of another—but pay every attention to the case, and to what
is laid down to you from any other quarter; but remember
you are bound te judge this man, as in your consciences you
shall be convinced he did, or did not, conspire the natural
death of his most Sacred Majesty.

Lord Chicf Baron Shepherd.—Do I understand you are
contending that he must compass the actual and natural
death of the King ?

Myr Grant.—Yes, my Lord, that is my conclusion.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—If he intended to dethrone
him, without killing him, that would be Treason.

My Grant.—~—Certainly, my Lord, because he must put
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life in danger ; and, if he puts the natural life of the King
in danger, he is not to be heard to say, that he has not ren-
dered it certain that the King cannot escape that danger.
So that, Gentlemen, really the question whether certain
overt acts are to constitute the Treason, and from them is
to follow the conclusion of law, that the Treason has been
committed in the mind ; or, whether it is a case from which
the Jary are to infer that, as they must in most of the cases, 1
believe I may say in all the cases, that are put in the books,
is a question, and little more than a question, of principle.
But it is a question of principle, and, as a question of prin-
ciple, it is of importance ; because, if it should ever be laid
down, as matter of law, by any judicial authority, that an
act, which, to this hour, bad never been considered as com-
passing the King’s death,was a compassing the King’s death,
and if it was not true, that an overt act is mere evidence of
a compassing, in that case the Jury would be bound to con-
vict. If you could imagine a case of that sort, and such were
the law, I say, without danger, I think, of being contradict-
ed by any authority, that, if such a case were to happen,
the Jury would be bound to convict. But, I say, that the Jury
are bound to exercise their own judgment, and probe their
own minds, to determine whether the overt act charged is
proof of the Treason charged ; and, upon that subject, no
human being can do more than enlighten them, and en-
able them to form their own opinion.

My Lord Coke, in speaking of the overt acts of Trecasen,
has these words: ¢ This doth also strengthen the former
exposition of the word proveablement, that it must be prove-
ably by an open act, which must be manifestly proved; as
if divers do conspire the death of the King, and the man-
ner how, and thereupon provide weapons, powder, poison,
assay harness, send letters, &c. or the like, for the execu-
tion of the conspiracy. Also preparation, by some overt
act, to depose the King, or take the King by force and
strong hand, and to imprison him, until he hath yielded
to certain demands, this is a sufficient overt act to prove
the compassing and imagination of the death of the King ;
for this, upon the matter, is to make the King a subject, and
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Now; my Lord Coke means, that there may be acts stated,
that are ot sufficient to bear this consequence, and not suf-
ficient to go to the jury. He says, ** Hereby it dppeareth how
insufficient many indictments were of High Treason, wherein
it was generally alleged, that by overt acts he compassed and
imagined the death of the King; that did not put the pri-
soner on his guard, for that allegation did not inform him
against what it was he was to prepare ;” and in the case of the
Duke of Somerset he was indicted, ¢ for that he falsely, ma-~
liciously, and traitorously, by overt acts, compassed and ima-
gined, with many other persons, our said Lord the King
from his royal state to depose and deprive ; which indiet-
ment, and all others of like form, were against law, as hath
been said; and of the matter of this indictment that noble
Duke was by his Peers found not guilty.” So that an indict-
ment, which should charge directly as the crime, that a per-
soh intended, and compassed, and imagined to depose the
King, is an indictment which could not go to trial. Why
then, Gentlemen, do you believe, in the fair construction of
this most important law, that it was the intention of the lé-
gislature to do this, to tell people how they should draw in-
dictments? That it was their intention to tell them, you
mnust not state it directly and distinctly, so as to tell 2 man that
yout charge, that heintended, or compassed, and imagined the
deposing of the King ; but you must state that lie imagined
his death ; and then you may state, as the only thing you
want to prove, that he compassed to depose him ; it being an
inference of law, that to depose him, and to imagine his death,
are the same thing ? That is nothing but pleading. It is
impossible that that act, meant for the safety of the subject
wisieant no less for the safety of the King—could intend
aiiything so utterly frivolous as this. It did this. It said;
that in all cases, no matter whether to depose the King—no
matter whether to imprison him—no matter whether to levy
war against him—nothing shall be charged but the compass-
. ing and imagining the death of the King, and then it shall
be left to a Jury of his country to say, whether those facts
given i evidence do, or do not, convince them of that com-
passing and imagination.
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compassing a direct war against the person of the King.”
Now, so far as I know, these are the only overt acts which
have been stated by my Lord Coke, Lord Hale, and Mr
Justice Foster, upon this subject ; and I again repeat, that,
upon a due consideration of these authorities, and, what is
of more importance than any authorities, a due reflection
upon the words of the statute itself—upon a due considera-
tion of all the authorities, without an exception, I state to
you, that these are given merely as classifications of acts,
which have been held by the judges, and are laid down by
by those writers as, in their opinion, sufficient to go to a
Jury, in order to prove the compassing and imagining the
death of the King, and which, in their opinion, do in point
of fact infer such compassing and imagining ; and I do not
believe that there is any man, lawyer or not lawyer—for I
again repeat, that this is not a question on which lawyers
will differ from these opinions—who will doubt this for a mo-
ment. As for the providing weapons, that is clear; as to
the imprisoning the King with force and a strong hand, it
is impossible any person can imagine he can take the King
prisoner, without placing his life in danger ; that he can de-
poee the King, without placing his life in imminent danger ;
that he can consult with others how they may kill the King,
that he may compass a war against the person of the King,
or against his title, which is against his person—that he can
do any of these acts, and not be held to compass and imagine
the death of the King.

: Now, Gentlemen, it is therefore a question for you, whe-
ther, on the evidence before you, you can come to this con-
clusion, from any of the acts with which the man at the bar
is charged, and which have been proved, that he has,com-
passed and imagined the death of the King.

.- I state to you distinctly, upon the authorities with which I
have already troubled you, that the first overt act in this in-
dictment, conspiring to devise plans to subvert the constitu~
#ion, is not a sufficient overt act to prove the compassing the
King's death. It is much tooloose. Not only in point of tech-
nical statement, this is not sufficient ; but, supposing it were
pomsible to charge a man directly with a treason in conspiring
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tion, in order therewith to attack the troops of the King,
and levy war ; there is nothing of that. Then endeavouring
to seduce the troops of the King from their duty and al-
legiance to the King. Then compelling people to discharge
and turn out of employment their workmen ; that is charged
here as an overt act of compassing and imagining the King's
death ;—there is certainly some evidence with regard to the
discharging and turning off work people. Then striking
work, and compelling others to do the same ; that is much the
same thing. Then sending persons to England, to incite
the liege subjects of the King there to acts of Treason;
there is nothing of that. Then subscribing money for
the purpose of procuring arms; there is nothing of that
Then exhorting and persuading certain of the liege subjects
of the King to procure arms, to be employed in rebellion.
Then giving notice of meetings to be held for the purpose of
cohsulting as to the means of raising war ; why, there does
not appear to me much of that in this case. Then, Gentle-
men, you see, that the overt acts, to which you are to direct
your attention here, which overt acts you must find to be
proved, and which overt acts, when proved, with all the cir-
cumstances under which they took place, you must find to
amount to an intention and imagination in the heart and
mind of that man to put his Majesty to death—are those of
assembling and meeting together, and, whilst so assembled,
making speeches to incite the subjects to rebellion—of levy-
ing war—of forcing divers subjects to discharge their work-
men-—and of striking work ;—and I think these are the only
_ overt acts, which can come within the evidence that has been
laid before you.

Now, Gentleman, there is, as you will observe, under the
first count of the indictment, a charge of levying war.
Now you must be satisfied that war was actually levied, in
the first place; and, in the next place, that that war was
levied against the person of the King, as I shall afterwards
shew you, when I come to the after part of my argument.
At present, it is enough for me to say, that the charge here
is of actually levying war; not of designing to levy war,
but of actually levying war ;g0 that, if you are of opinion
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the late King, refers only to that compassing to levy war,
which was, under all the authorities, an overt act of com-
passing the King's death under the act of Edward III.,
then, if I can shew you that the war levied, or proposed to
be levied—if there was such a thing proposed to be levied -
—was not a war, or compassing to levy war, which would
have been an overt act of compassing the King’s death,
under the 25th Edward IIL., I shall have satisfied you,
that it is not an overt act of compassing to levy war, such as
is within that part of the 36th of the late King.

I will state to you again what I mean—I am afraid I do
not make myself intelligible—It is held by all the judges
who have had occasion to consider the 36th of the late
King, that that statute does no more than render those
actings substantive Treasons, which would have been overt
acts of compassing the death of the King, under the statute
of Edward III. Then, in order to interpret the 36th of
the late King, when we come to trya case, and to see whe-
therthe war, which it was intended to levy, is a war, the com-
passing to levy which is Treason under that statute, we
have only to examine, on the older authorities, whether it
would have been a compassing the King’s death under the
act of Edward III.

- There was an unfortunate person of the name of Watson,
tried in the Court of King’s Bench in the year 1817, as you
are all aware ; and my Lord Ellenborough, in summing up
to the Jury in that case, and laying down to them the law
‘upon it—he having been tried on the 86th of the late King,
had occasion to state what, in point of law, was the effect
and intention of that statute. It is a statute which was first
made in the 36th year of his late Majesty’s reign ; and in the
57th of his late Majesty’s reign it was made perpetual.
The words of the preamble of this act are these,
which shew what the object and intention of the act was,
and are the means of interpreting the clause afterwards:
% We your Majesty’s dutiful and loyal subjects, the Lords
Spiritnal and Temporal, and Commons of Great Britain,
in this present Parliament assembled, duly considering the
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daring outrages offered to your Majesty's most sacred per-
son in your passage to and from your Patliament, at the
opening of this present Session, and also the continued at-
tempts of wicked and evil-disposed persons fo disturd the
tranquillity of this your Majesty’s Kingdom, particularly by
the multitude of seditious pamphlets and speeches daily ptint-
ed, published, and dispersed, with unremitted industry, and
with a transcendent boldness, in contempt of your Majesty’s
royal person and dignity, and tending to the overthrow of
the laws,”’—and so on—¢¢ have judged that it is become ne-
ceseary to provide a further remedy against all such ¢res-
sonable and seditious practices and attempts.” The éreason-
" able attempts, Gentlemen, you observe, are those attempts
of outrage on the King's person. ¢ We, therefore, calling
to mind the good and wholesome provisions which have st
different times been made by the wisdor of Parliament for
the averting such dangers, atid more especially for the se-
curity and preservation of the persons of the Sovercigns of
#hese realms, do most humbly beseech your Majesty, that it
may be enacted, atid be it enacted by the King’s most excel-
lent Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the
Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this pre-
sent Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same,
that if any person, or persons, whatsoever shall, within the
the realm or without, compass, imagine, invent, devise, or
intend, death, or destruction,”—that was Treason before,
—s¢¢ or any bodily harm, tending to death or destruction”
~—that, though not Treason before, was an overt act of
compassing the King’s death before—¢ maim or wound-
ing, imprisonment or restraint, of the person of the same
our Sovereigu Lord the King, his heirs and saccassors”—
an overt act under the statute of Edward I1I.—<¢ or sode-
prive or depose him or them from the style, honour, or
kingly name of the imperial crown of this realm, or of any
other of his Majesty’s dominions, or countries, or to levy
war against his Majesty, his heirs and successors, within
this realm, in order, by force or constraint, to compel him
or them to change his or their measures or counsels™~
18
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And then it goes on, “ Or in order to put any force or
constraint upon, or to intimidate, or overawe both Houses,
or either House of Parliament,”—and so on as to other
things, with which I need not trouble you.

Gentlemen, this man Watson was indicted as the per-
#on now at your bar is, upon ¢ four charges ; two founded
upon the old statute of the 25th Edward 1II., which
statute was made”—[ am now reading from Lord Ellen-
barough’s charge to the Jury in Watson's case—* which
statute was made to correct and remedy the defects in
the law of Treason as it stood before, and ta declare all
that thereafter should be considered as Treasons by the
law of the land, which statute remains in full force at
the present day. There have been several other tempo-
rary statutes in addition to that statute, declaring other
Treasons, but which statutes are expired, or have been re-
pealed.” Then he says, ¢ There has been another statute
lately passed, namely, in the S6th of the present King, not
so much enacting any new Treasons, as declaring those
things to be substantive Treasons, which had been, by va-
rious constructions, from time to time, made uponthe statute
of the ¢5th Edward IlL,, deemed the strongest and most
pregnant overt acts of several Treasons specified in that
statnte.” 1 will read this to you once more, because it shews
the opinion of the whole Court upon that important trial.
¢t That this statute, passed in the 86th of the present King,
was a statute, nof so much enacting any new T'reasons, as
declaring those things to be substantive Treasons, which had
beeny by warious constructions, from time to time, made upon
the statute of the 25th Edward I11., deemed the strongest and
most pregnant overt acts of several Treasons specified in
M “a‘ .”

Now, Gentlemen, if this be the interpretation of this law,
which I think, without any doubt, it is, why then, when
you are to try, or when the Court is to try, what offences
come within this statute, you will try what offences would
have been overt acts of compassing the King’s death, un-
der the former statute ; because this I agree to, that, if the
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might have been punished as overt acts of compassing the
King's death, under the act of Edward III.

Lord Chief Baron Shepherd.—Those things mentioned in
that act, because those things mentioned in that statute were
overt acts before.

Mr Grant.—Yes, my Lord, that is the statement of Lord
Ellenborough, that the things mentioned in that act were
overt acts of compassing the death of the King before. Then,
from the converse, nothing is here declared to be a substan-
tive Treason, that was not an overt act under the statute of
Edward III. If it be true, as Lord Ellenborough says,
that the acts here mentioned, were overt acts of compass-
ing the King’s death antecedently ; if it be true, that the act
has done nothing but render some of these things substan-
tive Treasons,which were overt acts of Treason before ; why
then, if there shall be any doubt upon the construction of
‘any words in that act, as to what it has created a substan-
tive Treason, in the absence of decisions upon that subject,
and of the dicta of any lawyer, or judge, upon that subject,
the right rule of interpretation, and the only rule of inter-
pretation under that opinion of Lord Ellenborough, is to sce,
whether the act charged was, or was not an overt act of com-
passing the King’s death, under the statute of Edward III.

" —There is one branch of this statute of the late King, where
a doubt has been raised for the first time in the course of
these proceedings, and that is the clause with regard to the
compassing and imagining to levy war against the King, in
order to compel him to change his measures or counsels ;
and I cannot explain myself better upon this subject, than
by going back a little, and stating to you, Gentlemen, the
history of the law.

The statute of Edward III., in regard to the offence of
levying war, confined itself to the prohibiting an actual le-
vying of war; and under this statute it has been found
over and over again—there is no doubt about that—that the
compassing to levy war is not of itself a Treason ; that the
war must be actually levied. The 36th George III. left

.the actual levying of war to the provisions of that act. It
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had been held, and most juatly held, that a compassing to
levy a war, which was directed against the persom of the
King, was evidence of a compassing of his death ; and as
my Lord Chief Justice Holt says, most sensibly, in the case
of Sir John Freind,—the compassing the King’s death can-
not be less a compassing, because the means taken to com-
pass it were those of levying war. Therefore the levying s
war directed against the person of the King—directed to ac-
complish any of those objects, the accomplishing of which
by other means would have been an overt act of compassing
the King’s death—was always formerly beld to be evidence
of a compassing the King’s death. Another description of
levying war, called in the books a conséructive levying of
war, a levying of war by construction, and not against the
King’s person, has always been held not to constitute Trea-
son, unless the war was levied.

Now, Gentlemen, so the law of England has generally
stood from the time of Edward 11I. Bat in several reigne—
in the reign of Qucen Elizabeth, in the reign of Charles 11—~
in the peculiar dangers and difficultics in which the Mo-
narch of the time was supposed to stand, Parliament has
thought proper, by acts very similar, and almost the same
with this act of the 36th of the late King, to place the Trea-
son of levying war upon a different footing; and those old
acts of Parliamcnt, I mean of Queen Elizabeth and Charles
IL., took. occasion, as this act of George 11I. does, to ren-
der some other overt acts substantive Treasons. There
was an act of the 13th of Queen Elizabeth, which declared,
that the compassing to levy war against the Queen during
her life, should be Treason, as much as the compassing or
imagining lier death. But that compassing to levy war was
by that statute a little restricted, because it was a com-
passing to levy war, and declaring the same by open wri-
ting and speaking ; and some overt acts are stated. There-
fore they could not convict any person of a compassing to
levy war against the Queen, in the reign of Queen Elizabeth,
or against the King, in Charles the Second’s time, unless
they could prove some of those overt acts; but then, whe-
ther the war was directly against the King’s person, or for
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a publick purpose, not directly against the King’s person,
was all one; they were both equally levying war, and equal-
ly Treason. In the statute of the 36th of the late King,
the limitation is different ; and it is said, the Treason shall
consist in the compassing to levy war against the King, in
order lo compel the King to change his measures or counsels ;
so that no war is of that nature, that a compassing to levy
it is Treason, within the 36th of the late King, unless it be
to be levied for the purpose of compelling the King to alter
his measures or counscls.

Now, there are two distinctions which it appears to me
material to keep in view in this question :—the first is under
the declaration of my Lord Ellenborough ; and, I think, the
declaration of Lord Chief Justice Abbot, in Thistlewood’s
case, who concurs in that opinion. He says,— It may be
proper for me to mention to you, Gentlemen”—this is the
Chief Justice’s charge to the Grand Jury on the trial of
Thistlewood—¢¢ that before the passing of the late statate,
it had been settled by several cases actually in judgment,
and by the opinion of the text-writers on this branch of
the law, that all attempts to depose the King from his royal
state and titles, to restrain his person, or to levy war against
him, and all conspiracies, consultations, and agreements, for
the accomplishment of these objects, were overt acts of com.
passing and imagining the death of the King. By the late
statute, that is, the 86th of the King, under which you are
trying this man, the compassing, or intending to commit
these acts, that is, to depose his Majesty, to restrain his per-
son, or to levy war against him, for the purposes that I have
mentioned, is made a substantive Treason ; and thereby the
law is rendered more clear and plain, both to those who are
bound to obey it, and to those who may be engaged in the
administration of it.” There is another authority upon the
subject which I might read, and which, I think, would be an
authority of considerable weight ; it is the authority of the
then Attorney-General, stating the law on the part of the
Crown. For obvious reasons, whatever weight I may think
due to that authority, at prescut I shall not trouble you with
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any of those acts, the generality of whose objects and natures,
accompanied by such force, by which they are to be effected,
renders them, in contemplation of law, a levying of war
against the King—these sorts of levying war have always,
from Lord Coke downwards, without one exception, been
stated to be distinguished from the other levying of war,
which is against the person of the King directly. And the
conspiring to levy this sort of war, which I have mentioned,
the constructive levying of war, is laid down in all the books
as never to have been held an overt act of compassing the
King’s death.

Gentlemen, I know I fatigue you by these legal argu.
ments ; but,when the prisoner at the bar is standing here on
his trial, on a construction of law, it is extremely necessary
the Jury should know what that construction is, and what
the foundation of it.

Gentlemen, I before stated to you—I stated to you, I will
not say under any degree of reproof, because the kind-
ness of that quarter of the Court from which it came will
never allow me to apply that name to it—but it was stated
to you by me, under correction, that the compassing and
imagining the King’s death was the crime, and an overt act
merely evidence of the crime, for the Jury to judge of, what-
ever might be the dictum of any lawyer. But I state, under
no fear of any observation from the bench—for, supposing it
to be as unfounded, as I believe it is well founded, still it is
agreeable to the dicta of all the lawyers who have writ-
ten on the subject,—that there is this distinction between the
two crimes, both going under the denomination of levying
war against the King, that the conspiring of one of them has
been held an overt act of conspiring the King's death, the ,
conspiring of the other being held to be no treason at all.

Now, Gentlemen, where you are to mterpret this clause in
the act of the late King, as to the conspiring to levy war,
and have no decision in point, if I am right in saying, that
that act only mentions those things to be made substantive
treasons, all of which were overt acts of treason before, if I
can shew that that sort of levying war, which is here in ques-
tion, was never an overt act of Treason under the statute of
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Edward III., I think I make out my case, that that cannot
be Treason under the statute of King George the Third. I
am not sure whether I have made myself perfectly intelligi.
ble. [Some of the Jury signified their assent.] If I have, I will
leave it there ; and now go on to shew you, that this sort of
levying of war, which the prisoner is accused of intending, is’
a sort of levying of war,which no court of law could, or would
find sufficient to make this man guilty of that Treason of
compassing the King’s death, charged under the statute of
Edward III.

Gentlemen, I was about to read a passage to you from
Lord Coke, in which he states this. He says, ¢ This related
to the several and distinct treasons before expressed, (and
especially to the compassing and imagination of the death
of the King, for that it is secret in the heart,) and there-
fore one of them,” he says, * cannot be an overt act for an-
other.” I will observe afterwards, that this observation is
not to be taken to the full extent. It is more generally
worded than he usually expresses himself. ¢ As, for ex-
ample, a conspiracy is had to levy war, this (as hath been
said, and so resolved,) is no Treason by this act"—of Edward
IIT.—<until it be levied.” Of that thereis no doubt. ¢¢There-
fore it is no overt act, or manifest proof of the compassing of
the death of the King, within this act; for the words be"—
and soon. Now, if it were taken, that a levying of war could
be no overt act of compassing the death of the King, that is
wider than he lays down himself; for in the case of Lord
Essex, he mentions his levying war against the Queen asan
act of compassing her death. But Lord Hale is more explis
cit upon this subject. Lord Hale says, and I beg your at
tention, Gentlemen, to this passage—Lord Hale refers to
the passage I have quoted from Lord Coke, and there he
rectifies the mistake,which, I apprehend, is rather more appe-
rent than real, in my Lord Coke, and reconciles the two passs.
ges—he then says, ¢ An assembly to levy war against the
King, either to depose, or restrain, or enforce him to any act,
or to come to his presence to remove his counsellors or minis-
ters, or to fight against the King’s lieutenant or military com-
missionate officers”—that is, a war against his person directly,
~=¢¢is an overt act, proving the compassing the death of the
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King"—he says, * an overt act proving the compassing the
death of the King; forsuchawar,” hesays, ‘“isdirected against,
the very person of the King ; and he that designs to fight
against the King cannot but know at least it must hagard his
life. Such was the case of the Earl of Essex and some others.
But,”he concludes, ‘“if itbe a levying of a waragainst the King
merely by interpretation and construction of law, as that of
Burton and others, to pull down all enclosures, and that of the
appreatices in London lately, to pull down all bawdy-houses,
de quibus infra, this seems not to be an evidence of an overt
act to prove compassing the King's death, when it is so dis
closed upon the proof, or if it be so particularly laid in the
indictment.” He says, that, if it be particularly laid in the
indictment, that the war was one of those wars to accomplish
a general object, by force, which is, by construction of law
merely, a levying of war against the King, it would be a bad
indictment of compassing the King’s death. If, on the con-
trary, the indictment is well laid, and it comes out upon the
evidence, that it was & war for this purpose, and not a direct
war against the person of the King, then it is not an evidence of
anovert act to prove compassing the King’s death ; ¢ though,
prima facie, if it be barely laid as a levying war against the
King in the indictment, it is a good overt act to serve an in-
dictment of compassing the King’s death, till, upon the evi~
dence, it shall be disclosed to be only to the purpose aforesaid,
and so only an inéerpretative or constructive levying of war.
Aud Burton’scase, 39th Elizabeth, seems to intimate as much,
because they took him to be indictable only upon the statute
of 13th Elizabeth, cap. 1, for conspiring to levy war against
the Queen; whereas, if this had been an overt act to prove
the compassing of the death of the King, the fact had been
Treason within 25th Edward III., as surely it would have
been if he had conspired to have raised a war directly against
the King or his forces, and assembled people for that pur-
‘pose, though no actual war had been raised by him.”
T have already stated, that, by the 13th of Elizabeth, the
levying any war against the Queen was rendered Treason ;
.therefore those people, who had undertaken to pull down all
enclosures, or some general object, were indicted for conspi-
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Now, I will not detain you by stating what are the circum-
stances, the numbers, and open force, that constitute a levying
of war ; because upon that there will be no occasion for any
discussion here. 1t is agreed on all hands—it perhaps never
was laid down so broadly before as it was by Mr Justice
Foster, but I think it is the fair construction of common
sense,~—that it is of no importance what the species of array is,
in which persons are assembled. If they attempt a publick ob-
Jject with open force and violence, with clubs and sticks, or
staves, or anything such as they can command, there can be
no doubt that is a levying of war. The question here is, as
to the object of the war.

Then he goes on to say, and I beg particularly your at-
tention to the words of this passage : ¢ Insurrections, in or-
der to throw down all enclosures, to alter the established law,
or change religion, to enhance the price of all labour, or to
open all prisons.” Now, you will observe, that these are at-
tempts, in their nature, of the utmost importance; they
amount almost, in their nature, as nearly to rebellion as any-
thing can be, that is not levelled at the person of the King—
an insurrection to alter any law, no matter what law it is,—
whether it is a.law appointing persons to be elected to the
Commons House of Parliament in a certain mode, or a law
to regulate wages—whatever it is, they are all equally laws
of the land, and not one more than the other—an insurrec~
tion to change religion, a levying of war by force of arms to
change the religion established by law—nothing can come
closer to a direct war against the King’s person, and to an
* actual rebellion, than that, when you consider that the King

is bound, by his coronation oath, to defend the religion esta-
blished by law—when you consider that the title of the King,
at the time Mr Justice Foster wrote more especially, and the
safety of his Crown and his family, were held to depend upon
the preservation of the religion established by law. And yet
Mr Justice Foster, in conformity with Lord Hale, andall the
other authorities, states,what has been the law from before the
time of Lord Hale downwards, that ¢ insurrections, in or-
der to throw down all enclosures, to alter the established law
or change religion, to enhance the price of all labour, or to
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ence between the two sorts of levying of war; a levying of
war against the person of the King, mentioned by my Lord
Chief.Justice Hale, mentioned also by Mr Justice Foster,
and a levying of war for general purposes, which is, by con-
struction of law only, alevying of war against the King. And
among these general purposes it is laid down, that the purpose
of altering the established law, and the established religion,
by force, are not such purposes as will render the conspiracy
to levy & war for them an overt act of the Treason of com-
paxsing the King'sdeath, or any Treason at all, under the 25th
Edward II1.; and I cannot state it to you more strongly than
this.

In the case of Hardy, tried in 1792, before I.ord Chief-
Justice Eyre and a Special Commission, I think Mr Er-
skine, now Lord Erskine, laid down broadly this doctrine —e——

Lord Justice Clerk.—As counsel.

My Gront.—I consider that, in its utmost extent, my
Lord. :

He stated it in the case of Lord George Gordon. < If
I were to surround the House of Commons with an armed
force, this would not be an overt act of compassing the King’s
death.” He stated it broadly. Lord Chief-Justice Eyre,
in his charge to the Jury, congratulates them, that there
is no question of law which he thinks likely to give them
much trouble. Gentlemen, you will not understand me to
state this that Mr Erskine stated as any authority. The state-
ment of a counsel at the bar, however eminent that counsel
may have been, is no authority ; but that was said, and it
was left uncontradicted by the bench in that case ; a bench
certainly not indisposed to contradict such an assertion upon
that occasoin.

Gentlemen, I cannot state this better to you than in the
words of one of the most eminent Judges that ever sat upon
~ any bench in any country, my Lord Chief-Justice Holt, in the
case of Sir John Freind. His charge to the Jury is in these
words : ¢ Look ye, Gentlemen of the Jury, Sir John Freind,
the prisoner at the bar, is indicted for High Treason. The
Treason that is mentioned in the indictment, is conspiring,
- compassing, and imagining the death and destruction of the
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King's person, or endangering.of it, which, if actually levied,
ts High Treason; but a bare design to levy war, without
more, will not be T'reason ; as, for example, if persons do as-
semble themselves, and act with force in opposition to some
law which they think inconvenient, and hope thereby to get
repealed, this i3 levying a war and T'rcason, though purpo-
sing and designing it is not so. So when they endeavour,
in great numbers, with force, to make some reformation of
their own heads, without pursuing the methods of the law,
that is a levying of war and T'reason ; but the purposing and
designing it is not so. But if there be, as I told you, a pur-
pose and design to destroy the King, and to depose him from
his throne, or to restrain him, or have any power over him,
which is proposed or designed to be effected by war that is
to be levied, such a conspiracy and consultation to levy war
Jor the bringing this to pass, is an overt act of High Trea-
son. So that, Gentlemen, as to that objection that he makes
in point of law, it is of no force, if there be evidence sufficient
to convince you, that he did conspire to levy war for such an
md'ﬁ
Now I take this to be just as clear an exposition of the
subject as it is possible for language to convey to us. The
levying of war is Treason—a conspiracy to levy war is not
Treason under the statute of Edward III.; but, if the con-
spiracy and intention be to impose any restraint upon the -
King—to attack the person of the King in any degree or man-
ner whatever—and the mode by which this is to be effected,
is the levying of a war, then the conspiring to levy that war
is just as much Treason, as the conspiring any other means
for accomplishing the same object. But it is the object which
renders it Treason—the object being the constraint, or injury,
and consequent endangering of the person of the King.
My learned Friend near me quoted a passage from an
authority of this country, whom I cannot regularly quote as
an authority, because we cannot quote regularly living
authors as authority. The words will be in your recollection.
They arc taken from what the author has read in the books,
and he gives you the result, which he drew in his closet, of
what they have stated, and which result you have heard.



Gentlemen, I am sure, that, if I had not heard the doctrine
stated in an opposite manner from the opposite side of the
bar, in the loose way it was, I should not have troubled you
with this length of argument ; but I am anxious to shew you
that this doctrine is unfounded. You cannot open a page in
the State Trials, or in any author on the Law of Treason,
where you do not ﬁnd the doctrine stated as I have stated
it to you.

There is a case declded by Judge Jeﬂ'rey to the same pur-
pose, which could only be cited for a point of law not con-
nected with any private object he might have in view. But I
will come to a lawyer of our own times, whom I can quote
with more pleasure to myself, and with more authority to
you—I wean our countryman Lord Mansfield.

The case of Lord George Gordon has been stated to you,
and that is sufficient evidence of what was understood to be
the law at that time. You, perhaps, know the circumstan-
ces of Lord George Gordon’s mob. You know that it wasa
mob construed to amount to a levying war against the King,
which had for its object the pulling down of the Popish
meeting-houses, and the preventing a very wise law being
passed, brought in by Sir George Saville, I think, for remo-
ving some of the disabilities, under which that cluss of his
Majesty’s subjects had laboured.

This unfortunate gentleman, Lord George Gordon, did in
some way or other, for some objects which it was not very easy
to discover, connect himself with persons, as it was said, who
were engaged in this very improper and unaccountable pro-
ject of preventing, if possible, by force of arms, the House of
Commons from passing this bill. That was one object, and an
object which, if it had not been for the firmness of the House,
they must have accomplished. Another object was the pull-
ing down of all Popish meeting-houses in London, connected
with a similar object here, which was certainly Treason, It
never occurred to any man to charge him with compassing the
King’s death, and to give this levying of war in cvidence as
a proof of the overt act of it ; and Lord Mansfield addresses
the Jury in these terms:—¢ Gentlemen of the Jury, the
prisoner at the bar is indicted for that species of High
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Treason which is ealled levying war against the King, and
therefore it i3 necessary you should first be informed what is
in law levying war against the King, so as to constitute the
crime of High Treason within the statute of Edward III.,
and perhaps according to the legal signification of the term
before that statute. There are two kinds of levying war ;
one against the person of the King—to imprison, to dethrone,
or to kill him, or to make him change measures or remove
counsellors ;” against the King's person, you observe ;—
¢ the other, which is said to be levied against the Majesty
of the King, or, in other words, against him in his regal
capacity, when a multitude rise and assemble to attain, by
force and violence, any object of a general publick nature ;
that is levying war against the majesty of the King—and
most reasonably so held, because it tends to dissolve all the
bonds of society, to destroy property, and to overturn go-
vernment, and by force of arms to restrain the King from
reigning according to law. Insurrections by force and vio-
lence to raise the price of wages—to open all prisons—to
destroy meeting-houses—nay, to destroy all brothels—to re-
sist the execution of militia laws—to throw down all enclo-
sures—to alter the established law, or change religion—to
redress grievances, real or pretended—have all been held
levying war. Many other instances might be put.” He
goes on, * Lord Chief Justice Holt, in Sir John Freind's
case, says, if persons do assemble themselves, and act with
force in opposition to some law which they think inconve.
nient, and hope thereby to get it repealed, this is a levying
war and Treason. In the present case, it does not rest upon
an implication that they hoped by opposition to a law to get
it repealed ; but the prosecution proceeds upon the direct
ground, that the object was, by force and violence, to compel
the legislature to repeal a law ; and therefore, without any
doubt, I tell you the joint opinion of us all, that, if this mul.
titude assembled with intent, by acts of force and violence,
to compel the legislature to repeal a law, it is High Treason.”
And o it was; if they assembled for that purpose, it was
High Treason. Lord Mansfield says, that there are two sorts
of levying war ; one against the person of the King ;—and
18
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contradict the assertions of counsel, what would be the au-
thority of the law of England or of Scotland.

My Grant.—I cannot carry it so far as that ; but if any
violent proposition had been laid down, it is most likely
Lord Chief Justice Eyre would have interposed. But what
I have read to you, Gentlemen, is the authority of the great-
est sages of the law—some sitting on the bench, and deliver-
ing those opinions which they would have embodied in their
closets, and others delivering them in books, which would
not be authority now, but that they have been adopted as
authority by the Courts ever since—I mean such persons as
Lord Coke, Lord Hale, and Mr Justice Foster ; and I have
stated to you also the opinion of Lord Holt, and various other
Judges, delivered in judgment, admitted on all hands to be
correct.

Gentlemen, my position therefore is this, that this being
the law of Treason under the statute of Edward III., and
the statute of George II1. having done no more, than, in the
particular cases which it mentions, rendered those acts which
it mentions substantive acts of Treason, which acts would
before have been overt acts of the Treason of compassing the
King's death ; the conclusion is, that when that statute de-
clared that the compassing to levy war should be a substan-
tive Treason, provided that war had for its object the com-
pelling his Majesty to change his measures or counsels, it
must be understood to have enacted the compassing to levy
war into a substantive Treason in those cases only, in which
the war was of that nature, and the compulsion of that na-
ture, that the conspiracy to levy such war would antecedent-
ly have been evidence of a treason under the statute of Ed-
ward IIL ; and if I have succeeded in shewing you, that a
conspiracy to levy a war, not directed against the person of
the King, butof that sort which the law-books,and the Judges, -
and all the authorities, declare to be only a constructive le-
vying of war, is not evidence of any Treason by the statute
‘of Edward IIL ; I have proved that a conspiracy to levy
such a war as this, is not a conspiracy to levy that sort of
war which is in the contemplation of the 36th of the late
King. . We are here in no other situation than we should
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as far as we can get at the object, was such, as that the con-
spiring to accomplish it by force of arms could be treated as
a conspiracy to levy war directly against the person of the
King ; but, at the most, only a conspiring to levy a war, that,
being levied, might turn out to be constructively against the
King, viz. for the purpose, by force or violence, of altering
some established law. ‘

Gentlemen, the Solicitor General stated to you, with great
candour, when he opened the case to you, that the object
that he inferred these persons to have, was that of accom.
plishing a reform in Parliament. He said to you, alluding to
the paper, it shews the nature of the wrongs which were to
be redressed—it states the object to be reform in the House
of Commons; and then he said, if a war be devised for that
purpoee, it would be Treason, under the 36th George III.,
The object he inferred of these misguided persons was, to
produce a reform in Parliament. Now, I state to you, with
very great deference certainly, but with perfect confidence,
that a levying of war to obtain reform in Parliament, or for
the alteration of any law, is not, and never was, an overt act
of compassing the King’s death under the 25th of Edward
I1I.; and I state to you, that, if I am correct in that, the con-
spiring to levy such a war cannot be within the 86th of Geo.
IIL

But, Gentlemen, the object, which these persons had in
view, has never beerr laid before you with that degree of
precision, which I apprehend it is absolutely necessary that
everything should be proved with, in a case of this nature. I
shall take it, that the prisoner at the bar is connected with this
absurd—with this (give it any appellation you like)—this
Proclamation, which has been read. Who framed it—where
the conspirators were who composed it—what their object
was-how they manifested it—all this you are utter strangers
to. All this, so far as I understand, the law officers of the
Crown, my learned Friends, are utter strangers to. Those
persons, if such existed in Scotland,which I very much doubt,
have totally escaped observation. You have, therefore, no light
whatever, as in all cases which I have heard or read of—yon
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have no consultations with any persons—no correspondence
with any persons—from anything which any persons bave
said you have no light whetever, to opea up to you either
the existence of a conspiracy, or the object of a conspiracy.
For all that appears to you, there may have been no conspi-
racy in the case—for all that appears to you, some one indi-
vidual, with a mischievous intention of any given nature,
may have framed this Proclamation, and may have taken
measures for giving it the publicity it has unhappily re-
ceived.

Now, Gentlemen, when you take the Proclamation itself,
there is no person that can read it, that will not at once say,
that, whoever he was that composed it, his object could
not but be mischievous. But that is not enough. There
are abundance of mischiefs far short of Treason—there are
abundance of mischiefs which are close on Treason, and yet
not Treason—there are abundance even of treasonable ob-
jects, which yet are not the objects set forth in this statute,
the compassing to levy war to accomplish which, would be
Treason. You must be satisfied, not from what you believe—
when I say from what you believe, not without perfect evi-
dence—you must be satisfied, not by the conclusions drawn
in your own breast—you must dismiss from your recollec-
tion everything you heard before you entered that box—
everything you thought, felt, or imagined—I know you too
well to render it necessary to say this—but you are not to
judge here, even upon inferences that vou draw—supposi-
tions—strong inferences from what you know—though per-
haps stronger than that which you draw from the evidence,
~—you must have it proved before you, that the object first of
-all of this Proclamation was what it is said to be, a Treason-
able one, and you must have proved before you this also,
that the Treason which some person or other had in view,
who wrote this Proclamation, was such a Treason as comes
within the statute of the 36th George IIIL., if it were meant
to be accomplished by force of arms.

But, Gentlemen, you must go much further than that.
You must be able to state what was the object. You must

* not say to yourself loosely, why, I think the object here was
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to overturn the Constitution—and you, that you think the
object here was to obtain a reform. One may think it was to
obtain a reform ; another, that it was the royal government
that was to be overturned; a third may think another ob-
ject; and a fourth another. But you must all come to the con- -
clusion, that that Address had an object, which was a spe-
cifick Treason within the law which I have stated to you.

Now, I confess, for my own part, no man can view with
more—1I do not say suspicion, because it is too light a word
for it—no man can view with more reprehension than I do
this Address—the immediate object of which was to sow dis_
sension, and produce disturbance, of a local nature, wherever
it might be promulgated. No doubt the object was the most
malignant that can be conceived. It was the object of per-
sons, who kept concealed with great skill, to send this Ad-
dress around a part of the country, where the people were in
a state, most of them, of starvation, in order that it might
have the effect of egging them on to do they knew not what,
by means they did not know, but which could have no other
result than to excite great local disturbance, to do great local
damage and mischief, and to the inevitable destruction of all
the unfortunate and infatuated people who lent themselves
to it. But, what the object was of the persons who assembled
upon this Address, (I will speak presently as to how far the
prisoner is connected with it,) I defy any man to gather dis-
tinctly from the words of the Address. You may believe
every mischief you like of it, but you cannot say, upon your
consciences, that you are clear upon the proof, that this,
or this, was the particular object they had in view ; and that
this object was a treasonable object ; and that this treason-
able object was within the statute of the 86th of George

IIL '

Now, Gentlemen, above everything in the world, it is
Decessary, in a case of this nature—a case of Treason—where
a poor individual, in the situation of this unfortunate man,
though, thanks to the humanity of our laws, he sees, and
otbers see, that his case meets with as much attention as i
he was in a higher situation of life ;—yet, where an individual
in his situation, an unprotected individual, is here put on his

-
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upon his oath. Not that I would not trust many men upon
their oaths, who had been guilty of crimes for which they
might be arraigned ; but I would not trust a man upon his
oath, who tried to cheat another into the commission of an
offence like this, or to leave with him, by stealth, evidence by
which his life might be brought into danger. What does the
prisoncr do ? He meets Fraser, and though he does not know
him intimately, he knows he is a teacher, and therefore he is
likely to be a better informed person than most of those with
whom he associated—he meets him, and shews him this Pro.
clamation ; and, under evident agitation, Fraser says, I think
this announces a state of rebellion. What does the prisoner
thendo? He takes the Proclamati home. Does he go and
hawk it about 7 No. When Fraser goes home, and tells his
wife, who gave her testimony in the clearest manner, she says,
I have the greatest curiosity to see it ; will you fetch it? He
goes to this man, and begs he will lend his wife this Procla-
mation. - Accordingly he does so. This is on the Saturday
night, late. He goes and lcaves the Proclamation. He goes
the next day, and she gives him back the Proclamation, and
then he says what he means to do with it. He says, he means
instantly to destroy it. That he destroyed it, itis impossible
for him to prove, unless he could call witnesses, who had seen
him do so. Henever imagined that he would be brought here
to trial. But it never has been seen upon him since; they could
not produce it here ; and, in point of fact, he did destroy it.
Gentlemen, trace him a little further. Upon the Sun-
day, the Proclamation is stuck up. It was unnecessary
for me to prove, for you have it sufficiently in evidence,
that this Proclamation was thrust into people’s houses all
reund about. Abundance of them were seen on Monday.
And you find him, the first time he is connected with any of
these things, in the crowd at Mr Houstoun’s mill. What do
you find him doing ? In the first place, what were the crowd
doing? And you observe this all the way through ; there is
no act of force attributed to this crowd anywhere. Where-
ever he is, they conduct themselves in a peaceable orderly
manner ; in as orderly a manner as any assembly of people of
the same number would bave conducted themselves. Walker
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out before you, his situation and connexion with these things'
are such as to call on you for a verdict of guilty of High
Treason, I never shall hope, in any other case, to obtain &
verdict of acquittal.

Gentlemen, this is the whole that this man -is proved to
have done at that first mill; and this was the whole which
was done previous to the meeting on the Green. One man
said, he and Walker appeared equally active. It is in evi-
dence before you, you will recollect, that the only thing
that was done, was speaking ; for, as to acting, there was
none, unless you call walking acting, and his activity walk-
ing backwards and forwards. The only thing done was
the addressing Mr Houstoun, and asking him to stop the
work, and telling him the consequences if he did not. Then
this man says, that Speirs was equally active with Walker,
except—what ? Except that he did not speak. Why, speaking

. was all the acting. That was all.—I do not think you will
give much for that gentleman’s testimony.

Now, Gentlemen, there is nothing else proved against him
at all at this meeting. I do not mean to state all the evi-
dence to you ; and it would be absurd in me to do so, be-
cause you have taken notes, and your memory will be re-
freshed by my Lord. One person said, he came out of the
crowd ; another person said, that he said something else to
Mr Houstoun. But the best evidence on this subject con-
tradicts that. There cannot be mqre unimpeachable testi-
mony than that of Mr Houstoun himself, both from his cha-
racter,his appearance, his situation in life, and the manner of
giving his evidence. There cannot be better evidence, for he
was the person addressed. He was the person whose attention
was called to what these men, or the mob, did ; and he says
‘Walker came to him, with another man; and he distinctly
says, that the prisoner is not the man. Now, Mr Houstoun's
testimony, if you look at it, is, ¢ I do not remember that it
struck me very much; the man who stood before me said,
stop the work, the other works are stopped. I cannot
swear that the prisoner is the man ; if I had seen this man
in the street, I would not have said, there is the man that
stood before me in that crowd—that is not, I did not re-
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Lord Justice Clerk.—Y es—1 will read the words—+¢ 1 am
surprised at not knowing the man; I think I could not have
recognized him to be the man.” ’

My Grant.—Those are the words as I took them. Of
course my Lord’s are to guide you, Gentlemen; but, how-
ever, it is quite clear. Then it was said, this man had a fus-
tisn jacket on. Now, the other witnesses prove he had a cor-
duroy jacket on. We have nothing of the colour of the fus-
tian jacket ; we have of the corduroy jacket ; one man says
it was velveteen. I build nothing on that. But you have it
in evidence, that there were a number of people there in cor-
duroy or fustian jackets; and it is sworn to be a most com-
meon dress for weavers when about their work. So that to
think of identifying a weaver in this country by his having
a corduroy or a fustian jacket, is as wild a proposition as
can well be maintained.

Now, Gentlemen, a man has said before you, and that is
the only man who says any other words than Mr Houstoun
states, that it was said, that it was by desire of the publick that
the works should be stopped. That is in flat contradiction to
Mr Houstoun, who tells you, that there was nothing else
said. Mr Houstoun says, ¢ A man of the name of James
Walker came up to me ; the circle was not regularly closed ;
they got all together in a mass, and he came from that mass ;
I did not observe any person along with him.” Now, it is
impossible, that if any person was deputed to come up with
Walker, he should not have observed him ; and therefore
Mr Houstoun’s testimony is worth all the other testimony on
the subject. If no other person did come up, it is evidence
he was not part of a deputation, or Mr Houstoun must have
poticed it. Then the rest of the conversation Mr Houstoun
bad was with Walker, and nobody else spoke on the sub-
ject. Thea Mr Houstoun says afterwards, some other per-
son was on the other side of him ; that Walker spoke to him
about the Proclamation; that he did not see the person;
that the crowd was close behind him ; then, as to the fact
of his having been afterwards with Mr Houstoun, it is very
likely to be so, when he was leaving them. This crowd leave
the mill, and leave Mr Houstoun to carry it on; and then
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_ was not with the mob—that we can say—after a consider-
able interval, he is found at the Green at this assembly. It
is proved, that the transaction at Mr Houstoun’s mill was at
ten o’clock in the morning. Mr Houston proves this, and
there is one man who proves a gredt deal too much. One
man says it was not till half past eleven, and he proves the
mills were stopped in the morning, and the others prove
they were not stopped till dinner. He is one of the people
who spoke to something the witness said, a man who swore
without well recollecting what he was about. But Mr Hous-
toun, and all the rest of the witnesses, prove it was before
ten o'clock, after breakfast, just before, or at ten in the
morning ; and it is agreed they did not stop here above
twenty. minutes. The distance you know from Johnaton.
From that time you have no evidence of where the prisoner
was ; but you have evidence that the crowd, at least as much
of the crowd as kept together, for they seem to have sepa-
rated, and some of the people to have gone home, went in a
body to King’s mill. There the prisoner is not, that we
know of. Nobody sees him there; nay, we have evidence
that he was not of the party that went to King’s mill, as
good evidence as we could well have of it,—for we have
the evidence of all the people who saw him in the crowd op-
posite to Mr Campbell’s house, when he was on his way to
the town of Johnston. Then at twelve o’clock, or about
twelve, or a little past, some two hours or more after that,
you have him on the Green. And what is he doing there ?

Now, Gentlemen, I am very far from standing up here

- to argue before you, for one moment, that this meeting at
the Green was not a most improper meeting. I do not think
it was a meeting of the character attempted to be fixed

upon it, and I will tell you why I do not think so. There
is not the least shadow of proof, there is not a ground for
believing, that there was any concert about this meeting be-

fore the meeting that day. There is every ground for be-
lieving the contrary; for that, which gave cause to the meet-
ing, did not take place till some time on the Sunday. This

.meeting, however, assembled. You have heard a descrip-

tion of what sort of meeting it was. It was a meeting of as
10






849

all the rest of them, who said they heard Laing make a
speech, every one of them, without exception, say they did
not hear the prisoner at all. Some say they heard the pri-
soner say a few words ; none of them knew what they'were
about. So that, where they heard everything that was said
by way of address to the people, some more perfectly, some
less perfectly, not one of them heard what this prisoner said.
Then, I submit, what he said was not in the nature of any
address to the assembly.

I ought to mention one circumstance to you.—-One man
has said there were persons crossed the Green, of whom one
was Walker, and that he had the Address in his hand. We
have it in evidence, that Walker was the person, who took
down this Address from the gate of the church. We have
it in evidence, that there was a number of people about him
at that part of the Green, and a crowd at the other part of
the Green. Is it possible that the prisoner was one of that
party? I do not know ; but I do not care, whether he was
or not. Nobody says he took down the Address, or was there
at the time; but Smith says, that the prisoner was with
‘Walker, and others, when they crossed the Green. This
does not alter the case at all. Walker took down and read
the Address. The prisoner and other persons were there,
and you have no evidence that the prisoner did any one
thing more than the others did, except that he appeared in
the front of the ring, and they could not be all in front. One
man says, ‘‘ he was shoved in the middle, or side.” An-
other, ¢ he was in the middle, or side.” Aunother, ¢ he was
in the middle, along with the rest of the crowd.” He does
nothing—he takes no lead—proposes no resolutions—does
not go with them to one mill. He is said to have been in
the rear by one witness, who went out of curiosity, to the
Hagg Mill. You have no evidence that he took any part,
except his own evidence, and Stevenson’s. Stevenson says,
that, when the crowd had desired the works should be stop-
ped, and they were going away, they saw a man at the win-
dow; and a man said, ¢ Take him from the window, and
the crowd will go away,” a recommendation to a man to do
that, which would have the effect of making the crowd retire,
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and leave him in pcace. That is the whole he does at the
Hagg Mill. Then they make an attempt to prove he was
at Cartside Mill, where the crowd go from Hagg Mill;
and at Cartside Mill, if it were not for his own candid de-
claration, there is no evidence that he was at all. Till his
examination was read, I thought, and I told my learned
Friends, they have not proved us at Cartside Mill at all ; bat
then I found he said in his declaration he was there. I op-
posed the reading the declaration, on principles I thought
it my duty to submit to the Court. I had not seen the de-
_ claration, and I know how often prisoners commit them-

selves by unguarded expressions in their declarations—ex-
pressions which may appear to them trivial,—and how often
those collateral facts, being proved, cut you out of a defence
which would otherwise bave been entire. Therefore I
thought it my duty to resist, by all means I thought the
law afforded me, the reading this examination. I failed in
it, and the examination was read ; and what was that exa-
mination ? I put it to you as men of honour and conscience
«1 put it to you, if any one of you had been asked about
your conduct on any occasion, whether you could have
given a fairer, or more candid statement ? I have no objec-
tion to the cause being tried on his declaration. Iadmit he
was at those two places where they shew he was. I admit
he was at this place, where he himself has given evidence
that he was. How long was he there, and what did hedo?
He was there, and he left the crowd, and went into a pub-
lick house till the crowd left the mill.

This is not a case in which I should wish to make obser-
vations on the conduct of the prosecution ; but we have a
mass of evidence of what people have been doing, who were
arming themselves with pikes. We have evidence of this
man Cardie, who was said to have assembled people by
night to provide them with pikes, and of persons assembling
to purchase them. Has this any connexion with us? I had
almost said, could it be introduced here for any purpose
but to create prejudice? Do you believe, or does any man
believe, this man was connected with anything of the sort?
There is not the least surmise of-it. The whole that this
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man 1s connected with, I have detailed to you; and, how-
ever extraordinary it may appear to you, now that we have
been for nearly twenty-four hours engaged in this trial, the
whole evidence—the whole that is proved—against this man,
is at three particular places, the whole of which they might
have proved in half an hour. Here have we been wading
through this mass of evidence, and for what purpose? To
prove that this unfortunate man was in the morning, at ten
o'clock,-at Mr Houstoun’s mill, where he made use of one
expression, and took no lead ; that he was at the meeting
at twelve o’clock in the School-green, whence he says that he
followed the crowd, but in the leading of which he took no
part, to'a mill, where he said nothing, and did nothing ;
that he went from that, in the rear of them, to another mill ;
and then went into a whisky-shop, and drank a glass of
whisky.

That is the case. Is there any more in it? lel you,
Gentlemen, convict a man of High Treason upon that case ?
Will you lay your hands upon your hearts, and convict this
unfortunate man of High Treason on that case, and then
go home to sleep ?

Gentlemen, I said, in the outset of this, that, if this un-
happy man was to be sacrificed, it was to a construction of
law. It cannot be imagined that the participation, which
this man had in this transaction, is of such a nature as that,
of all the people connected with it, he should be selected as
the victim.

- Gentlemen, if I am not so totally deprived of the use of
my understanding as not to see an absurdity, I do think
that T have stated to you the whole of this case, and that I
have given you the view which you yourselves must take of
it. We have been subjected in this case, as all persons tried
for conspiracy by the law may be subjected, to be carried
through a multiplicity of evidence, relating to one man and
another, with whbm we have not been proved to be con-
nected. We are bound to suppose that the prosecutor, who
drags us through this proof, does intend to connect us with
all and every one of those persons in the end ; and, if he
could have proved this man was engaged in a conspiracy
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which certainly, in my estimation, weighs deeply on the pre-
sent question. I might maintain he was the author of it,
because it was on that day it first appeared, but I do not
wish to stretch anything against him ; but on the very day of
its date, the first of April, that Address is found and ad-
mitted to be in his hands. This is proved by the evidence of
Fraser, the schoolmaster, and his wife ; they prove farther,
that this individual having got it, did not conceal it, as my
learned Friend seemed to say, but immediately went and
produced it to people, with whom he is very little acquaint-
ed ; Mr Fraser says, he hardly knew the prisoner at the bar;
but he shows it to him, and to some other person who is in .
the shop.

Then it is stated, by my honourable Friend, that it was
destroyed by the prisoner at the bar. Now we see it was not
immediately destroyed, because in the course of that same
night, on the wife of Mr Fraser expressing a desire to see the
document, her husband went and called, and left word for
it, and this person brought it and put it igto her hands, and
there it remained for some time, when it was given back to
Fraser, and even then he did not destroy it. This is farther
proved by the prisoner’s declaration, where he says it was
lent to some individual, and not afterwards returned to him ;-
what became of it we do not see. This, then, is the first fea-
ture in the case,—we find the Address in the hands of the
prisoner on the first of April.

Now, Fraser tells us that he was struck with it at once ;'

- he said it was rebellion. ¢ I said, it scemed to announce a
state of rebellion, and disapproved of it;” and he likewise
says, *° The prisoner at the bar seemed to disapprove of it
also.” I do not mean to deny this; but we have very good
proof to show he felt no actual dissatisfaction with it by his
acts and deeds, because, on the Monday morning, we find
him employed—how ? why, doing all in his power to give
effect to this Proclamation, by following out its recommen-
dation, and stopping all the public works in the country. He

- himself says, he stopped working himself; he declares, that

updn the three following days, viz. Monday, Tuesday, and

Wednesday,  The declarant abstained from working, and
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public-house a few yards from the mill, and that mill as well
as the others was stopped.

"There is, besides this, evidence of various subsequent
proceedings at other mills, which were also stopped, and
there was a proceeding with respect to pikes, furnished to
persons who were witnesses on this trial. A great deal of
comment was made on this subject by my learned Friend,
as to how far this was evidence that could be admitted or
listened to as against the prisoner. Now, I state to you,
partly upon an authority which I shall read, and upon a
multitude of authorities, which I am ready to lay before
you, that, in the cuse of conspiracy, an accessary is not
merely liable for acts occurring in his presence, but for the
acts of all the parties engaged in such conspiracy, and done
in furtherance thereof. In the case of Brandreth, which is
lying here, a case of conspiracy which occurred at a consi-
derable number of miles from Nottingham, acts in further-
ance of the conspiracy done at Nottingham were admitted
as evidence against the accused. Therefore, on strict legal
principle, by the law of England, I should be entitled to
hold that this individual is guilty of those other stoppings
of the other mills; and those other acts, as to the pikes, at
which, though the prisoner was not present, one or other
of the leaders of this conspiracy were, and this is all that
was necessary to connect that individual with them. Smiley
is present at one of them. And with respect to the pikes,
Parker is the person who attends there, and in whose cus-
tody the shafts are found, and it is he who distributes them
to these miserable boys. But though these acts of Parker
are, in strict law, sufficient to implicate the prisoner, I do
not desire to carry the matter that length, but only to rest
that they were not disposed to stop with stopping the mills,
but were inclined to go one other step, and find arms, in or-
der to accomplish the object they had in view, namely, to
overturn the Government of the country.

Now, Gentlemen, I am ashamed of taking up the time I
have done ; but without going more minutely into the case,
I submit it to your deliberate judgment, whether, from the
facts I have stated, there was not here a most deep and dan-






381

overt acts are proved, I say, you cannot discharge your
consciences in any way so satisfactorily to yourselves, or so
consistent with your duty, as by giving that verdict which
is necessary for the peace and safety, not only of this coun-
try, but especially for the preservation of those individuals
in the lower walks of lifc; it is matter of the utmost im-
portance that such atrocious acts as these should be stop-
ped in the outset. We have instances of attempts going
further than this, involving individuals in still greater guilt,
Nothing, certainly, could be so wild—so foolish or absurd,
as the intentions and expectations of these deluded people,
to suppose that this country, blessed with a constitution
which is the envy of the world, and which lives in the hearts
of nine-tenths of the inhabitants,—supported by all the
powers of the country, and all the authority of the state,
could be overturned by such attempts as these, on the part
of a set of igriorant weavers from Glasgow and Paisley, is
ridiculous in the extreme. But that matters not to the case,
Much bloodshed and many lives might notwithstanding
have been lost; and if you think that those persons did
consider such a scheme practicable, and that they did all in
their power to accomplish that object, it is necessary that
such example shall be made as may teach men the danger
of such proceedings—may point out the hazard by which
they expose themselves and families and the lower orders
in general—may demonstrate that the pcace and quiet of
the other inhabitants of the country is not to be invaded
with impunity. Upon these grounds it is that I ask your
verdict. I can safely assure you, that I never feel so bappy
as when I can, consistently with my duty, consent to the ac-
quittal of a prisoner ; but here I am unavoidably compelled
to ask at your hands a verdict of guilty.
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to travel ; but which facts, or overt acts, must be proved to
your satisfaction, or some of them at least, before you can
convict the prisoner under any one of the counts contained
in the indictment.

The first of these counts is one laid upon an ancient sta-
tute, passed in the reign of Edward the Third, upon that
branch of it which relates to the compassing and imagining
the death of the King, and in support of that count nineteen
different overt acts are enumerated in this indictment. The
second count of the indictment contains a charge of an actual
levying of war against the King. But you have heard it
distinctly stated, upon the part of his Majesty’s Advocate,
that he does not, upon this occasion, ask any verdict upon
that count. And therefore, Gentlemen, you will have to
keep this steadily in your view, that it is not upon any count
charging the prisoner at the bar with the actually levying
war agdinst the King in his realm, that any verdict is expect-
" ed at your hands, or which, under the circumstances of the
case, you can find at all against the prisoner.

The third and the fourth counts in this indictment are
counts which are rested, as I shall have occasion immediate-
ly to show to you, upon a recent statute passed in the reign
of his late Majesty King George the Third ; and the first of
those two counts is the compassing and intending to deprive
and depose the King of and from the style, honour, and
kingly name of the imperial crown of this realm. But the
fourth count is the charge of compassing to levy war against
the King, in order, by force and constraint, to compel him
to change his measures and counsels. And it is to this last
count, with such observations as have been made, and I am
still to make to you, in reference to the first count in the in-
dictment, that it is your duty to attend in considering the
amount and import of the evidence which has been adduced
against the prisoner at the bar. You may lay, therefore, en-
tirely out of your consideration, the charge of actually levy-
ing war, and the charge of conspiring to depose the King,
and confine your attention to the two others, the first and the
fourth counts in the indictment, upon which it will be my
duty particularly to observe.-
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seen or known, any just foundation for the position that
was just now laid down to you, namely, that there has been
at all times, for I saw no qualification in the statement, a
disposition in Courts and in Judges, to extend and stretch
that department of the law upon which your attention is
now to be fixed. Upon the contrary, I do state it without
hesitation, and without fear of contradiction from any man
who looks fairly to the circumstances, that, since the Revo-
lution in 1688, at the least, there is not to be discovered .
any such disposition upon the part of the Judges of this
realm. You will not suppose, Gentlemen, that I am here
endeavouring, or about to endeavour, to vindicate my own
individual conduct in this or any other case in which I have
had the misfortune to preside under this commission ; nor
am I stating anything in reference to its proceedings at
all. But I speak of the conduct of other Judges, those that
are living and those that are dead, when I state to you that
. there does not appear to me to be any foundation for this im_
putation. Upon the contrary, I apprehend, when these cases
referred to are thoroughly examined, they will be found to
have been adjudged upon a special and an attentive consi-
deration of those principles that are fixed in the best autho-
rities of thelaw of England, and in the opinions of the highest
and the most eminent of its judicial characters.

Gentlemen, the position which I understand the learned
gentleman to have laid down to you, was, that under the
charge of compassing and imagining the death of the King,
it was indispensably necessary to prove, and that the Jury,
before it could convict, must be fully satisfied, that the party
accused of that species of Treason, had, in his contempla~
tion and view, in the conspiracy in which he was engaged, the
actual natural death of the King; and that unless that inten-
tion, which the law commonly requires to be the foundation
of that species of Treason, was completely made out, no per-
son could be convicted of that species of Treason,

Gentlemen, I do apprehend, that when the authorities,
which are considered as decisive upon questions of this na.
ture, are attended to, it will appear that this is a position

_voL, 1. s
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that intention shall be manifested by certain overt or open
acts, or, in other words, that the person accused of that Trea-
son shall thereof be provably attainted of open deed by
persons of his own condition—but that intention may be
manifested in a variety of ways. That a variety of overt acts
may be adduced in support of the charge, must be obvious
to every person who considers the subject for a single mo-
ment; and accordingly it is fixed and settled law, that a
great variety of cases, if sufficient overt acts are proved, will
infer guilt of that species of Treason. But when I refer you,
Gentlemen, to the authorities which I am now to read, you
will be perfectly satisfied, that, as evidence of this criminal
intention, which is thus raised into the highest offence of the
law, the law has not required-that the natural death of the
King, shall be that which must in every case be proved to
have been in the contemplation of the accused, before he be
convicted of that Treason.

My Lord Hale, who has been referred to, expresses him-
self in these words, in reference to this species of Treason:
¢ Though the conspiracy be not immediately and directly,
and expresaly the death of the King, but the conspiracy is of
something that, in all probability, must induce it, and the
overt act is of such a thing as must induce it—this is an overt
act to prove the compassing of the King’s death, which will
be better explained by the instances themselves; and there-
fore, if men conspire to imprison the King by force and a
strong hand till he hath yielded to certain demands, and for
that purpose gather company or write letters, this is an overt
act to prove the compassing of the King’s death ; for it isin
effect to despoil him of his kingly government, and so ad-
judged by all the Judges in the Lord Cobham's case,
1 James, and in the case of the Earl of Essex, 48 Elizabeth,
Co. P.C. page 12. But then there must be an overt act to
prove that conspiracy to restrain the King; and then that
overt act to prove such a design, is an overt act to prove the
compassing the death of the King.” Then he goes on to say,
¢ This must be intended of a conspiracy forcibly to detain
or imprison the King;” and he goes on to mention an in-
stance. But be proceeds further in these words: ¢ A con-
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death.” And then he goes on to quote the case of my Lord
Preston, who was tried under this charge, of compassing and
imagining the death of the King; and where the prepara-
tion of a certain paper, for the purpose of giving information
to, and exciting a foreign invasion of the kingdom, was held
to be an overt act, although the paper never had been deli-
vered, but was taken in the same vessel in which my Lord
Preston had embarked, for the purpose of going to France.
The paper never had arrived at its destination. But the
preparation of that paper, and its being in the same vessel
with the accused, was held to be an overt act of compassing
the death of the King. ¢ And so in the case of Patrick
Harding, the raising men, with intent to dethrone the King,
and sending them abroad to join, for that purpose, with the
forces of France, then at open war with us, which, had the
overt act been properly laid within the clause of adhering,
was ruled to be an overt act of compassing the King’s death.”
But then, Gentlemen, he proceeds thus : ¢ But every insur-
rection, which, in judgment of law, is intended against the
person of the King, be it to dethrone or imprison him, or to
oblige him to alter his measures of government, or to remove
evil counsellors from about him—these risings all amount to
levying war within the statute, whether attended with the
pomp and circumstances of open war, or not; and every
conspiracy to levy war for these purposes, though not T'rea-
son within the clause of levying war, is yet an overt act
within the other clause of compassing the King's death ; for
these purposes cannot be effected by numbers and open
force, without manifest danger to his person.”
' Now, Gentlemen, such being the undoubted authorities
upon this part of the Jaw, I have no difficulty in stating to
you, that a conspiracy to levy war against the King, by the
description that is stated in this section of Foster that I have
now read to you, be it to dethrone or imprison him, or to
oblige him to alter his measures of government, or to remove
evil councillors from him,—these risings all amount to a levy.
ing of war, and are overt acts of compassmg and imagining
the death of the King.

But, Gentlemen, you have heard, in reference to the sta-
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the death of the King, if a conspiracy to that effect have been
fully manifested by an overt act.

Now, Gentlemen, the statute which I allude to is that
passed in the 36th of the late King ; I shall not trouble you
with reading the preamble, but confine your attention to the
words on which this fourth count of the indictment has rest-
ed, before I read to you any authority or explanation on the
subject. The words that I refer to are these :==*¢ That if,
during the natural life of the King, any person shall, within
the realm or without, compass, imagine, invent, devise, or
intend death, or destruction, or any bodily harm tending to
death or destruction, maim or wounding, imprisonment or
restraint of the person of our lord the King, his heirs and
successors, or to deprive or depose him, or them, from the
style, honour, or kingly name of the imperial crown of this
realm, or of any other of his Majesty’s dominions or coun-
tries, or to levy war against his Majesty, his heirs and suc-
ceseors, within this realm, in order by force or constraint to
compel him, or them, to change his, or their, measures or
councils, or in order to put any force or constraint upon, or
to intimidate or overawe both Houses or either House of
Parliament, or to move or stir any foreigner or stranger with
force to invade this realm, or any other his Majesty’s domi-
nions or countries, under the obeisance of his Majesty, his
heirs and successors ; and such compassings, imaginations,
inventions, devices, or intentions, or any of them, shall ex-
press, utter, or declare by publishing any printing or wri-
ting, or by any overt act or deed, being legally convicted
thereof, upon the caths of two lawful and credible witnesses
upon trial, or otherwise convicted or attainted by due course
of law,~then every such person and persons, so as aforesaid
.offending, shall be deemed, declared, and adjudged to be a
traitor.”—So that the offence here, which is created and de-
clargd to be a substantive act of Treason, is where any per-
son shall compass, imagine, invent, devise, or intend to levy
war ngmnst his Majesty, his heirs and successors, within this
his realm, in order by force or constraint to compel him, or
them, to change his, or their, measures or councils. These
are the clear and distinct enacting words of this statute,
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levying of war, and, consequently, to compass or imagine
such an insurrection, in order by force and numbers to com-
pel his Majesty to alter his measures or councils, will be to
compass or imagine the levying of war against his Majesty
for that purpose, within the just meaning of the late statute.
Rebellion at its first commencement is rarely found in mi-
litary discipline or array, though a little success may soon
enable it to assume them.” So that here, Gentlemen, you
have both a clear exposition of the meaning of this new sta-
tate and also a most distinct and accurate exposition of what
is a levying of war against the King.

But, Gentlemen, I shall now refer you to the words of the
present Lord Chief-Justice of the Common Pleas, in ex-
plaining the law in one of the late cases at Derby. ¢ And
now, Gentlemen, I shall beg leave to call once more your
.attention to what the law is ; and baving briefly stated it in
-the outset, I will only again say, that there is no legal doubt
or difficulty belonging to this part of the case. The learned
Judges with whom I act upon this occasion being of opinion
with all their predecessors, whose doctrine and decisions
have been referred to, that if there be an insurrection, by
which is meant a large rising of the people, in order, by
force.and violence, to accomplish and avenge, not any pri-
vate objects of their own, not any private quarrels of their
own, but to effectuate any general purpose, that is consider-
ed by thelaw as a levying of war; and this you may take to
be clearly the law of the land. Nor is it the law of the land
as depending upon the authority of any single Judge, it
pervades every page of the criminal law of England, as ap-
plicable to the case of High 'I'reason ; it may be traced back
to antiquity more or less remote, has been delivered down,
and is acted upon at the present day; but, drawn as much
into controversy as it has been on this occasion, I think it
necessary, not in my own words, for I will not trust myself
to any looseness of expression when a rule of law is to be
given affecting the life of man, but once more I will state,
and more at length, the law, as delivered by the greatest
authorities.” Then he gocs on, Gentlemen, to state the
opinion of a great and eminent Judge upon this subject.
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to you by my Lord Advocate. ¢ In the same manner, hold-
ing consultations, or taking measures, for raising an insur-
rection, if the object be directed against the King’s autho-
rity, as to compel him to alter his measures, to dismiss his
counsellors, to submit to demands for reformation; or, in
general, to compel him to adopt, or to restrain him from
adopting, any measure, which it is part of his prerogative
to do or not, as he judges proper, all such purposes, if at-
tempted by force, are Treason, under the statute; for it is
justly-observed by Hale, one of the ablest Judges, and most
constitutional lawyers we ever had, ¢ That it is a kind of
natural and necessary consequence, that he who attempts
to conquer or subdue the King, cannot intend less than to -
take away his life.’”

Now, Gentlemen, having detained you so long upon ex-
plaining what is the law, and what is the statute upon which
this fourth count of the indictment is entirely rested, name-
Jy, the charge of conspiracy to levy war against the King,
to compel him, by force and constraint, to change his mea-
sures and councils, it is now necessary for me to advert more
particularly to the nature of this case, before calling your
attention, which it will be incumbent upon me to do, to the
evidence which has been led in support of it.

Gentlemen, you must be quite satisfied that my Lord
Advocate is perfectly well founded, when he states to you,
that the whole gist of this cause rests upon the point of the
connexion of the conspiracy which he charges against the
prisoner at the bar, with the proclamation or address upon
which you have heard so much. In directing your atten-
tion to the evidence, I shall have occasion to bring under
your notice those testimonies which have led to the Court
admitting this document, which is now upon the table as a
part of the evidence against the prisoner at the bar—a copy
of the Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain and Ire-
land ; and there cannot be the slightest doubt that that Ad-
dress is the basis and foundation of the charge against the
prisoner at the bar. And it will be for you to deter-
mine, upon a careful and an attentive consideration of the
evidence, whether, in the first place, the prisoner bas
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overt acts, conspiring to devise plans to subvert the Consti-

tution, and the second of these overt acts, conspiring to levy

war, and to subvert the Constitution, which were so much

observed on and excepted against by the learned Gentleman,

are identically the two first overt acts in the indictment,

which was so very recently preferred against Arthur Thistle-

wood and others, who were charged there, amongst other

things, with that of conspiring to levy war against the King,

to compel him to change his measures and councils; and

also conspiring, compassing, and imagining, the death of"
our Lord the King. There, Gentlemen, the two first overt

acts are identical with those upon which so many remarks

were made to you ; and, therefore, you must, in the first

place, be satisfied that there is no foundation for saying they

are unprecedented ; and, in the second place, I presume you

will agree with me in thinking, that it is not very likely

that the eminent Judges who sat on that bench, whose pro-

ceedings I had the honour to witness, would have permitted

these overt acts, not only to have stood on the indictment,’
but to have gone to evidence, or to the Jury, if they had:
been doubtful in law, far less if contrary to law, and not:
o ertacts of this species of Treason.

But, Gentlemen, in addition to these overt acts, you will
observe I am now looking to the abstract of this indictment,
which will be delivered to you, that there is a distinct charge
in the indictment for publishing and posting up a treason-
able Address to the Inhabitants of Great Britain and Ire-
land, to incite the soldiers of the King, and other subjects,
to rebellion; that is the third overt act. The fourteenth
overt act is for forcing divers subjects of our Lord the King,
to discharge and turn off their workmen ; and the fifteenth
overt act is for striking work, and compelling and persuading
others to do the same. Now, Gentlemen, although it must
appear to you at first sight—at least, it would appear to you
at the beginning of this proceeding,—to be a little extraor-
dinary, that these should have been stated as distinct overt
acts of a count of this indictment of compassing and imagi-
ning the death of the King, or of the last count, of compass-
ing, imagining, inventing,devising, and intending tolevy war
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with stating, that, ¢ roused from that torpid state in which
we have been sunk for so many years, we are at length com-
pelled, from the extremity of our sufferings, and the con-
tempt heaped upon our petitions for redress, to assert our
rights at the hazard of our lives, and proclaim to the world
the real motives which (if not misrepresented by designing
men, would have united all ranks) have reduced us to take
up arms for the redress of our common grievances.” Here,
then, is a declaration that, if not for misrepresentations, all
men would have been united, and would have concurred in
this general measure for the redress of our common grie-
vances; and which, I say, does not leave, and, I am sure,
will not leave, in the mnind of any one of you Gentlemen that
I have now the honour to address, the slightest doubt that
they are grievances of a public, not of a private or indivi-
dual nature, that are here spoken of, when there is an ex-
Ppression in the words that I have read, that, if it had not
been for misrepresentations, all would have been united in
accomplishing this common object, which the framers of this
Address state, that they. are prepared to accomplish by the
taking up of arms, at the hazard of their lives. Then it goes
on to say, ¢ the numerous public meetings held throughout
the country have demonstrated to you, that the interests of
all classes are the same—that the protection of the life and
property of the rich man is the interest of the poor man;
and, in return, it is the interest of the rich to protect the
poor from the iron grasp of despotism; for, when its vic-
tims are exhausted in the lower circles, there is no assu-
rance but that its ravages will be continued in the upper
—for, once set in motion, it will continue to move till a
succession of victims fall ;"—clearly pointing out, that it
is all classes of the community that are supposed to have
this object in view, or that, at least, will be affected and
benefited by it. ¢ Our principles are few, and founded on
the basis of our Constitution, which were purchased with
the dearest blood of our ancestors, and which we swear to
transmit to our posterity unsullied, or perish in the at-
tempt !—Equality of rights, not of property, is the object
for which we contend, and which we consider as the only
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and then, whether they were treasonably done, as clnrged
in the indictment. Gentlemen, you had better again retire
and consider this point.

The Jury again withdrew, and at eight o’clock retnmed
into Court, finding the prisoner Not Guilty.

This verdict was received by the audience with loud and
general cheering; and a young man, who was particalarly
active, being pointed out by the Lord Chief Baron, he was
taken into custody by an officer of the Court, and order was
restored.

Lord Chisf Baron Shepherd~—If I had happened to ﬁx
my eye upon any other person who was applauding, I
should have felt it my duty to order that person to be com-
mitted for contempt of Court. We are assembled on a most
momentous and solemn occasion ; and no greater violation
of decency could have been committed than that which has
taken place. A verdict, whatever it may be, onght to be
received in serious silence. The Court have full power to
‘preserve their own dignity, and they are raolmd to do
30,

Tbeyonngmmwuthencomnﬂttedtogaol. :

An officer then brought into Court a person, who ke
stated had been cheering md making a great noise mde
the Court. ‘

Lord Chief Baron Shopherd—As the man has been
werely applauding’ and cheering on the outside, and not
disturbing our proceedings, we have nothing to say to him.

The man was accordingly dismissed.

John Laing was then put to the bar, and a Jury having
been sworn,

Lord Justice Clerk.—James Speirs, you have reason to
be thankful for the issue of this trial, as you, and every one
must be convinced, from the proceedings that have taken
place in your presence, with regard to the verdict now re-
corded. You have made a narrow escape indeed ; and I re-
commend to you to be exceedingly cautious in regard to
your future conduct, and to take no part in any similar pro-
ceedings to those which have brought you to the bar of this
Court.
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THE COMMISSION
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'AYR.
Tuesday, 4th July, 1820,

PRESENT.

The Lorp PresipEnT, The Lonp Justece-CLEREK,&c. &c.

© OIS U ® P

Granp Jury.

Sir JaAMEs MoNTcoMERY CUNNINGMAM, Baromet.
Joan Borre, Esq.

. RoBerT Crawrorp, Esq.
. JouN Ferrier Hawmirton, Esq.
. JouN CunNNINGHAM, of Thérntan, Esq.

JonN SmitH, Esq.

. Joun CuNNINGEAM, of Capmelbank, Esq.
. Huecu Brown, Eeq. '

. WiLLiam NEeLL, Esq..

. JamMEs MiLLkr, Esq.

. WiLLiax HEroN, Esg.

WirrLiam Hay Boyw, Esq.

. Captain JamEs Suaw, Esq.

. HuoeH BrowN YouncER, Esq.
. Joun M‘Kinpray, Esq.

. JaMEs CUTHBERT, Esg.

. JoHN ANDREW, Esq. .

. James PorTEOUS, Bsq.

. Wiriau 'Wacsrack, Esq.

. WiLLiam RANKINE, Esq.

. Jorw M*‘CunzIN, Esq.

. RoserT MoNTcONERIE, Hsq.

RoserT BEAUMONT, Eey.
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The Grand Jury being sworn, the officers of Court ap-
pointed, and the same forms observed as at Stirling, the
Lord President delivered his charge to the Grand Jury.

The witnesses, whose names were indorsed on the back of
the bill of indictment presented, were then sworn in Court
to give evidence before the Grand Jury.

The Court adjourned for three hours ; and having met
again at three o'clock, the Grand Jury presented true bills

for High Treason against

Thomas M‘Kay,
Andrew Wyllie,
William Orr,
John Dunlop,
James Wyllie,
Robert Kerr, and
James Rayburn,
All of Stewarton.
The two first indicted. The five last not in custody.

Also against,
John Goldie,
Joseph Abbot,
Andrew Adamson,
Alexander Roxburgh,
James Roxburgh,
George Roxburgh,
James Nisbet, and
Alexander Wilson,

All of Galston ; but none of them in custody

Also against
John Dickie, and
Hugh Wallace,
Both of Mauchline, and both indicted.
Bill not found against Thomas Gray, of Galston.

Mackay, Wyllie, Dickie, and Wallace, were served with
indictments, and Counsel appointed to them.
Adjourned to 29th July, 1820.
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AYR CHURCH.

Saturday, 29th July, 1820.

PRESENT.
The Lorp JusTicE-CLERK.
The Lorp CHIEF Baxon.
The Graxnp Jury.

Thomas Mackay, Andrew Wyllie, John Dickie, and
Hugh Wallace, were severally arraigned, by reading the in-
dictments, which were precisely the same with those in La-
narkshire, except that the locus delicti, in the indictment
against Mackay and Wyllie, was the parish of Stewarton,
and county of Ayr ; and in the indictment against Dickie and
Wallace, the parish of Mauchline, and county of Ayr.

Messrs Grant and Sandford were assigned to them as
Counsel.

The prisoners pleaded No¢t guilty ; and the Court in-
formed them that they must be prepared to take their trial
on the 9th day of August next, to which day the diet was
adjourned.

AYR CHURCH.

Monday, 9th August, 1820.

PRESENT.
The Lorp JusticE-CLERK.
The Lorp CHIEF BaroN.

Mr Grant—My Lords, I am now abont to submit a mo-
tion; but I believe, in the first place, it is necessary that
the prisoner should be set at the bar.











































































